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Report on operations

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL SITUATION OF THE GROUP

2015-2014 8

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 0 %

Sales revenue 138,003 100% 136,337 100% 1,666 +1.2%
EBITDA 26,172 19.0% 25,952 19.0% 220 +0.8%
Operating profit (EBIT) 14,091 10.2% 13,175 9.7% 916 +7.0%
Pre-tax profit 13,473 9.8% 12,157 8.9% 1,316 +10.8%
Net profit 8,998 6.5% 8,338 6.1% 660 +7.9%
Basic earnings per share (in euro) 0.781 - 0.723 - 0.058 +8.0%
Eri'ﬁi)eammgs per share 0.781 . 0723 . 0.058 +8.0%

In 2015 the Sabaf Group achieved a moderate increase in sales (+1.2%), accompanied
by a profitability that is finally improving: EBITDA represented 19% of revenues (as in
20714)and EBIT10.2% (9.7% in 2014). Net profit reached 6.5% of sales (6.1% in 2014).

The subdivision of sales revenues by product line is shown in the table below:

The increase in sales is attributable principally to the growth of burners: as regards
standard burners the Group benefited from the strong competitiveness of its production
processes (also thanks to increased production at the Turkish plant), while with special
burners the introduction of new high energy efficiency models was a success. The sales
performance of hinges was also very positive; several important supply relationships
were consolidated and new special models were introduced. Conversely, the families
of valves and thermostats recorded a downturn, due to greater competitive pressure.

The geographical breakdown of revenues is shown below:

Sales by product line

%
9 [ ‘o
nmousanos o+ curo [ESSEY KRR RSN I P

Sales by geographical area

%
L L) 'o
wousaosor evro [EEEY [ JEEIR cranc

Brass valves 12,689 9.2% 13,741 10.1% | -7.7% Italy 41,244 | 29.9% | 42,277 | 31.0% | -2.4%

Light alloy valves 33,784 | 24.5% | 34,006 | 24.9% | -0.7% Western Europe 7,438 5.4% 8,716 6.4% | -14.7%
Thermostats 10,596 7.7% 12,288 9.0% | -13.8% Eastern Europe 35,125 | 25.5% | 36,198 | 26.6% | -3.0%

Standard burners 37,789 | 27.4% | 36,160 | 26.5% | +4.5% Middle East and Africa 16,759 | 12.1% | 16,871 12.4% | -0.7%

Special burners 21,622 | 15.7% | 20,251 14.9% | +6.8% Asia and Oceania 7,019 5.0% 6,907 5.0% +1.6%

Accessories and 13577 | 9.8% | 12928 | 9.5% | +5.0% South America 20,815 | 15.1% | 18,324 | 13.4% | +13.6%
other revenues

TOTAL GAS PARTS 130,057 | 94.3% |129,374| 94.9% | +0.5% North America and Mexico | 9,603 7.0% 7,044 5.2% | +36.3%
Hinges 7,946 5.7% 6,963 51% | +14.1% TOTAL 138,003| 100% (136,337 | 100% | +1.2%
TOTAL 138,003| 100.0% (136,337 | 100% | +1.2%
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In line with the strategy of greater internationalisation, the markets which increasingly
contributed to sales in 2015 were the non-European markets: particularly significantare
the increases achieved in South America (where sales represented more than 15% of the
total), despite the weakness of the Brazilian market, and in North America (where sales
increased by 36%, bringing their impact on the total revenues to 7%). Sales in Asia, the
Middle East and Africa were essentially stable, while the European markets decreased
compared with 2014.

Average sales prices in 2015 were around 1% lower compared with 2014.

The actual cost of the main raw materials (brass, aluminium alloys and steel) was
approximately 5% higher than in 2014. Savings were also achieved in the purchase of
other parts. Consumption (purchases plus change in inventory) as a percentage of sales
was 38.7%in 2015, compared with 38.2% in 2014.

The impact of labour costs on sales remained unchanged at 23.6% of sales.

The impact of net financial charges on the revenues remains very low (0.4%, as in 2014),
due to the low level of debt and low interest rates.

Operating cash flow (net profit plus depreciation & amortisation) stood at €21.2 million,
equivalent to 15.3% of sales (€20.6 million and 15.1% respectively in 2014).

The 2015 tax rate was 33.2% (31.4% in 2014, when it included non-recurrent positive
items totalling €0.9 million).

The Group's assets/liabilities situation, reclassified based on financial criteria,
is illustrated below:

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 0

31/12/2014

Cash flows for the period are summarised in the table below:

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 0

2014

Non-current assets 92,797 96,152 Opening liquidity * 3,675 5,111
Short-term assets 75,370 74,780 Operating cash flow 19,131 16,977
Short-term liabilities 2 (27,207) (28,936) Cash flow from investments (12,079) (11,491)
Working capital 3 48,163 45,844 Cash flow from (5,392) (8,092)

! ’ financing activities ' !
Short-term financial assets 69 0 Foreign exchange differences (1,344) 453
Provision for risks and charges, CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD 316 (2,153)
employee severance pay (4,081) (4,325) ’
reserve, deferred taxes

Final liquidity 3,991 2,958

NET INVESTED CAPITAL 136,948 137,671
Short-term net financial position (19,520) (16,760)
Mediqm/\ongjterm net (6,388) (10,173)
financial position
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (25,908) (26,933)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 111,040 110,738

Net financial debt and the cash and cash equivalents shown in the tables above
are defined in compliance with the net financial position detailed in Note 21 of the
consolidated accounts, as required by CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006.

At 31 December 2015, working capital stood at €48.2 million compared with €45.8
million at the end of the previous year: its impact on sales was 34.9% (33.6% in 2014);
the worsening is mainly related to the varying performances of the loans for income
tax receivables and payables. The year-end values of the trade receivables, warehouse
inventories and trade payables are in line with those of 31 December 2014.

The ratio between working capital and short-term loans is 2.5, for which the Group
considers the liquidity risk to be minimal.

In 2015 the Sabaf Group made net investments of 12.1 million euro. The main
investments in the year were aimed at increasing production capacity and the
further automation of production of light alloy valves. The machinery necessary for

the production launch in China was produced and production capacity at the Turkish
plant was also further increased. Investments were also made to improve production
processes - including the purchase of new alcohol washing facilities - and investments
were made in maintenance and replacement, designed to keep the capital equipment
constantly updated.

The free cash flow (operating cash flow less investments) was €7.1 million, versus €5.5
millionin 2014.

During the financial year, the Group paid out dividends of €4.6 million and purchased
treasury shares for €0.7 million; the net financial debt was €25.9 million, versus €26.9
million in 31 December 2014.

Shareholders' equity totalled €111 million at 31 December 2015; the debt/equity ratio
was 0.23 versus 0.24 in 2014.

1 Sum of Inventories, Trade receivables, Tax receivables and Other current receivables.
2 Sum of Trade payables, Tax payables and Other liabilities.
3 Difference between short-term assets and short-term liabilities.

4 The opening liquidity in 2015 differs from the final liquidity in 2014 following the change in
the consolidation method of Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan) Ltd.
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Economic and financial indicators

.

ROCE

O, O
(return on capital employed) 10.3% 7.6%
Dividend per share (€) 048° 0.40
Net debt/equity ratio 23% 24%
Market capltallsat\on (31.12) 119 117
/equity ratio
Change in sales +1.2% +4.1%

Please refer to the introductory part of the Annual Report for a detailed examination of
other key performance indicators.

RISK FACTORS RELATED TO THE
SEGMENT IN WHICH THE GROUP
OPERATES

Risks related to the overall conditions of the economy
and trend in demand

The business and financial circumstances of the Group are influenced by a variety of factors, such
as gross domestic product, consumer and corporate confidence, interest rate trends, the cost of raw
materials, the unemployment rate, and the ease of access to credit.

The protracted nature of the European crisis, which has become systematic over the years, has had

an impact on the transformation of the white goods industry, the sector in which the Sabaf group

operates. Indeed, the continuous contraction of demand on mature markets has been accompanied
by a further concentration of end markets, a steady increase of sales volumes in emerging markets
and, finally, tougher competition, phenomena that require aggressive policies in setting sales prices.

To cope with this situation, the Group aims to retain and reinforce its leadership position wherever

possible through:

o the launch of new products characterised by superior performance compared with market
standards, and tailored to the needs of the customer;

e expansion on markets with high growth rates;

o the maintenance of high quality and safety standards, which make it possible to differentiate the
product through the use of resources and implementation of production processes that are not
easily sustainable by competitors;

o theimprovement in efficiency of production processes.

Commodity price volatility risk

The Group uses metals and alloys in its production processes, chiefly brass, aluminium
alloys and steel. The sales prices of products are generally renegotiated semi-annually
or annually; as a result, Group companies may not be able to immediately pass on to
customers changes in the prices of commodities that occur during the year, which has
an impact on profitability. The Group protects itself from the risk of changes in the price
of brass and aluminium with supply contracts signed with suppliers for delivery up to
twelve months in advance or, alternatively, with derivative financial instruments.

As of the date of this report, the Sabaf Group has already fixed purchase prices for about
50% of its expected requirement for aluminium, steel and brass for 2016.

Any furtherincrease in the price of commodities not hedged could have negative effects
on expected profits.

For more information, see Note 36 of the consolidated financial statements, as regards
disclosure for the purposes of IFRS 7.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

The Sabaf Group operates primarily in euro. However, transactions also take place
in other currencies, such as the U.S. dollar, the Brazilian real, the Turkish lira and the
Chinese renminbi.

Since sales in US dollars accounted for about 12% of consolidated revenue, the possible
depreciation against the euro and the real could lead to a loss in competitiveness on
the markets in which sales are made in that currency (mainly South and North America).
At 31 December 2015 the Group had forward sales contracts for a total of 5.2 million
dollars, maturing until 31 December 2016.The Administration and Finance Department
constantly monitors forex exposure, the trend in exchange rates and the operational
management of related activities.

For more information, see Note 36 of the consolidated financial statements, as regards
disclosure for the purposes of IFRS 7.

Risks associated with product responsibility

Sabaf products carry a high intrinsic risk in terms of safety. The Group's great attention
to product quality and safety has made it possible to avoid incidents caused by product
defects. Despite this, it is not possible to automatically exclude incidents of this nature.
In order to transfer the risk of third-party liability damage arising from malfunctioning
of its products, Sabaf has signed insurance policies with a deductible of up to €10
million per individual claim.

Protection of product exclusivity

There is a risk that some Group products, although patented, will be copied by
competitors; the opening up of trade in countries in which it is difficult to enforce
industrial patent rights exposes the Group to a greater risk of protection of its own
products. Sabaf's business model therefore bases the protection of product exclusivity
mainly on design capacity and the internal production of special machines used in
manufacturing processes, which result from its unique know-how that competitors
would find difficult to replicate.

In any case, Sabaf has structured processes in place to manage innovation and protect
intellectual property. In addition, the Group periodically monitors the patent strategies
adopted/to be adopted based on the assessments of cost/opportunity.

5 Proposed dividend.
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Sales concentration risks

The Group is characterised by a strong concentration in its revenue, with 50% arising
from sales to its ten biggest customers. Relations with customers are usually stable and
over long periods, albeit usually regulated by agreements of less than one year, which
can be renewed and with no guaranteed minimum levels.

At the date of this report, there was no reason for the Group to foresee the loss of any
significant clients in the coming months.

Trade receivable risk

The high concentration of sales to a small number of customers, described in the
previous section, generates a concentration of the respective trade receivables, with
a resulting increase in the negative impact on economic and financial results in the
event of insolvency of a customer. In particular, given the structural difficulties of the
household appliance sector in mature markets, it is possible that situations of financial
difficulty and insolvency among customers could arise.

The risk is constantly monitored through the preliminary assessment of customers and
checks that agreed payment terms are met. From November 2014, a credit insurance
policy was taken out which covers approximately 70% of the credit risk. A further
portion is partly guaranteed through letters of credit issued by major banks in favour
of customers. The remainder of the receivable risk is covered by a doubtful account
provision considered appropriate.

For more information, see Note 36 of the consolidated financial statements, as regards
disclosure for the purposes of IFRS 7.

Risk of instability in emerging countries
in which the Group produces or sells

40% of Sabaf Group sales are made on markets outside Europe. Furthermore, products
sold in ltaly can be exported by customers in international markets, making the
percentage of sales earned directly and indirectly from emerging economies more
significant.

The Group's main markets outside Europe include North Africa, the Middle East and
South America. Any embargoes or major political or economic instability, or changes
in the regulatory and/or local law systems, or new tariffs or taxes imposed in the future
could affect a portion of Group sales and the related profitability.

To combat this risk, the Group has adopted a policy of diversifying investments
at international level, setting different strategic priorities that, as well as business
opportunities, also consider the different associated risk profiles. In addition, the Group
monitors the economic and social performance of the target countries, also through a
local network, in order to make strategic and investment decisions fully aware of the
exposure to associated risks.

Risks relating to the difficulties of sufficiently managing
the Group's internationalisation

The Sabaf Group is continuing with its policy of expansion abroad, and is undergoing
a process of growing internationalisation, with the opening of new companies and
production facilities in countries considered strategic for the future development of its
business. This process requires appropriate measures, which include the recruitment
and training of management staff and the implementation of management and
coordination measures by the parent company, the definition of the areas of action and
responsibilities of each function involved, and the analysis of the legal context of the
countries in which the subsidiaries have their registered office.

In order to support this expansion process, the Sabaf Group is committed to defining
suitable measures, which include the appropriate definition and formalisation of the
spheres and responsibilities of management action, careful planning of activities in
implementing new projects, and a detailed analysis of the regulatory environment in
the various countries involved. In particular, the necessary governance actions have
been undertaken with regard to company organisation and systems of liability, control
and coordination.

Risks related to the potential resistance to change
on the part of the organisation

The Group operates ina market context whose dynamismiis reflected on the organisation
and the processes. In this context, the Group may not be able to exploit the opportunities
offered by the market due to the potential resistance to change of the organisation.

To counter this risk, the Group has commenced initiatives aimed at raising awareness
at all levels of the organisation regarding the critical success criteria and sharing
improvement objectives and plans.

Risks relating to the loss of key staff and expertise
and the difficulty of replacing them

Group results depend to a large extent on the work of executive directors and
management. The loss of a key staff member for the Group without an adequate
replacement and the inability to attract new resources could have negative effects
on the future of the Group and on the quality of financial and economic results. To
mitigate this risk, the Group has launched policies to strengthen the most critical
internal organisational structures and loyalty schemes, including the signing of non-
competition agreements with key figures.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The most important research and development projects conducted in 2015 were
as follows:

Burners

e aspecific solution was realised, characterised by an efficiency greater than 67%, of a
DCC burner for the Chinese market;

e based on the DCC burner platform, versions dedicated to specific customers were
produced;

e new versions of burners for the Indian market were studied;

e the industrialisation of a new high-efficiency, triple crown burner intended for the
Brazilian market was completed;

Valves

e anew version of the light alloy safety valve for kitchens was industrialised;

e interventions in the process aimed at increasing productivity and automation
continued, for both the processing and assembly stages;

Hinges

 a soft close system for oven doors with a damping unit fitted in the oven was
industrialised;

e anelectromechanical solution for the movements of the oven doors was developed;
the production of a prototype is planned in 2016.

The improvement in production processes continued throughout the Group,
accompanied by the development and internal production of machinery, tools and
presses.

Development costs to the tune of €414,000 were capitalised, as all the conditions set
by international accounting standards were met; in other cases, they were charged to
the income statement.

SAP IMPLEMENTATION

In order to align the subsidiaries’ operating and management model to that of
Sabaf S.p.A., the Group extended the implementation of the SAP IT system to all the
production units; during 2015 the system was also launched at Sabaf Cina.

INTEGRATED SUSTAINABILITY
AND REPORTING

Since 2005, Sabaf has drawn up a single report on its economic, social and
environmental sustainability performance. In 2005, this was a pioneering and almost
experimental move, but today the trend emerging at international level suggests that
integrated reporting unquestionably represents best practice.

PERSONNEL

The Sabaf Group had 759 employees at 31 December 2015 (726 at 31 December
2014). In 2015, the Sabaf Group suffered no on-the-job deaths or serious accidents
that led to serious or very serious injuries to staff for which the Group was definitively
held responsible, nor was it held responsible for occupational illnesses of employees or
former employees, or causes of mobbing.

For more information, see the "Sabaf and employees” section of the Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENT

In 2015 there was no:

e damage caused to the environment for which the Group was held definitively
responsible;

o definitive fines or penalties imposed on the Group for environmental crimes or
damage.

For more information, see the "Sabaf and employees" section of the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For a complete description of the corporate governance system of the Sabaf Group, see
the report on corporate governance and on the ownership structure, available in the
Investor Relations section of the company website.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM ON
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The internal control system on financial reporting is described in detail in the report on
corporate governance and on ownership structure.

With reference to the "conditions for listing shares of parent companies set up and
regulated by the law of states not belonging to the European Union” pursuant to
articles 36 and 39 of the Market Regulations, the Company and its subsidiaries have
administrative and accounting systems that can provide the public with the accounting
situations prepared for drafting the consolidated report of the companies that fall within
the scope of this regulation and can regularly supply management and the auditors
of the Parent Company with the data necessary for drafting the consolidated financial
statements. The Sabaf Group has also set up an effective information flow to the
independent auditor and continuous information on the composition of the company
officers of the subsidiaries, together with information on the roles covered, and requires
the systematic and centralised gathering and regular updates of the formal documents
relating to the bylaws and granting of powers to company officers. The conditions
exist as required by article 36, letters a), b) and c) of the Market Regulations issued by
CONSOB. In the course of the year, no acquisitions were made of companies in countries
not belonging to the European Union which, considered independently, would have a
significant relevance for the purposes of the regulation in question.

MODEL 231

The Organisation, Management and Control Model, adopted pursuant to Legislative
Decree 231/2001, is described in the report on company governance and on the
ownership structure, which should be reviewed for reference.

PERSONAL DATA PROTECTION

With reference to Legislative Decree 196 of 30 June 2003, in 2015 the Group
continued its work to ensure compliance with current regulations.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

For the comments on this item, please see Note 36 of the consolidated financial
statements.




SABAF - ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REPORT ON OPERATIONS

115

ATYPICAL OR UNUSUAL
TRANSACTIONS

Sabaf Group companies did not execute any unusual or atypical transactions in 2015.

SECONDARY OFFICES

Neither Sabaf S.p.A. nor its subsidiaries have secondary offices.

MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION

Although Sabaf S.p.A. is controlled by the parent company, Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A.,
the Board of Directors holds that the Company is not subject to management and co-
ordination of the parent company, since the Board of Directors of Sabaf S.p.A. enjoys
complete operating autonomy and does not have to justify its actions to the parent
company, except at the annual Shareholders' Meeting held to approve the separate
financial statements and, obviously, in the event of violation of the law and/or the
Bylaws. It should also be noted that the Bylaws of the parent company explain that it
does not exercise management and coordination activities with regard to Sabaf S.p.A.
Sabaf S.p.A. exercises management and coordination activities over its Italian
subsidiaries, Faringosi Hinges s.r.l. and Sabaf Immobiliare s.r.l.

INFRAGROUP OPERATIONS AND
OPERATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The relationships between the Group companies, including those with the parent
company, are regulated under market conditions, as well as the relationships with
related parties, defined in accordance with the accounting standard IAS 24. The details
of the infragroup operations and other operations with related parties are given in Note
37 of the consolidated financial statements and in Note 37 of the separate financial
statements of Sabaf S.p.A.

TAX CONSOLIDATION SCHEME

During 2013 Sabaf S.p.A. approved the renewal for the three-year period 2013-
2015 of the tax consolidation agreement with the parent company Giuseppe Saleri
S.a.p.A. and with the subsidiaries Faringosi Hinges s.r.l. and Sabaf Immobiliare s.r.I.
For the companies of the Sabaf Group membership of the tax consolidation scheme
does not imply higher taxes as it makes no difference whether these are paid to the
tax authorities or to the parent company at the due dates. Having made the necessary
offsets and adjustments, the parent company will handle the payment and be liable for
any damages the subsidiaries may incur for the former’s failure to comply. Conversely,
membership of the tax consolidation scheme could result in tax benefits for the Sabaf
Group because the tax advantages resulting from consolidation are shared among the
companies that belong to it.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER
YEAR-END AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The beginning of 2016 is characterised by a situation of great uncertainty, due to
political, economic and financial tensions that have an impact on the main markets
in which Sabaf operates. The sales of the first three-year period are expected to fall
compared with 2015, which was characterised by a very positive start of the year.
However, the agreements reached with some major customers for 2016 envisage an
increase of our supply share and the launch of the supplies for new important projects. If
the macroeconomic context stabilises, the Group therefore considers that it will be able
to achieve in the whole of the current year an improvement in sales and profitability
compared with 2015. Should the economic situation instead undergo significant
changes, the final values may deviate from the forecasts.
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SABAF S.P.A. BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL STATUS

%
IN THOUSANDS OF EURO m 2014 CHANGE

Sales revenue 113,962 | 115,919 (1,957) -1.7%

EBITDA 16,123 17,984 (1,861) -10.3%
Operating profit (EBIT) 8,847 9,708 (861) -8.87%
Pre-tax profit (EBT) 8,159 10,533 (2,374) -22.5%
NET PROFIT 5,642 7,878 (2,236) | -28.4%

The reclassification based on financial criteria is illustrated below:

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 0 31/12/2014
Non-current assets 86,088 85,110
Short-term assets © 60,493 62,583
Short-term liabilities 7 (24,932) (25,856)
Working capital 8 35,561 36,727
Financial assets 2,906 1,660
Provision for risks and

charges, employee severance (3,003) (3,191)
pay reserve, deferred taxes

NET INVESTED CAPITAL 121,552 120,306
Sho_rt.fterm net financial (20,686) (17.072)
position

Medium/long-term

net financial position (4.632) (7,340)
NET FINANCIAL POSITION (25,318) (24,412)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 96,234 95,894

Cash flows for the period are summarised in the table below:

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 0 2014
Opening liquidity 1,366 2,345
Operating cash flow 14,531 14,124
Cash flow from investments (9,035) (9,030)
Cagh‘ flow from financing (5.772) 6.073)
activities

CASH FLOW FOR THE

PERIOD (s, by
Closing liquidity 1,090 1,366

Net financial debt and the net short-term financial position shown in the tables above
are defined in compliance with the net financial position detailed in Note 23 of the
statutory accounts, as required by the CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006.

The 2015 financial year ended with a decrease in sales of 1.7% compared with 2014.The
product family of valves and thermostats was weaker, while sales of bumners increased,
thanks to the contribution of special burners. The lower sales and the reduction in sales
prices (0.9% on average) had a negative impact on gross operating profitability: EBITDA
was €16.1 million, or 14.1% of revenues (€18 million in 2014, or 15.5%).

EBITin 2015 was €8.8 million, or 7.8% of revenues (€9.7 million in 2014, or 8.4%), and
net profit was €5.6 million, or 5% of revenues (€7.9 million in 2014, or 6.8%).

The actual cost of the main raw materials (brass, aluminium alloys and steel) was on
average 5.5% higher compared to 2014.

The impact of the labour costs on the sales is growth from 24.1% to 24.5%.
Net finance expense as a percentage of sales was minimal, at 0.4% (substantially
unchanged), given the low level of financial debt and the low interest rates.

Operating cash flow (net profit plus depreciation & amortisation) decreased from €16.9
million to €14.4 million, with an impact on revenues of 12.6% (vs. 14.6% in 2014).

In 2015 Sabaf S.p.A. invested over €9 million. The main investments in the year aimed at
increasing production capacity and the further automation of production of light alloy valves.

At 31 December 2015, working capital stood at €35.6 million compared with €36.7
million the previous year: its percentage impact on sales rose to 31.2% from 31.7% at
the end of 2014.

Self-financing generated by operating cash flow was €14.5 million, compared with
€14.1 million in 2014, due to a lower absorption of working capital.

The netfinancial debtwas €25.3 million, compared with €24.4 million on 31 December 2014.
At the end of the year, the shareholders' equity amounted to €96.2 million, compared

with €95.9 million in 2014. The net financial debt/shareholders’ equity ratio is 0.26,
substantially unchanged compared with 2014 (0.25).

6 Sum of Inventories, Trade receivables, Tax receivables and Other current receivables.
7 Sum of Trade payables, Tax payables and Other liabilities.
8 Difference between short-term assets and short-term liabilities.
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PARENT COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Pursuant to the CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, a reconciliation statement of the result of the 2015 financial year and Group shareholders' equity at 31 December 2015 with

the same values of the parent company Sabaf S.p.A. is given below:

31.12.2014

DESCRIPTION Profit for the period | Shareholders’equity | Profit for the period | Shareholders’equity
Net profit and shareholders’ equity of parent company 5,642 96,234 7.878 95,894
Sabaf S.p.A.
Equity and consolidated company results 4,775 56,427 3,263 54,609
E||m|pat|on of consolidated equity investments; (1.303) 45,616) 1.771) 43,936)
carrying value
Goodwill 0 4,445 0 4,445
Equity investments booked at net equity 0 0 0 73
Intercompany eliminations
Dividends 0 0 (970) 0
Other intercompany eliminations (116) (450) (62) (347)
PROFIT AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 8,998 111,040 8,338 110,738

TO THE GROUP

Proposal for approval of the separate financial statements

and proposed dividend

As we thank our employees, the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Independent Auditor and the supervisory authorities for their invaluable cooperation, we would kindly ask

the shareholders to approve the financial statements as at 31 December 2015, with the recommendation to allocate the year's profits of € 5,642,123 as follows:

e the payment of a dividend of €0.48 per share to shareholders, with payment date on 25 May 2016 (ex-date: 23 May 2016). With regard to treasury shares, we
recommend allocating an amount corresponding to the dividend of the company shares in the portfolio on the ex-date to the extraordinary reserve;

e the remainder to the extraordinary reserve.

Ospitaletto, 22 March 2016
The Board of Directors
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Group structure

and corporate bodies

Group structure

Direct parent company
SABAF S.p.A.

Subsidiaries and equity interest owned by the Group

Faringosi Hinges s.r.l. 0 100%
Sabaf Immobiliare s.r.l. 0 100%
Sabaf do Brasil Ltda. 0 100%
Sabaf US Corp. 0 100%

Sabaf Appliance Components .
(Kunshan) Co. Ltd. e 100%

Sabaf Beyaz Esya Parcalari Sanayi Ve 5
Ticaret Limited Sirteki (Sabaf Turchia) e 100%

Sabaf Appliance Components Trading
(Kunshan) Co. Ltd. in liquidazione 0 100%

Board of Directors

Chairman Giuseppe Saleri
Deputy Chairman Cinzia Saleri
Deputy Chairman Ettore Saleri

Deputy Chairman Roberta Forzanini

Chief Executive Officer Alberto Bartoli

Director Gianluca Beschi

—

Director * Renato Camodeca

Director * Giuseppe Cavalli

Director * Fausto Gardoni

Director * Anna Pendoli

Director * Nicla Picchi

—

Board of Statutory Auditors

Standing Auditor Luisa Anselmi
Standing Auditor Enrico Broli

—

Independent Auditor
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A.

* Independent directors.
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Consolidated balance sheet and financial position

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO NOTES 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 1 73,037 74,483
Real estate investments 2 6,712 7,228
Intangible assets 3 7,525 7,359
Investments 4 204 974
Non-current receivables 5 432 529
Deferred tax assets 21 4,887 5,579
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 92,797 96,152
Current assets

Inventories 6 31,009 30,774
Trade receivables 7 40,425 40,521
Tax receivables 8 2,489 2,390
Other current receivables 9 1,447 1,095
Current financial assets 10 69 0
Cash and cash equivalents 1 3,991 2,958
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 79,430 77,738
Assets held for sale 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 172,227 173,890
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 12 11,533 11,533
Retained earnings, other reserves 90,509 90,867
Net profit for the year 8,998 8,338
Total equity interest of the Parent Company 111,040 110,738
Minority interests 0 0
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 111,040 110,738
Non-current liabilities

Loans 14 6,388 10,173
Post-employment benefit and retirement reserves 16 2,914 3,028
Reserves for risks and contingencies 17 395 605
Deferred tax 21 772 692
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,469 14,498
Current liabilities

Loans 14 23,480 19,613
Other financial liabilities 15 31 105
Trade payables 18 19,450 19,328
Tax payables 19 1,219 2,453
Other liabilities 20 6,538 7,155
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 50,718 48,654
Liabilities held for sale 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 172,227 173,890
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Consolidated income statement

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO NOTES “ 2014

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Operating revenue and income

Revenues 23 138,003 136,337
Other income 24 3,758 3,748
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE AND INCOME 141,761 140,085

Operating costs

Materials 25 (54,366) (54,472)
Change in inventories 1,025 2,447
Services 26 (29,759) (29,875)
Payroll costs 27 (32,526) (32,180)
Other operating costs 28 (1,193) (1,042)
Costs for capitalised in-house work 1,230 989
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS (115,589) (114,133)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION, CAPITAL GAINS/

LOSSES, AND WRITE-DOWNS/WRITE-BACKS OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS 26,172 25,952
Depreciation and amortisation 1,2,3 (12,185) (12,292)
Capital gains on disposals of non-current assets 104 63
Write-downs of non-current assets 4,29 0 (548)
OPERATING PROFIT 14,091 13,175
Financial income 67 61
Financial expenses 30 (596) (592)
Exchange rate gains and losses 31 (89) 19
Profits and losses from equity investments 4 0 (6006)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 13,473 12,157
Income tax 32 (4,475) (3,819
Minority interests 0 0
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8,998 8,338
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 33

Base 0.781 euro 0.723 euro

Diluted 0.781 euro 0.723 euro
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Consolidated comprehensive income statement

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO 2014

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8,998 ‘ 8,338
Total profits/losses that will not later be reclassified under profit (loss) for the year:
Actuarial post-employment benefit reserve evaluation 49 (283)
Tax effect (14) 78
35 (205)
Total profits/losses that will later be reclassified under profit (loss) for the year:
Forex differences due to translation of financial statements in foreign currencies (3,400) 817
Cash flow hedges 0 (26)
Tax effect 0 5
0 (21)
TOTAL PROFITS/(LOSSES) NET OF TAXES FOR THE YEAR (3,365) 591
TOTAL PROFIT 5,633 8,929

Statement of changes in consolidated
shareholders’ equity

Post-em- Total Total
IN Share .| Cash flow | ployment Net profit | Group -
THOUSANDS Shgre o Legal Treasury |Translation - benefit Other for the share- M|nor|ty share- :
capital reserve shares reserve : : reserves ) interest holders
OF EURO reserve reserve |discounting year holders equit
reserve equity quity
BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER RN R-XX] 10,002 2,307 (5) (4,465) 21 (411) 90,869 8,104 117,955 0 117,955
2013
Allocation of 2013 earnings
e dividends
paid out (4,613) (4,613) (4,613)
e carried
forward 3,491 (3,491) 0 0
Extraordinary (11,533) (11,533) (11,533)
dividend ! ! !
Total profit at
31 December 817 21 (205) 8,338 8,929 8,929
2014
» g3y 11,533 10,002 2,307 (5) (3,648) 0 (616) 82,827 8,338 110,738 0 110,738
014
Allocation of 2014 earnings
¢ dividends
paid out (4,613) (4,613) (4,613)
e carried
forward 3,725 (3,725) 0 0
Other
movements
Purchase
of treasury (718) (718) (718)
shares
Total profit at
31 December (3,400) 35 8,998 5,633 5,633
2015
» S5 11,533 10,002 2,307 (723) (7,048) 0 (581) 86,552 8,998 111,040 0 111,040
0
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

12M 2014

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year * 3,675 5,111
Net profit for period 8,998 8,338
Adjustments for:

e Depreciation and amortisation 12,185 12,292
e Realised gains (104) (63)

o Write-downs of non-current assets 0 548

e Losses from equity investments 0 606

e Net financial income and expenses 529 531

® Income tax 4,475 3,819
Change in post-employment benefit reserve (129) (158)
Change in risk provisions (210) 67)
Change in trade receivables 107 (4,079)
Change in inventories (170) (2,548)
Change in trade payables (58) 365
Change in net working capital (121) (6,262)
Change in other receivables and payables, deferred tax (72) 210
Payment of taxes (5,931) (2,325)
Payment of financial expenses (556) (553)
Collection of financial income 67 61
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS 19,131 16,977
Investments in non-current assets

® intangible (781) (639)
e tangible (11,581) (9,843)
e financial (26) (1,223)
Disposal of non-current assets 309 214
CASH FLOW ABSORBED BY INVESTMENTS (12,079) (11,491)
Repayment of loans (19,480) (16,993)
Raising of loans 19,488 25,047
Short-term financial assets 69 0
Purchase of treasury shares (718) 0
Payment of dividends 4,613) (16,146)
CASH FLOW ABSORBED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5,392) (8,092)
Foreign exchange differences (1,344) 453
NET FINANCIAL FLOWS FOR THE YEAR 316 (2,153)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year Note 10 3,991 2,958
Current financial debt 23,511 19,718
Non-current financial debt 6,388 10,173
NET FINANCIAL DEBT NOTE 22 25,908 26,933

* The cash balance at 1 January 2015 differs by 717,000 euros from the balance at 31 December 2014 following the change in the consolidation method of Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan).
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Explanatory Notes

Accounting standards

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated year-end accounts of the Sabaf Group for the financial year 2015 have
been prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed
by the European Union. Reference to the IFRS also includes all current International
Accounting Standards (IAS). The financial statements have been prepared in euro,
the current currency in the economies in which the Group mainly operates, rounding
amounts to the nearest thousand, and are compared with full-year financial statements
for the previous year, prepared according to the same standards. The report consists of
the statement of financial position, the income statement, the statement of changes in
shareholders' equity, the cash flow statement, and these explanatory notes. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for some revaluations
of property, plant and equipment undertaken in previous years, and are considered a
going concern. The Company found that, despite the difficult economic and business
climate, there were no significant uncertainties (as defined by paragraphs 25 and 26
of 1AS 1) regarding the continuity of the Company, also due to the strong competitive
position, high profitability and solidity of the financial structure.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has adopted the following formats:

e current and non-current assets and current and non-current liabilities are stated
separately in the statement of the financial position;

e anincome statement that expresses costs using a classification based on the nature
of each item;

e acomprehensive income statement that expresses revenue and expense items not
recognised in profit (loss) for the year as required or permitted by IFRS;

e acash flow statement that presents financial flows originating from operating
activity, using the indirect method.

Use of these formats permits the most meaningful representation of the Group's capital,

business and financial status.

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The scope of consolidation at 31 December 2015 comprises the direct parent company
Sabaf S.p.A. and the following companies controlled by Sabaf S.p.A.:

e Faringosi Hingess.r.l.

e Sabaf Immobiliare s.r.l.

o Sabaf do Brasil Ltda.

o Sabaf Beyaz Esya Parcalari Sanayi Ve Ticaret Limited Sirteki (Sabaf Turchia)

e Sabaf Appliance Components Trading (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.

o Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.

The participation in the controlled company Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd. was consolidated using the full line-by-line consolidation method for the first
time in these financial statements, since the company commenced its operations in the
course of 2015. In the preceding financial statements it was assessed using the net
equity method.

The companies in which Sabaf S.p.A. simultaneously possess the following three

elements are considered subsidiaries: (a) power over the company; (b) exposure or
rights to variable returns resulting from involvement therein; (c) ability to affect the
size of these returns by exercising power. If these subsidiaries exercise a significant
influence, they are consolidated as from the date in which control begins until the date
in which control ends so as to provide a correct representation of the Group's income,
investments and cash flow.

Sabaf U.S. is not consolidated since it is irrelevant for the purposes of the consolidation.

CONSOLIDATION CRITERIA

The data used for consolidation have been taken from the income statements and
balance sheets prepared by the directors of the individual subsidiary companies. These
figures have been appropriately amended and restated, when necessary, to align them
with international accounting standards and with uniform group-wide classification
policies.

The policies applied for consolidation are as follows:

a) Assets and liabilities, income and costs in the financial statements consolidated
on a 100% line-by-line basis are incorporated into the Group financial statements,
regardless of the entity of the equity interest concerned. In addition, the carrying
value of equity interests is eliminated against the shareholders’ equity relating
to subsidiary companies. Positive differences arising from elimination of equity
investments against the carrying.

b) Positive differences arising from elimination of equity investments against the
carrying value of shareholders' equity at the date of first-time consolidation are
attributed to the higher values of assets and liabilities when possible and, for the
remainder, to goodwill. In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 3, the Group
has changed the accounting treatment of goodwill on a prospective basis as from
the transition date. Therefore, since 1 January 2004, the Group has not amortised
goodwill and instead subjects it to impairment testing.

c) Payable/receivable and cost/revenue items between consolidated companies and
profits/losses arising from intercompany transactions are eliminated.

d) If minority shareholders exist, the portion of shareholders’ equity and net profit for
the period pertaining thereto is posted in specific items of the consolidated balance
sheet and income statement.
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CONVERSION INTO EURO OF FOREIGN CURRENCY INCOME STATEMENTS AND

BALANCE SHEETS

Separate financial statements of each company belonging to the Group are prepared
in the currency of the country in which that company operates (functional currency).
For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, each company's financial
statements are expressed in euro, which is the Group's functional currency and the
reporting currency for the consolidated financial statements.

Balance sheet items in accounts expressed in currencies other than euro are converted
by applying current end-of-year exchange rates. Income statement items are converted

ataverage exchange rates for the year.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the comparison between opening
shareholders' equity converted at current exchange rates and at historical exchange
rates, together with the difference between the net result expressed at average and
current exchange rates, are allocated to "Other Reserves” in shareholders’ equity.

The exchange rates used for conversion into euro of the company's foreign subsidiaries,
prepared in local currency, are given in the following table:

DESCRIPTION ANGE RA EXCHANGE RATE ASAT | AVERAGE EXCHANGE
OF CURRENCY 2015 31/12/14 2014
Brazilian real 43117 3.7004 3.2207 3.1211
Turkish lira 3.1765 3.0255 2.8320 2.9065
Chinese renminbi 7.0608 6.9714 7.5358 8.1857

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PARENT COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

DESCRIPTION Pro;i:rfiz:ithe Sharezhlzi:ers' Prorf)i:"‘l’ic;:jthe Share:hl::ivic;ers'
ls\lae;;r;?:.nd shareholders’ equity of parent company 5,642 96,234 7,878 95,894
Equity and consolidated company results 4,775 56,427 3,263 54,609
Elimination of consolidated equity investments’ carrying value (1,303) (45,616) (1,771) (43,936)
Goodwill 0 4,445 0 4,445
Equity investments booked at net equity 0 0 0 73
Intercompany Eliminations:

Dividends 0 0 (970) 0

Other intercompany eliminations (116) (450) (62) (347)
?gOTI:-I"II; gl;gSEAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 8,998 111,040 8,338 110,738

SEGMENT REPORTING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group's operating segments in accordance with IFRS 8 - Operating Segment are
identified in the business segments that generate revenue and costs, whose results
are periodically reassessed by top management in order to assess performance and
decisions regarding resource allocation. The Group operating segments are the
following:

® gas components

* hinges.

The accounting standards and policies applied for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2015, unchanged versus the previous year, are
shown below:
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Property, plant and equipment

These are recorded at purchase or manufacturing cost. The cost includes directly
chargeable ancillary costs. These costs also include revaluations undertaken in the past
based on monetary revaluation rules or pursuant to company mergers. Depreciation
is calculated according to rates deemed appropriate to spread the carrying value of
tangible assets over their useful working life. Estimated useful working life, in years,
is as follows:

Buildings 33
Light constructions 10
General plant 10
Specific plant and machinery 6-10
Equipment 4-10
Furniture 8
Electronic equipment 5
Vehicles and other transport means 4-5

Ordinary maintenance costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred; costs
that increase the asset value or useful working life are capitalised and depreciated
according to the residual possibility of utilization of the assets to which they refer.

Land is not depreciated.

Leased assets

Assets acquired via finance lease contracts are accounted for using the financial method
and are reported with assets at their purchase value, less depreciation. Depreciation of
such assets is reflected in the consolidated annual financial statements applying the
same policy followed for Company-owned property, plant and equipment. Set against
recognition of such assets, the amounts payable to the financial lessor are posted among
short-and medium-/long-term payables. In addition, financial charges pertaining to the
period are charged to the income statement.

Goodwill

Gooduwill is the difference between the purchase price and fair value of subsidiary
companies' identifiable assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition.

As regards acquisitions completed prior to the date of IFRS adoption, the Sabaf Group
has used the option provided by IFRS 1 to refrain from applying IFRS 3 - concerning
business combinations - to acquisitions that took place prior to the transition date.
Consequently, goodwill arising in relation to past acquisitions has not been recalculated
and has been posted in accordance with Italian GAAPs, net of amortisation reported up
to 31 December 2003 and any losses caused by a permanent value impairment.

After the transition date, goodwill - as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life - is not amortised but subjected annually to impairment testing to check for value
loss, or more frequently if there are signs that the asset may have suffered impairment
(impairment test).

Other intangible assets

As established by IAS 38, other intangible assets acquired or internally produced are
recognised as assets when it is probable that use of the asset will generate future
economic benefits and when asset cost can be measured reliably. If it is considered that
these future economic benefits will not be generated, the development costs are written
down in the year in which this is ascertained.

Such assets are measured at purchase or production cost and - if the assets concerned
have a finite useful life - are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful life. The useful life of projects for which development costs are capitalised is
estimated to be 10 years.

The SAP management system is amortised over five years.

Impairment of value

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there are signs of impairment of the value of
these assets. If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of said assets is
estimated so as to determine the total of the write-down. If itis not possible to estimate
recoverable value individually, the Group estimates the recoverable value of the cash
generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

In particular, the recoverable value of the cash generating units (which generally coincide
with the legal entity to which the capitalised assets refer) is verified by determining the
value of use. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling price and value of
use. In measuring the value of use, future cash flows net of taxes, estimated based on
past experience, are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects
fair market valuations of the present cost of money and specific asset risk. The main
assumptions used for calculating the value of use concern the discount rate, growth
rate, expected changes in selling prices and cost trends during the period used for
the calculation. The growth rates adopted are based on future market expectations in
the relevant sector. Changes in the sales prices are based on past experience and on
the expected future changes in the market. The Group prepares operating cash flow
forecasts based on the most recent budgets approved by the Boards of Directors of the
consolidated companies, draws up four-year forecasts and determines the terminal
value (current value of perpetual income), which expresses the medium and long term
operating flows in the specific sector.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be lower than its carrying
value, the asset's carrying value is reduced to the lower recoverable amount, recognising
impairment of value in the income statement.

When there is no longer any reason for a write-down to be maintained, the carrying
value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the new value stemming from the estimate of
its recoverable amount - but not beyond the net carrying value that the asset would have
had if it had not been written down for impairment of value. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income in the income statement.

Investment properties

As allowed by IAS 40, non-operating buildings and constructions are assessed at cost
net of depreciation and losses due to cumulative impairment of value. The depreciation
criterion applied is the asset's estimated useful life, which is considered to be 33 years.
If the recoverable amount of investment property - determined based on the market
value of the real estate - is estimated to be lower than its carrying value, the asset's
carrying value is reduced to the lower recoverable amount, recognising impairment of
value in the income statement.

When there is no longer any reason for a write-down to be maintained, the carrying
value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the new value stemming from the estimate of




128

its recoverable amount - but not beyond the net carrying value that the asset would have
had if it had not been written down for impairment of value. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income in the income statement.

Equity investments and non-current receivables

As from 1January 2015 the Chinese subsidiary Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd, which commenced its operations in the course of 2015, was consolidated using
the full line-by-line consolidation method (until 31 December 2014 this company was
consolidated using the net equity method).

Other equity investments not classified as held for sale are stated in the accounts at
cost, reduced for impairment. The original value is written back in subsequent years
if the reasons for write-down cease to exist. Non-current receivables are stated at their
presumed realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of purchase or production cost - determined
using the weighted average cost method - and the corresponding fair value represented
by the replacement cost for purchased materials and by the presumed realisable
value for finished and semi-processed products - calculated taking into account any
manufacturing costs and direct selling costs yet to be incurred. Inventory cost includes
accessory costs and the portion of direct and indirect manufacturing costs that can
reasonably be assigned to inventory items. Inventories subject to obsolescence and low
turnover are written down in relation to their possibility of use or realisation. Inventory
write-downs are eliminated in subsequent years if the reasons for such write-downs
cease to exist.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised at their presumed realisable value. Their face value is
adjusted to a lower realisable value via specific provisioning directly reducing the
item based on in-depth analysis of individual positions. Trade receivables assigned
on a no-recourse basis, despite being transferred legally, continue to be stated with
"Trade receivables” until they are collected, which is never prior to the due date. Trade
receivables past due and non-recoverable assigned on a no-recourse basis are recorded
under "Other current receivables”

Current financial assets

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, allocating profit and loss
effects to finance income or expense.

Reserves for risks and contingencies

Reserves for risks and contingencies are provisioned to cover losses and debts, the
existence of which is certain or probable, but whose amount or date of occurrence
cannot be determined at the end of the year. Provisions are stated in the statement of
financial position only when a legal or implicit obligation exists that determines the use
of resources with an impact on profit and loss to meet that obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. If the effect is significant, the provisions are calculated by
updating future financial flows estimated at a rate including taxes such as to reflect
current market valuations of the current value of the cash and specific risks associated
with the liability.

Post-employment benefit reserve

The reserve for Italian post-employment benefit obligations is provisioned to cover the
entire liability accruing vis-a-vis employees in compliance with current legislation and
with national and supplementary company collective labour contracts. This liability is
subject to revaluation via application of indices fixed by current regulations. Up to 31
December 2006, post-employment benefits were considered defined-benefit plans and
accounted for in compliance with IAS 19, using the projected unit-credit method. In the
light of these changes, and, in particular, for companies with at least 50 employees,
post-employment benefits must now be considered a defined-benefit plan only for the
portions accruing before 1 January 2007 (and not yet paid as at the balance sheet date).
Conversely, portions accruing after that date are treated as defined-contribution plans.
Actuarial gains or losses are recorded immediately under "Other total profits/(losses)".

Payables

Payables are recognised at face value; the portion of interest included in their face
value and not yet payable at period-end is deferred to future periods.

Loans

Loans are initially recognised at cost, net of related costs of acquisition. This value is
subsequently adjusted to allow for any difference between initial cost and repayment
value over the loan's duration using the effective interest rate method.

Loans are classified among current liabilities unless the Group has the unconditional
right to defer discharge of a liability by at least 12 months after the reference date.

Policy for conversion of foreign currency items

Receivables and payables originally expressed in foreign currencies are converted into
euro at the exchange rates in force on the date of the transactions originating them.
Forex differences realised upon collection of receivables and payment of payables in
foreign currency are posted in the income statement. Income and costs relating to
foreign-currency transactions are converted at the rate in force on the transaction date.

At year-end, assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies, with the exception of
non-current items, are posted at the spot exchange rate in force at year-end and related
foreign exchange gains and losses are posted in the income statement. If conversion
generates a net gain, this value constitutes a non-distributable reserve until it is
effectively realised.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's business is exposed to financial risks relating to changes in exchange rates,
commodity prices and interest rates. The company uses derivative instruments (mainly
forward contracts on currencies and commodity options) to hedge risks stemming from
changes in foreign currencies relating to irrevocable commitments or to planned future
transactions.

The Group does not use derivatives for trading purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at cost and are then adjusted to fair value on
subsequent closing dates.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and recognised as effective for
hedging future cash flows relating to the Group’s contractual commitments and planned
transactions are recognised directly in shareholders' equity, while the ineffective portion
is immediately posted in the income statement. If the contractual commitments or
planned transactions materialise in the recognition of assets or liabilities, when such
assets or liabilities are recognised, the gains or losses on the derivative that were
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directly recognised in equity are factored back into the initial valuation of the cost of
acquisition or carrying value of the asset or liability. For cash flow hedges that do not
lead to recognition of assets or liabilities, the amounts that were directly recognised in
equity are included in the income statement in the same period when the contractual
commitment or planned transaction hedged impacts profit and loss - for example,
when a planned sale actually takes place.

For effective hedges of exposure to changes in fair value, the item hedged is adjusted
for the changes in fair value attributable to the risk hedged and recognised in the
income statement. Gains and losses stemming from the derivative's valuation are also
posted in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are
recognised in the income statement in the period when they occur.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold or is
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies as a hedge. At this time, the cumulative gains
or losses of the hedging instrument recognised in equity are kept in the latter until the
planned transaction actually takes place. If the transaction hedged is not expected to
take place, cumulative gains or losses recognised directly in equity are transferred to
the year's income statement.

Embedded derivatives included in other financial instruments or contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not strictly related to
those of their host contracts and the latter are not measured at fair value with posting of
related gains and losses in the income statement.

Revenue reporting

Revenue is reported net of return sales, discounts, allowances and bonuses, as well as of
the taxes directly associated with sale of goods and rendering of services.

Sales revenue is reported when the company has transferred the significant risks and
rewards associated with ownership of the goods and the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured.

Revenues of a financial nature are recorded on an accrual basis.

Financial income

Finance income includes interest receivable on funds invested and income from
financial instruments, when not offset as part of hedging transactions. Interest income
is recorded in the income statement at the time of vesting, taking effective output into
consideration.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses include interest payable on financial debt calculated using the
effective interest method and bank expenses.

Income taxes for the year

Income taxes include all taxes calculated on the Group's taxable income. Income taxes
are directly recognised in the income statement, with the exception of those concerning
items directly debited or credited to shareholders' equity, in which case the tax effect is
recognised directly in shareholders' equity. Other taxes not relating to income, such as
property taxes, are included among operating expenses. Deferred taxes are provisioned
in accordance with the global liability provisioning method. They are calculated on all
temporary differences emerging between the taxable base of an asset and liability and
its book value in the consolidated balance sheet, with the exception of goodwill that
is not tax-deductible and of differences stemming from investments in subsidiaries

for which cancellation is not envisaged in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
on unused tax losses and tax credits carried forward are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which they can be
recovered. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when income taxes
are levied by the same tax authority and when there is a legal right to settle on a net basis.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to
be applicable, according to the respective regulations of the countries where the Group
operates, in the years when temporary differences will be realised or settled.

Dividends

Dividends are posted on an accrual basis when the right to receive them materialises,
i.e.when shareholders approve dividend distribution.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are booked as a reduction of shareholders' equity. The carrying value of
treasury shares and revenues from any subsequent sales are recognised in the form of
changes in shareholders' equity.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the direct parent
company's shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to the direct parent company's shareholders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding, adjusted to take into account the effects of all potential
ordinary shares with a dilutive effect.

Use of estimates

Preparation of the financial statements and notes in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the disclosures on contingent assets and liabilities as of the
balance sheet date. Actual results might differ from these estimates. Estimates are used
to measure tangible and intangible assets subject to impairment testing, as described
earlier, as well as to measure credit risks, inventory obsolescence, depreciation and
amortisation, asset write-downs, employee benefits, taxes, and other provisions.
Specifically:

Recoverable value of tangible and intangible assets

The procedure for determining impairment of value of tangible and intangible assets
described in “Impairment of value” implies - in estimating the value of use - the use
of the Business Plans of subsidiaries, which are based on a series of assumptions and
hypotheses relating to future events and actions of the subsidiaries’ management
bodies, which may not necessarily come about. In estimating market value, however,
assumptions are made on the expected trend in trading between third parties based on
historical trends, which may not actually be repeated.

Provisions for credit risks

Credit is adjusted by the related provision for doubtful accounts to take into account
its recoverable value. To determine the size of the write-downs, management must
make subjective assessments based on the documentation and information available
regarding, among other things, the customer’s solvency, as well as experience and
historical payment trends.
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Provisions for inventory obsolescence

Warehouse inventories subject to obsolescence and slow turnover are systematically
valued, and written down if their recoverable value is less than their carrying value.
Write-downs are calculated based on management assumptions and estimates,
resulting from experience and historical results.

Employee benefits

The current value of liabilities for employee benefits depends on a series of factors
determined using actuarial techniques based on certain assumptions. Assumptions
concern the discount rate, estimates of future salary increases, and mortality and
resignation rates. Any change in the above-mentioned assumptions might have
significant effects on liabilities for pension benefits.

Income tax

The Group is subject to different bodies of tax legislation on income. Determining
liabilities for Group taxes requires the use of management valuations in relation
to transactions whose tax implications are not certain on the balance sheet date.
Furthermore, the valuation of deferred taxes is based on income expectations for future
years; the valuation of expected income depends on factors that might change over
time and have a significant effect on the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Other provisions and reserves

When estimating the risk of potential liabilities from disputes, management relies on
communications regarding the status of recovery procedures and disputes from the
lawyers who represent the Group in litigation. These estimates are determined taking
into account the gradual development of the disputes, considering existing exemptions.

Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed and the effects of each change
immediately reflected in the income statement.

New accounting standards

Accounting standards and amendments applicable from 1 January 2015
The following IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations were
applied for the first time by the Group from 1 January 2015:

On 20 May 2013, the interpretation IFRIC 21 - Levies was published, which clearly
provides at the time of recognition of a liability related to taxes (other than income
taxes) imposed by a government agency. The standard is concerned with both the
liabilities for taxes within the scope of application of IAS 37 - Provisions, potential
assets and liabilities, and those for taxes whose timing and amount are certain. The
interpretation is applied retrospectively for the years starting from 17 June 2014 at the
latest or a later date. The adoption of this new interpretation did not have any effect on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

On 12 December 2013, the 1ASB published the document “Annual Improvements
to IFRSs: 2011-2013 Cycle”, which includes the changes to some principles within
the scope of the annual improvement process of same. The main changes involve:
IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Scope exception for joint ventures; IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement - Scope of portfolio exception (par. 52); IAS 40 Investment
Properties - Interrelationship between IFRS 3 and IAS 40.The changes apply starting
from the financial years which began on 1 January 2015 or a later date. The adoption
of these amendments did not have any effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS and IFRIC accounting standard, amendments approved by the
European Union, not yet universally applicable and not adopted early by
the Group at 31 December 2015

0On 21 November 2013 the amendment to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions” was published, which proposes to present the contributions (related
only to the service provided by the employee in the year) carried out by the employees
or third parties in the defined-benefit plans for reduction of the service cost of the year
in which this contribution is paid. The need for this proposal arose with the introduction
of the new IAS 19 (2011), where it is considered that these contributions are to be
interpreted as part of a postemployment benefit, rather than a benefit for a brief
period, and, therefore, that this contribution must be spread over the employee’s
years of service. The changes apply starting from the financial years which began on
1 February 2015 or a later date. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 12 December 2013, the document “Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012
Cycle” was published, which includes the changes to some principles within the scope
of the annual improvement process of same. The main changes involve: IFRS 2 Share
Based Payments - Definition of vesting condition; IFRS 3 Business Combination -
Accounting for contingent consideration, IFRS 8 Operating segments - Aggregation
of operating segments/Reconciliation of total of the reportable segments’ assets
to the entity’s assets, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Short-term receivables
and payables, 1AS 16 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
- Revaluation method: proportionate restatement of accumulated depreciation/
amortisation, IAS 24 Related Parties Disclosures - Key management personnel. The
changes apply starting from the financial years which began on 1 February 2015 or a
later date. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 6 May 2014 the 1ASB issued some amendments to the standard IFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements - Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations” related
to the accounting of the acquisition of equity interests in a joint operation whose activity
consists of a business within the meaning of IFRS 3. The modifications require that
the standards set forth in IFRS 3 related to the recognition of the effects of a business
combination are applied for these cases. The changes apply from 1 January 2016, but
early application is permitted. At the present time, these cases are not applicable for the
Group, since there are no joint operations.

On 12 May 2014, the IASB issued some amendments to IAS 16 “Property, plant
and Equipment” and to IAS 38 Intangible Assets - “Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation”. The changes to IAS 16 establish that
the determining depreciation and amortisation criteria based on the revenues are not
appropriate, since, according to the amendment, the revenues generated by an activity
that includes the activity subject to depreciation and amortisation generally reflect
factors other than only consumption of the economic benefits of the activity itself. The
changesto IAS 38introduce a rebuttable presumption, according to which a depreciation
and amortisation criterion based on revenues is considered to be an inappropriate
regulation for the same reasons established by the modifications introduced to IAS 16.
In the case of the intangible assets this presumption can however be overcome, but only
inlimited and specific circumstances. The changes apply from 1 January 2016, but early
application is permitted. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 25 September 2014, the 1ASB published the document “Annual Improvements to
IFRSs: 2012-2014 Cycle”. The changes introduced by the document apply as from the
financial years which begin on 1 January 2016 or a later date. The document introduces
changes to the following standards:

IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

IFRS 7 - Financial instruments: Disclosure.
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IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting.

The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 18 December 2014, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative.

The objective of the changes is to provide clarification with regard to elements of

information which could be perceived as impediments to a clear and intelligible

preparation of the financial statements. The following changes were made:

e Materiality and aggregation: it was clarified that a company should not obscure
information by adding to it or subtracting from it and that considerations relating to
materiality apply to financial statements, notes to financial statements and specific
IFRS information requirements. The disclosures specifically required by the IFRS
should only be provided if the information is material;

e Statement of financial position and comprehensive income statement: it was
clarified that the list of items specified by IAS 1 can be disaggregated or aggregated
as the case may be. A guideline on the use of sub-totals within the tables is also
provided;

e Presentation of elements of Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI"): it is clarified
that the share of OCl of associate companies and joint ventures consolidated using
the net equity method should be presented in aggregate in a single item, in turn
divided between components susceptible or not susceptible to future income
statement reclassifications;

 Notes to the financial statements: it is clarified that the entities enjoy flexibility in
defining the structure of the notes to the financial statements and guidelines are
provided on how to systematically order these notes.

The changes introduced by the document apply starting from the financial years which

beginon 1January 2016 ora later date.The directors do not expect a significant effect on

the Group's consolidated financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations not yet
approved by the European Union

On the reference date of these consolidated financial statements the competent bodies
of the European Union have not yet concluded the approval process necessary for the
adoption of the amendments and principles described below.

On 30 January 2014, the 1ASB published the standard IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral
Accounts, which consents the recognition of the amounts related to the activities subject
to regulated rates ("Rate Regulation Activities") according to the preceding accounting
standards adopted only to those that adopt the IFRS for the first time. Since the Group
was not a firsttime adopter, this standard is not applicable.

On 28 May 2014, the IASB published the standard IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts

with Customers, which will replace IAS 18 - Revenue and IAS 11 - Construction

Contracts, as well as interpretations IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC

15 - Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets

from Customers and SIC 31 - Revenues-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising

Services. The new revenue recognition model will apply to all contracts signed with

customers except for those which come under the scope of application of other IAS/

IFRS principles such as leasing, insurance contracts and financial instruments. The

fundamental passages for the recognition of revenues according to the new model are:

o theidentification of the contract with the customer;

e the identification of the contract performance obligations;

e the determining of the price;

e the allocation of the price to the contract performance obligations;

e the criteria of entry of the revenue when the entity satisfies each performance
obligation

The principle applies from 1 January 2018, but early application is permitted. Although
the systematic analysis of the case and in particular a detailed analysis of the contracts
with the customers have not yet been completed, the directors do not expect that
the application of IFRS 15 can have a significant impact on the amounts recorded

for the revenues and on the related disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

0n 24 July2014,the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 - Financial instruments.
The document includes the results of the phases relating to the classification and
valuation, impairment and hedge accounting of the I1ASB project designed to replace
1AS 39. The new standard, which replaces the previous versions of IFRS 9, should be
applied by financial statements from 1 January 2018 onwards.

On 13 January 2016, the IASB published the standard IFRS 16 - Leases, which will
replace the standard IAS 17 - Leases, as well as interpretations IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease.

The new standard provides a new definition of lease and introduces a criterion based on
the control (right of use) of an asset in order to distinguish the leasing contracts from the
service contracts, identifying the discriminatory ones: the identification of the asset, the
right of replacement of the same, the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits deriving from the use of the asset and the right to direct the use of the asset
underlying the contract.

The standard applies from 1 January 2019, but early application is permitted, only for
the companies that have applied IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
at an early date. The directors do not expect that the application of IFRS 16 can have
a significant impact on the accounting of the leasing contracts and on the related
disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it is not possible
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect as long as the Group has not completed a
detailed analysis of the related contract.

On 11 September 2014, the I1ASB published the amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
- Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture. The document was published for the purpose of resolving the current conflict
between IAS 28 and IFRS 10. At the present time, this case is not applicable for the
Group.
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Comments on significant balance
sheet items

1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PLANT AND ASSETS UNDER
PROPERTY EQUIPMENT OTHER ASSETS CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

COST
A » BER 20 51,886 163,906 33,326 1,941 251,059
Increases 78 4,586 2,349 2,845 9,858
Disposals - (1,211) (34) - (1,245)
Reclassifications 6 711 206 (936) (15)
Forex differences 207 186 44 2 439
A » BER 2014 52,177 168,178 35,891 3,850 260,096
Increases 119 8,574 1,753 1,135 11,581
Disposals - (1,173) (93) (14) (1,280)
Var. areas of consolidation - 112 160 - 272
Reclassifications - 2,750 105 (2,899) (44)
Forex differences (1,071) (1,912) (667) (13) (3,663)
A D BER 20 51,225 176,529 37,149 2,059 266,962
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

12,703 134,603 28,052 - 175,358
Depreciation for the year 1,458 7,417 2,399 - 11,274
Eliminations for disposals - (1,125) (36) - (1,161)
Reclassifications 6 (15) 76 - 67
Forex differences 1" 52 12 - 75
A » BER 2014 14,178 140,932 30,503 - 185,613
Depreciation for the year 1,450 7,277 2,421 - 11,148
Eliminations for disposals - (1,101) (108) - (1,209)
Var. areas of consolidation - 1 20 - 21
Reclassifications 5 35 20 - 60
Forex differences (163) (1,085) (460) - (1,708)
A D BER 20 15,470 146,059 32,396 - 193,925
NET CARRYING VALUE

35,755 30,470 4,753 2,059 73,037

37,999 27,246 5,388 3,850 74,483
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The breakdown of the net carrying value of Property was as follows:

.
Land 6,624 6,900 (276)
Industrial buildings 29,131 31,099 (1,968)
TOTAL 35,755 37,999 (2,244)

The net carrying value of industrial property includes an amount of €2,297,000
(€2,382,000 at 31 December 2014) relating to industrial buildings held under finance
leases.

The main investments in the year aimed at increasing production capacity and the
further automation of production of light alloy valves. The machinery necessary for
the production launch in China was produced and production capacity at the Turkish
plant was also further increased. Investments were also made to improve production
processes - including the purchase of new alcohol washing facilities - and investments
were made in maintenance and replacement, designed to keep the capital equipment
constantly updated. Decreases mainly relate to the disposal of machinery no longer
in use. Assets under construction include machinery under construction and advance
payments to suppliers of capital equipment.

At 31 December 2015, the Group found no endogenous or exogenous indicators of
impairment of its property, plantand equipment. As a result, the value of property, plant
and equipment was not submitted to impairment testing.

2. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COSsT

Increases -
Disposals -
Increases -
Disposals (121)
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation for the year 446
Eliminations for disposals -
Depreciation for the year 442
Eliminations for disposals (47)
NET CARRYING VALUE

This item includes non-operating buildings owned by the Group: these are mainly
properties for residential use held for rental or sale.
At 31 December 2015, the Group found no endogenous or exogenous indicators of

impairment of its investment property. As a result, the value of property, plant and
equipment was not submitted to impairment testing.
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL o S I
AND KNOW-HOW ASSETS

COsT

A D BER 20 9,008 5,877 3,834 592 19,311

Increases - 103 484 52 639

Reclassifications - - - - -

Decreases - - - - R

Forex differences - - - - -

Increases - 193 414 155 762

Reclassifications - 66 47) - 19

Decreases - - - - -

Forex differences - (8) - - 8)
5,008 6,231 4,685 799 20,723

AMORTISATIONS/WRITE-DOWNS

Amortisation 2014 - 208 343 19 570

Decreases - - - - R

Forex differences - - B R -
4,563 5,528 2,011 489 12,591

Amortisation 2015 - 209 336 67 612

Decreases - - - - R

Forex differences - (5) - - (5)
4,563 5,732 2,347 556 13,198

NET CARRYING VALUE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 4,445 499 2,338 243 7,525

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 4,445 452 2,307 155 7,359
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Goodwill

The Group verifies the ability to recover goodwill at least once a year or more frequently
if there are indications of value impairment. Recoverable value is determined through
value of use, by discounting expected cash flows. Goodwill booked in the balance sheet
mainly arises from the acquisition of Faringosi Hinges S.r.l. and is allocated to the
"Hinges" CGU (cash generating unit).

In the course of 2015 the CGU Hinges achieved better net results compared with the
previous year, in terms of both the development of sales and profitability, which turned
out to be largely positive and greater than the 2015 budget. The CGU has benefited
from the initiatives undertaken aimed at increasing operative efficiency, from the
commencement of the sales of special products and from the strengthening of the
dollar, into which around 30% of the turnover is divided.

The forward plan 2016-2020, drafted at the end of 2015, plans a further gradual
improvement of sales and profitability, to be considered as sustainably purchased also
going forward. At 31 December 2015, the Group tested the carrying value of its CGU
Hinges for impairment, determining its recoverable value, considered to be equivalent
to its usable value, by discounting expected future cash flow in the forward plan drafted

by the management. Cash flows for the period 2016-2020 were augmented by the so-
called terminal value, which expresses the operating flows that the CGU is expected to

generate from the sixth year to infinity and determined based on the perpetual income.
The value of use was calculated based on a discount rate (WACC) of 8.45% (8.76% in
the impairment test conducted while drafting the separate financial statements at 31
December 2015) and a growth rate (g) of 1.50%, which is in line with historical data.

The recoverable value calculated on the basis of the above-mentioned valuation
assumptions and techniques is €11,764 million, compared with a carrying value of the
assets allocated to the CGU Hinges of €7,203 million; consequently, the value recorded
for goodwill at 31 December 2015 was deemed recoverable.

The performance of sales, profitability and orders in the first months of 2016 confirms
the positive trend on which the development of the plan is based.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the changes in recoverable value depending on changes in the WACC discount rate and growth factor g:

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO RO RA

» O RA 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00%
7.45% 12,921 13,337 13,788 14,279 14,815
7.95% 11,969 12,320 12,698 13,106 13,549
8.45% 11,144 11,443 11,764 12,108 12,480
8.95% 10,424 10,681 10,956 11,249 11,564
9.45% 9,788 10,012 10,249 10,501 10,771

Patents, software and know-how Development costs

Software investments include the extension of the application area and the companies
covered by the Group's management system (SAP) and the realisation of the new website.

The main investments in the year related to the development of new products, including
various versions of special burners and a new model of light-alloy kitchen valves for the
Brazilian market (research and development activities conducted over the year are set
out in the Report on Operations).




4. INVESTMENTS

sir2zom | PURCHASESOF | ColicibaTion
METHOD
Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan) 796 -
Sabaf US 139 - - 139
Other shareholdings 39 26 - 65
TOTAL 974 26 (796) 204

At the start of these consolidated financial statements the subsidiary Sabaf Appliance
Component Kunshan is consolidated using the full line-by-line consolidation method
rather than the net equity method.

The subsidiary Sabaf U.S. operates as a commercial base for North America. The carrying
value of the investment is deemed recoverable taking into consideration expected
developments on the North American market.

In the course of the year, a participation corresponding to 4.25% of the share capital
in the public-private limited liability consortium CSMT GESTIONE s.ca.rl. in the
amount of 25,000 euros was acquired. The participation in the CSMT permits the
Sabaf Group to have access to a pool of technical competences that derive from the
collaboration between universities, research centres and companies and to participate
in technological innovation projects.

5. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Tax receivables 395 518 (123)
Guarantee deposits 35 9 26
Other 2 2 -
TOTAL 432 529 (97)

Tax receivables relate to indirect taxes expected to be recovered after 2016.

6. INVENTORIES

31.12.2015

31.12.2014 CHANGE

Commodities 10,407 10,497 (90)
Semi-processed goods 10,564 10,355 209
Finished products 12,155 12,141 14
Obsolescence provision (2,117) (2,219 102
TOTAL 31,009 30,774 235

The value of final inventories at 31 December 2015 remained substantially unchanged compared with the end of the previous year. The obsolescence provision reflects the improved
estimate of the obsolescence risk, based on specific analyses conducted at the end of the year on slow-moving and non-moving products.
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The geographical breakdown of trade receivables was as follows:

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Italy 16,591 17,214 (623)
Western Europe 1,746 3,106 (1,360)
Eastern Europe and Turkey 9,668 8,595 1,073
Asia and Oceania 1,875 2,560 (685)
South America 4,481 3,247 1,234
Middle East and Africa 4,412 4,685 (273)
North America and Mexico 2,666 1,783 883
GROSS TOTAL 41,439 41,190 249
Provision for doubtful accounts (1,014) (669) (345)
NET TOTAL 40,425 40,521 (96)

At 31 December 2015, trade receivables included balances totalling approximately USD approximately €23.5 million in insured credits (€13 million at 31 December 2014).The
5,023,000, booked at the EUR/USD exchange rate in effect on 31 December 2015, i.e. provision for doubtful accounts was increased during the financial year (by €345,000),
1.0887. The amount of trade receivables recognised in accounts includes €2.3 million mainly following the deterioration of the situation of an Italian customer.

of receivables assigned on a no-recourse basis (€6.3 million at 31 December 2014) and

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Current receivables (not past due) 35,497 35,285 212
Outstanding up to 30 days 2,498 2,200 298
Outstanding from 31 to 60 days 570 932 (362)
Outstanding from 61 to 90 days 812 507 305
Outstanding for more than 90 days 2,062 2,266 (204)
TOTAL 41,439 41,190 249
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8. TAX RECEIVABLES

31.12.2014 CHANGE

From Giuseppe Saleri SapA for IRES 1,204 1,262 (58)
From inland revenue for VAT 70 464 (394)
From inland revenue for IRAP 614 - 614
Other tax receivables 601 664 (63)
TOTAL 2,489 2,390 99

Since 2004, the Italian companies of the Group have been part of the national tax
consolidation scheme pursuant to Articles 117/129 of the Unified Income Tax Law. This
option was renewed in 2013 for another three years. In this scheme, Giuseppe Saleri
S.a.p.A., the parent company of Sabaf S.p.A., acts as the consolidating company.

At 31 December 2015 the receivable from Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A. includes, at
€1,159,000, the receivable from the full deductibility of IRAP from IRES relating to
the expenses incurred for employees for the period 2006-2011 (Legislative Decree

201/2011), for which the consolidating company has presented an application for a
refund and which will revert to the Sabaf Group companies for the share pertaining to
them as soon as it is refunded.

Other tax receivables mainly refer to receivables in respect of indirect Brazilian and
Turkish taxes.

9. OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

31.12.2014 CHANGE

Credits to be received from suppliers 865 311 554
Advances to suppliers 170 93 77

Other 412 691 (279)
TOTAL 1,447 1,095 352

At 31 December 2015 Credits to be received from suppliers included €411,000 related to the relief due to the parent company as an energy-intensive business (so-called "energy-

intensive bonuses") for the years 2014 and 2015.

10. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Derivative instruments on interest rates 69

- 69

TOTAL 69

0 ‘ 69

At 31 December 2015 this item includes the positive fair value of a USD 4,384,000 forward sale contract maturing at 31 December 2015.

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, which amounted to €3,991,000 at 31 December 2015 (€2,958,000 at 31 December 2014) consisted of bank current account balances of approximately

€3.8 million and sight deposits of approximately €0.2 million.
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12. SHARE CAPITAL

The parent company's share capital consists of 11,533,450 shares with a par value of
€1.00 each. The share capital paid in and subscribed did not change during the year.

13. TREASURY SHARES

During the financial year Sabaf S.p.A. acquired 61,571 treasury shares at an average
unit price of €11.675; there have been no sales.

At 31 December 2015, the parent company Sabaf S.p.A. held 62,078 treasury shares,
equal to 0.538% of share capital (507 treasury shares at 31 December 2014), reported
in the financial statements as an adjustment to shareholders’ equity at a unit value of
€11.653 (the market value at year-end was €11.419).

There were 11,471,372 outstanding shares at 31 December 2015 (11,532,943 at

31 December 2014).

14. LOANS

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
NON NON
S CURRENT S G CURRENT

Property leasing 142 1,756 138 1,898
Property 934 - 924 935
mortgages
Unsecured loans 2,707 4,632 2,660 7,340
Short-term 13,666 ) 9,647 )
bank loans
Advances
on bank receipts 5,988 - 6,203 -
or invoices
Interest payable 43 - 41 -
TOTAL 23,480 6,388 19,613 10,173

All outstanding bank loans are denominated in euro, at a floating rate linked to the
Euribor, with the exception of a short-term loan of USD 1.3 million and a short-term
loan of 1.5 million Turkish lira.

The loans are not bound by contractual provisions (covenants).

Note 36 provides information on financial risks, pursuant to IFRS 7.

15. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

m 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Derivative instruments

on foreign exchange 17 105 (88)
rates

Der.lvat\ve instruments 14 B 14
on interest rates

TOTAL 31 105 (74)

At 31 December 2015, this item included:

e the negative fair value of a term sales contract for USD 0.825 million atan exchange
rate of 1.12 agreed with regard to the foreign exchange rate risk described in
Note 36. Exchange rate losses of the same amount were recorded in the income
statement;

o the negative fair value of an IRS hedging rate risks of an unsecured loan pending,
maturing at 30 September 2019. Exchange rate losses in the same amount were
recognised in the income statement.

16. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT
AND RETIREMENT RESERVES

0 31.12.2014

LIABILITIES

AT 1 JANUARY R e
Financial expenses 40 58
Amounts paid out (105) (158)
Actuarial gains and losses (49) 283
LIABILITIES

AT 31 DECEMBER 22l 3:028

Following the revision of IAS 19 - Employee benefits, from 1 January 2013 all actuarial
gains or losses are recorded immediately in the comprehensive income statement
("Other comprehensive income") under the item "Actuarial income and losses".

Post-employment benefits are calculated as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS 0 31.12.2014
Discount rate 1.60% ‘ 1.40%

Inflation 2.00% ‘ 2.00%
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DEMOGRAPHIC
THEORY

Mortality rate

ISTAT 2010 M/F

ISTAT 2010 M/F

Disability rate

INPS 1998 M/F

INPS 1998 M/F

Staff turnover

6% per year of all ages

6% per year of all ages

Advance payouts

5% per year

5% per year

Retirement age

pursuant to legislation
in force
on 31 December 2015

pursuant to legislation
in force
on 31 December 2014

According to article 83 of IAS 19, which relates to the definition of actuarial assumptions
and specifically the discount rate, these should be determined with reference to the
yields on high-quality corporate bonds, i.e. those with low credit risk. With reference to
the definition of "Investment Grade" securities, for which a security is defined as such if
it has a rating equal to or higher than BBB from S&P or Baa2 from Moody's, only bonds
issued from corporate issuers rated "AA" were considered, on the assumption that this
category identifies a high rating level within all investment grade securities, and thereby
excludes the riskiest securities. Given that 1AS 19 does not make explicit reference to
a specific sector of industry, it was decided to adopt a "composite” market curve that
summarised the market conditions existing on the date of valuation of securities issued
by companies operating in different sectors, including the utilities, telephone, financial,
banking and industrial sectors. For the geographical area, the calculation was made with
reference to the euro zone.

17. RESERVES FOR RISKS AND CONTINGENCIES

EXCHANGE
014 PROVISIONS UTILIZATION REIE')E(QZESOF RATE 31.12.2015
DIFFERENCES

Reserve

for agents’ indemnities 335 31 :

Product guarantee fund 160 8 (108) - - 60
Reserve for legal risks 111 10 0] (70) (12) 38
TOTAL 606 49 (109) (139) (12) 385

The reserve for agents' indemnities covers amounts payable to agents if the Group
terminates the agency relationship.

The product warranty reserve covers the risk of returns or charges by customers for
products already sold. The fund was adjusted at the end of the year, on the basis of
analyses conducted and past experience.

The reserve for legal risks, set aside for moderate disputes, was partly utilized during the

year for payments made to settle several outstanding disputes.

The provisions booked to the reserve for risks and contingencies, which represent the
estimate of future payments made based on historical experience, have not been time-
discounted because the effect is considered negligible.

18. TRADE PAYABLES

The geographical breakdown of trade payables was as follows:

Italy 15,249 15,223 26
Western Europe 2,895 2,897 (2)

Eastern Europe and Turkey 651 360 291
Asia 459 502 (43)
South America 184 255 (71)
Middle East and Africa 1 - 1

North America and Mexico 1 91 (90)
TOTAL 19,450 19,328 122

Average payment terms did not change versus the previous year. At 31 December 2015, there were no overdue payables of a significant amount, and the Group had not received any

injunctions for overdue payables.
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19. TAX PAYABLES

20. OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES

gzpC)iAluseppe Saler 5 1575 (1.418) Due to employees 4,032 4,160 (128)
forincome tex To social security 2,022 2,290 (268)
Withholding taxes 844 712 132 nstitutions
Frominiang Due to agents 317 342 (25)
revenue for IRAP ) 4 @7 Prepayments

from customers 103 279 (7e)
Other tax payables 218 19 99

Other current 63 84 21
TOTAL 1,219 2,453 (1,234) payables

TOTAL 6,538 7,155 (617)

The payable to Giuseppe Saleri SapA relates to the balance of income tax transferred by
the Group's Italian companies to the parent company as part of the tax consolidation
agreementin place. The other tax payables mainly refer to loans for income tax payables
of the Group's foreign companies.

At the beginning of 2016, payables due to employees and social security institutions
were paid in accordance with the scheduled expiry dates.

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31.12.2014

Deferred tax assets 4,887 5,579
Deferred tax liabilities 772 (692)
NET POSITION 4,115 4,887

The table below analyses the nature of the temporary differences that determine the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets and their movements during the year and the

previous year.

Actuarial post-

DeP"::Latio" Pr:;lisiclms ::Zir value PR Other
smofiaions | dvale | of devorve nconives [soncresne| ey
A D BER (67) 1,453 5 1,993
Income statement " (286) 29 - 77 - 9) (178)
Shareholders’ equity - - (5 - - 78 - 73
Forex differences ) 2 - - 52 - 1 53
A D BER (58) 1,169 29 1,993 1,285 233 236 4,887
Income statement 28 (135) (43) (222) (318) (33) 112 611)
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - - - -
Forex differences 4 (20) - - (124) - (21) (161)
A D BER (26) 1,014 (14) (1,771) 843 200 327 4,115

Tax assets relating to goodwill, equal to €1,993,000, refer to the redemption of the
value of the investment in Faringosi Hinges s.r.l. made in 2011. The future tax benefit
can be made in ten annual portions starting in 2018.

Deferred tax assets and tax incentives relate to investments made in Turkey, for which
the Group benefited from tax breaks recognised on income generated in Turkey for up
to 30% of the investments made and for which a tax advantage is recognised.

At 31 December 2015 the Group's Italian companies accounted for the adjustment of
the deferred taxation (reduction of the IRES rate from 27.5% to 24% from 2017 provided
by the Stability Law [Legge di Stabilita] 2016), recognising overall a negative effect in
the income statement of € 425,000 (Note 32).
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22. NET FINANCIAL POSITION

As required by the CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, we disclose that the Company's net financial position is as follows:

0 31.12.2014 CHANGE

A. Cash (Note 9) " 9 2

B Positive balances of unrestricted bank 3,802 2,691 1131
accounts (Note 9)

C. Other cash equivalents 158 258 (100)

D. LIQUIDITY (A+B+C) 3,991 2,958 1,033

E. Current bank payables (Note 14) 19,697 15,890 3,807
Current portion of non-current debt

F. (Note 14) 3,783 3,723 60
Other non-current financial payables

G (Note 15) 31 105 (74)

H. CURRENT FINANCIAL DEBT (E+F+G) 23,511 19,718 3,793

L CURRENT NET FINANCIAL DEBT 19,520 16,760 2,760
(H-D)

J. Non-current bank payables (Note 14) 4,632 8,275 (3,643)
Other non-current financial payables

K. (Note 14) 1,756 1,898 (142)

L NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL DEBT 6,388 10,173 (3,785)
(J+K)

M. NET FINANCIAL DEBT (I+L) 25,908 26,933 (1,025)

The consolidated cash flow statement shows changes in cash and cash equivalents (letter D of this schedule).
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23. REVENUES

In 2015, sales revenues totalled €138,003,000, up by €1,666,000 (+1.2%) compared with 2014.

Revenue by product family

Brass valves 12,689 9.2% 13,741 10.1% -7.7%

Light alloy valves 33,784 24.5% 34,006 24.9% -0.7%

Thermostats 10,596 7.7% 12,288 9.0% -13.8%
Standard burners 37,789 27.4% 36,160 26.5% +4.5%
Special burners 21,622 15.7% 20,251 14.9% +6.8%
Accessories 13,577 9.8% 12,928 9.5% +5.0%
TOTAL GAS PARTS 130,057 94.3% 129,374 94.9% +0.5%
Hinges 7,946 5.7% 6,963 5.1% +14.1%
TOTAL 138,003 100% 136,337 100% +1.2%

Revenues by geographical area

2014 % % CHANGE

Italy 41,244 29.9% 42,277 31.0% -2.4%
Western Europe 7,438 5.4% 8,716 6.4% -14.7%
Eastern Europe 35,125 25.5% 36,198 26.6% -3.0%
Middle East and Africa 16,759 12.1% 16,871 12.4% -0.7%
Asia and Oceania 7,019 5.0% 6,907 5.0% +1.6%
South America 20,815 15.1% 18,324 13.4% +13.6%
North America and Mexico 9,603 7.0% 7,044 5.2% +36.3%
TOTAL 138,003 100% 136,337 100% +1.2%

During 2015 there was a decrease in sales on the European markets, more marked
in Western Europe also due to a further shift in production of household appliances
towards countries with lower labour costs. Better results were obtained on the non-
European markets, with a sizable increase in sales on the American continent, also
favoured by the strong dollar.

The analysis per product family shows a rather marked decrease for valves and
thermostats (more significant for brass products), a substantial stability of sales of
standard burners and a good increase of sales of special burners, also thanks to the

introduction of new high energy efficiency models. Particularly significant is the
increase in sales of hinges, subsequent to the launch of supplies of special new models
and favoured by the revaluation of the dollar compared with the euro.

Average sales prices in 2015 were around 1% lower compared with 2014.

Refer to the Report on Operations for more detailed comments on the trends that
marked the Group's market over the year.
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24. OTHER INCOME

Sale of trimmings 2,822 2,922 (100)
Contingent 263 218 45
income

Rental income 117 132 (15)
Use of provisions

for risks and 69 26 43
contingencies

Other income 487 450 37
TOTAL 3,758 3,748 10

26. COSTS FOR SERVICES
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, el

Outsourced 9,823 10,662 (839)
processing

Natural gas and 4,902 5,201 299)
power

Maintenance 3,556 3,999 (443)
Freight, carriage, 2059 2032 27
transport

Advisory services 1,670 1,440 230
Directors 1,101 868 233
remuneration

Travel expenses 884 687 197
and allowances

Commissions 651 881 (230)
Insurance 506 385 121
Canteen 430 400 30
Temporary 164 184 (20)
agency workers

Other costs 4,013 3,136 877
TOTAL 29,759 29,875 (116)

The fall in outsourced processing costs was due to the partial insourcing of some phases
of burner production. The reduction in energy costs results from the reduction in the
price of electrical energy and gas; consumption has remained substantially unchanged.
The reduction in maintenance costs is linked to the normal cyclicality of maintenance
operations; the maintenance policies, aimed at guaranteeing constant efficiency of all
the production plants, did not register any changes. The increase in insurance costs is
attributable to the introduction of a commercial insurance cover policy (simultaneously
no-recourse factoring commissions, previously the prevalent form of credit guarantee,
were reduced). Costs for advisory services related to technical (€461,000), sales
(€396,000) and legal, administrative and general (€813,000) services.

Other costs included charges by customers, expenses for the registration of patents,
leasing third-party assets, cleaning costs, waste disposal costs and other minor charges.

25. MATERIALS

Commodities

and outsourced 49,431 49,782 (351)
components

Consumables 4,935 4,690 245

TOTAL 54,366 54,472 (106)

The effective purchase prices of the principal raw materials (brass, aluminium and steel
alloys) increased on average by around 5% versus 2014. Consumption (purchases plus
change ininventory) as a percentage of sales was 38.7%in 2015, compared with 38.2%
in2014.

27. PERSONNEL COSTS
4

Salaries 21,974 21,812 162
and wages

Social security 7.110 7,113 3)
costs

Temporary 1,340 1,406 (©6)
agency workers

Post-employment

benefit reserve 2102 1,849 253
and other

payroll costs

TOTAL 32,526 32,180 346

Average Group headcountin 2015 totalled 748 employees (590 blue-collars, 145 white-
collars and supervisors, 13 managers), compared with 730 in 2014 (578 blue-collars,
141 white-collars and supervisors, 11 managers). The average number of temporary
staff, with supply contract, was 72 in 2015 (64 in 2014).

During the year the Group made occasional use of the temporary unemployment
fund in periods characterized by low production requirements: this allowed savings in
personnel costs of €333,000 (€160,000 in 2014).
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28. OTHER OPERATING COSTS

m 2014 CHANGE

30. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

m 2014 CHANGE

toaiZir e 498 510 (12) Interest paid to banks 260 247 13
Other administrative Interest paid on finance

127 152 25
expenses @) lease contracts 2 36 )
Contingent liabilities 163 141 22 IRS spreads payable 14 2 12
Losses and write-downs
of trade receivables 356 115 241 Bank charges 237 239 2
Reserves for risks 18 102 (84) Other financial 55 68 (13)

expenses

Other provisions 31 22 9 TOTAL 595 592 3
TOTAL 1,193 1,042 151

Non-income taxes chiefly relate to property tax.
Provisions refer to the allocations to the reserves described in Note 17.

29. WRITE-DOWNS/WRITE-BACKS OF
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CHANGE

(548)

Investment write-down 0 548

TOTAL ‘ 0 ‘ 548 ‘ (548)

The write-down of investments reported in 2014 refers entirely to the zeroing of the
carrying value of Sabaf Mexico, whose liquidation was concluded during 2015.

31. EXCHANGE RATE GAINS AND
LOSSES

In 2015, the Group reported net foreign exchange losses of €89,000, versus net gains
of €119,000in 2014.

In the financial year, the subsidiary Sabaf Turkey partially reimbursed the share capital
inthe amount of 4 million Turkish lira to the parent company Sabaf S.p.A. This operation
determined the recognition in the consolidated income statement of an exchange rate
loss of €458,000, from the difference between the average exchange rate at which the
capital was paid in and the exchange rate on the reimbursement date.

32. INCOME TAX

0 2014 CHANGE

Current tax 3,935 3,832 103
Deferred tax 611 273 338
Balance of previous FY (71) (286) 215
TOTAL 4,475 3,819 656

The current income taxes include the IRES of €2,616,000, the IRAP of €538,000 and
foreign income taxes of €781,000 (€2,440,000, €1,177,000 and €215,000 respectively
in2014).
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Reconciliation between the tax burden booked in year-end financial statements and the
theoretical tax burden calculated according to the statutory tax rates currently in force in

Italy is shown in the following table:

0 2014

Theoretical income tax 3,705 3,343
Permanent tax differences 51 90
Previous years' tax (44) (279)
Tax effect from different foreign tax rates (114) (101)
Effect of non-recoverable tax losses 149 -
Booklng of tax incentives for investments (165) (352)
in Turkey

Adjustment of the deferred taxation for a 425 )
change in the IRES rate (Note 21)

Other differences (55) (47)
Income taxes booked in the accounts,

excluding IRAP and withholding taxes 3,952 2,654
(current and deferred)

IRAP (current and deferred) 523 1,165
TOTAL 4,475 3,819

Theoretical taxes were calculated applying the current corporate income tax (IRES)
rate, i.e. 27.50%, to the pre-tax result. IRAP is not taken into account for the purpose of
reconciliation because, as it is a tax with a different assessment basis from pre-tax profit,

it would generate distortive effects.

No significant tax disputes were pending at 31 December 2015.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted EPS are calculated based on the following data:

EARNINGS 0 2014
Euro ‘000 ‘ Euro '000
Net profit for period 8,998 ‘ 8,338
NUMBER OF SHARES 0 2014
Weight_ed average number of ordinary shares for 11523219 | 11532943
determining basic earnings per share
Dilutive effect from potential ordinary shares - -
Weight§§ average numbgr of ordinary shares for 11523219 | 11,532,943
determining diluted earnings per share
EARNINGS PER SHARE (€) 0 2014
Basic earnings per share 0.781 0.723
Diluted earnings per share 0.781 0.723

Basic earnings per share are calculated on the average number of outstanding
shares minus treasury shares, equal to 10,231in 2015 (507 in 2014).

Diluted earnings per share are calculated taking into account any shares approved
but not yet subscribed, of which there were none in 2015 and 2014.

34. DIVIDENDS

On 27 May 2015, shareholders were paid an ordinary dividend of €0.40 per share (total
dividends of €4,613,000).

The Directors have recommended payment of a dividend of €0.48 per share this
year. This dividend is subject to approval of shareholders in the annual Shareholders’
Meeting and was not included under liabilities.

The dividend proposed is scheduled for payment on 25 May 2016 (ex-date 23 May and
record date 24 May).

35. INFORMATION
BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Below is the information by business segment for 2015 and 2014.

FY 2014

s | o | e, Jrnaes | Tom

PARTS

Sales 130,048 ‘ 7,955 ‘138,003‘ 129,355 ‘ 6,982 ‘136,337
gzjtaﬁ"g 13,493 ‘ 598 ‘ 14,091 ‘ 13,377 ‘ (202) ‘ 13,175
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36. INFORMATION ON
FINANCIAL RISK

Categories of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS 7, a breakdown of the financial instruments is shown below,
among the categories set forth in 1AS 39.

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

e Cash and cash equivalents 3,991 2,958

e Trade re:ceivables and 41872 41,616

other receivables
Income statement fair value

o Derivative cash flow hedges 69 0
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31.12:2015 | 31.12.2014
Amortised cost

e Loans 29,868 29,786

® Trade payables 19,450 19,328
Income statement fair value

e Derivative cash flow hedges 31 105

The Group is exposed to financial risks related to its operations, mainly:

o credit risk, with special reference to normal trade relations with customers;

o market risk, relating to the volatility of prices of commodities, foreign exchange and
interest rates;

o liquidity risk, which can be expressed by the inability to find financial resources
necessary to ensure Group operations.

It is part of the Sabaf Group's policies to hedge exposure to changes in prices and in
fluctuations in exchange and interest rates via derivative financial instruments. Hedging
is done using forward contracts, options or combinations of these instruments. Generally
speaking, the maximum duration covered by such hedging does not exceed 18 months.
The Group does not enter into speculative transactions. When the derivatives used for
hedging purposes meet the necessary requisites, hedge accounting rules are followed.

Credit risk management

Trade receivables involve producers of domestic appliances, multinational groups
and smaller manufacturers in a few or single markets. The Company assesses the
creditworthiness of all its customers at the start of supply and systemically on at least an
annual basis. After this assessment, each client is assigned a credit limit.

Since 1 November 2014 there has been a credit insurance policy, which guarantees
cover for approximately 60% of trade receivables.

Credit risk relating to customers operating in emerging economies is generally
attenuated by the expectation of revenue through letters of credit.

Forex risk management

The key currencies other than the euro to which the Group is exposed are the US dollar
and the Brazilian real and the Turkish lira, in relation to sales made in dollars (chiefly
on some Asian and American markets) and the production units in Brazil and Turkey.
Salesin US dollars represented 12% of total revenue in 2015, while purchases in dollars
represented 3% of total revenue. Transactions in dollars were partly hedged by these
derivative financial instruments: at 31 December 2015 the Group had in place forward
sales contracts for a total of 5,209,000 dollars, maturing on 31 December 2016.

Sensitivity analysis

With reference to financial assets and liabilities in US dollars at 31 December 2015, a
hypothetical and immediate revaluation of 10% of the euro against the dollar would
have led to a loss of €417,000, without considering the pending forward sale contracts.

Interest rate risk management

The Group borrows money at a floating rate; to reach an optimum mix of floating and
fixed rates in the structure of the loans, the Group assesses whether to use derivative
financial instruments designating them to cash flow hedges. During the financial year,
the Group concluded an interest rate swap (IRS) contract for amounts and maturities
coinciding with an unsecured loan in the course of being amortised, whose residual
value at 31 December 2015 is € 3,977 million. The contract was not designated as
a cash flow hedge and is therefore recognised using the “fair value in the income
statement” method.

Sensitivity analysis

With reference to financial assets and liabilities at variable rate at 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014, a hypothetical increase (decrease) in the interest rate of 100
base points versus the interest rates in effect at the same date - all other variables being
equal - would lead to the following effects:

CASH FLOW FINANCIAL CASH FLOW
HEDGE EXPENSES HEDGE
RESERVE RESERVE

FINANCIAL

EXPENSES

Increase of 100
base points

Decrease of 100
base points
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Commodity price risk management

A significant portion of the Group's acquisitions is represented by brass, steel and
aluminium alloys. Sales prices of products are generally renegotiated annually; as a
result, the Group is unable to immediately pass on to clients any changes in the prices
of commodities during the year. The Group protects itself from the risk of changes in the
price of brass and aluminium with supply contracts signed with suppliers for delivery up
to twelve months in advance or, alternatively, with derivative financial instruments. In
2015and 2014, the Group did not use financial derivatives on commodities. To stabilise
the rising costs of commodities, Sabaf preferred to execute transactions on the physical
market, fixing prices with suppliers for immediate and deferred delivery.

Liquidity risk management

The Group operates with a low debt ratio (net financial debt / shareholders' equity at
31 December 2015 of 23%, net financial debt / EBITDA of 0.99) and has unused short-
term lines of credit. To minimise the risk of liquidity, the Administration and Finance
Department:

® maintains a correct balance of net financial debt, financing investments with capital
and with medium to long-term debt.

o verifies systematically that the short-term accrued cash flows (amounts received
from customers and other income) are expected to accommodate the deferred cash
flows (short-term financial debt, payments to suppliers and other outgoings);

e regularly assesses expected financial needs in order to promptly take any corrective
measures.

Below is an analysis by expiration date of financial payables at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014:

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CARRYING CONTRACTUAL WITHIN M(!.:)RN?xS3TO FROM 1 MORE THAN
VALUE FINANCIAL FLOWS 3 MONTHS 1 YEAR TO 5 YEARS 5 YEARS
Short-term bank loans 19,697 19,697 17,697 2,000 - -
Unsecured loans 7,339 7,506 700 2,099 4,707 -
Property mortgages 934 942 - 942 - -
Finance leases 1,898 2,195 47 141 754 1,253
TOTAL FINANCIAL PAYABLES 29,868 30,340 18,444 5,182 5,461 1,253
Trade payables 19,450 19,450 18,350 1,100 - -
TOTAL 49,318 49,790 36,794 6,282 5,461 1,253
A D BER 2014
ARR ONTRA A S He 5 RO OR A
A A A O O o O AR '\
Short-term bank loans 15,891 15,891 15,891 - - -
Unsecured loans 10,000 10,336 702 2,105 7,529 -
Property mortgages 1,858 1,884 - 942 942 -
Finance leases 2,037 2,384 47 141 754 1,442
TOTAL FINANCIAL PAYABLES 29,786 30,495 16,640 3,188 9,225 1,442
Trade payables 19,328 19,328 18,234 1,094 - -
TOTAL 49,114 49,823 34,874 4,282 9,225 1,442

The various due dates are based on the period between the balance sheet date and
the contractual expiration date of the commitments, the values indicated in the chart
correspond to non-discounted cash flows. Cash flows include the shares of principal and

interest; for floating rate liabilities, the shares of interest are determined based on the
value of the reference parameter at the financial year-end and increased by the spread
set forth in each contract.
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Hierarchical levels of the fair value assessment

The revised IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments reported in the statement
of financial position at fair value be classified based on a hierarchy that reflects the LEVEL2 | LEVEL3 | TOTAL

significance of the input used in determining the fair value. Current financial assets ‘o ‘0

IFRS 7 makes a distinction between the following levels: (derivatives on currency) ) )

o Level T-quotations found on an active market for assets or liabilities subject TOTAL ASSETS 0 69 0 69
to assessment; Other il i

. N . . N . . er rinancial liabilities

e Level 2-input other than prices listed in the previous point, which can be observed (derivatives on currency) - 17 - 17
(prices) or indirectly (derivatives from prices) on the market; Other financial liabilities

e Level 3-input based on observable market data (derivatives - 14 - 14

on interest rates)
The following table shows the assets and liabilities valued at fair value at 31 December TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 31 0 31

2015, by hierarchical level of fair value assessment.

37. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between consolidated companies were eliminated from the consolidated financial statements and are not reported in these notes. The table below illustrates the impact
of all transactions between the Group and other related parties on the balance sheet and income statement.

Impact of related-party transactions on balance sheet accounts

TOTAL 2015 PARENT UNCONSOLIDATED | OTHER RELATED | TOTAL RELATED IMPACT
COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES PARTIES PARTIES ON THE TOTAL

Trade receivables 40,425 0.10%

Tax receivables 2,489 1,204 - - 1,204 48.37%

Tax payables 1,219 157 - - 157 12.88%
COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES PARTIES PARTIES ON THE TOTAL

Trade receivables 40,521 12 12 0.28%

Tax receivables 2,390 1,262 - - 1,262 52.80%

Tax payables 2,453 1,575 - - 1,575 64.21%

Impact of related-party transactions on income statement accounts

TOTAL 2015 PARENT UNCONSOLIDATED | OTHER RELATED | TOTAL RELATED IMPACT
COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES PARTIES PARTIES ON THE TOTAL

Other income 3,758 0.27%

Services (29,759) - (180) (34) (214) 0.72%
COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES PARTIES PARTIES ON THE TOTAL

Otherincome 3,748 10 . : 10 027%

Services (29,875) - (82) - (82) 0.27%

Write-downs of

- - 1O
non-current assets (548) (548) (548) 100.00%

Profits and losses
from equity (606) - (606) - (606) 100.00%
investments
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Transactions with the ultimate parent company, Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A., comprise: Transactions are regulated by specific contracts regulated at arm'’s length conditions.
e administration services provided by Sabaf S.p.A. to the parent company; Transactions with non-consolidated subsidiaries were solely of a commercial nature.
e transactions as part of the domestic tax consolidation scheme, which generated

the payables and receivables shown in the tables.

Remuneration to directors, statutory auditors and executives with strategic responsibilities

Please see the 2015 Report on Remuneration for this information.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2015, there were no equity-based incentive plans for the Group's directors and employees.

39. SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, the Group declares that it did not execute any significant non-recurring transactions during 2015.

40. ATYPICALAND/OR UNUSUAL TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, the Group declares that no atypical and/or unusual transactions as defined by the CONSOB memorandum were
executed during 2015.

41. COMMITMENTS

Guarantees issued

The Sabaf Group has issued sureties to guarantee consumer and mortgage loans granted by banks to Group employees for a total of €6,010,000 (€6,249,000
at 31 December 2014).
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42. CONSOLIDATION AREA AND SIGNIFICANT EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Companies consolidated using the full line-by-line consolidation method

COMPANY NAME REGISTERED OFFICES SHARE CAPITAL SHAREHOLDERS % OWNERSHIP

Faringosi Hinges s.r.l. Ospitaletto (BS) EUR 90,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%
Sabaf Immobiliare s.r.l. Ospitaletto (BS) EUR 25,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%
Sabaf do Brasil Ltda Jundiai (SP, Brazil) BRL 24,000,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%
Sabaf Beyaz Esya Parcalari Sanayi Manisa (Turkey) TRK 28,000,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%

Ve Ticaret Limited Sirteki

Sabaf Appliance Components
Trading Ltd.

Sabaf Appliance Components Ltd. Kunshan (China) EUR 4,400,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%

Kunshan (China) EUR 200,000 Sabaf S.p.A. 100%

Non-consolidated companies valued at cost

COMPANY NAME REGISTERED OFFICES SHARE CAPITAL SHAREHOLDERS % OWNERSHIP

Sabaf US Corp. ‘ Plainfield (USA) ‘ USD 100,000 ‘ Sabaf S.p.A. ‘ 100%

Other significant equity investments: none

43. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PARENT COMPANY

Registered and administrative office: Tax information:
Via dei Carpini, 1 R.E.A. Brescia: 347512
25035 Ospitaletto (Brescia) Tax identification number: 03244470179

VAT number: 1101786910982
Contacts
Tel.: +39030 - 6843001
Fax: +39 030 - 6848249
E-mail: info@sabaf.it
Website: www.sabaf.it
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APPENDIX

Information as required by Article 149/12 of the CONSOB Issuers’ Regulation

The following table, prepared pursuant to Article 149/12 of the CONSOB Issuers’ Regulation, shows fees relating to 2015 for the independent auditor and for services other than
auditing provided by the same auditing firm and its network.

B . PAYMENTS PERTAINING TO THE
IN THOUSANDS OF EURO OVID RECIPIENT PERIOD 2015

Audit Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. Direct parent company 52
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. Italian subsidiaries 20

Deloitte network Sabaf do Brasil 23

Deloitte network Sabaf Turkey 25

Certification services Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. Direct parent company 21
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. Italian subsidiaries 11
Other services Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. Direct parent company 152
Deloitte network Sabaf do Brasil 23

TOTALE 140

1 Signing of Unifed Tax Return, IRAP and 770 forms.

2 Auditing procedures agreement relating to interim management reports, auditing of statements and training activities.

3 Tax assistance regarding transfer pricing.
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SABAF

CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

in accordance with Article 154 bis of Legislative Decree 58/98

Alberto Bartoli, the Chief Executive Officer, and Gianluca Beschi, the Financial Reporting Officer of Sabaf S.p.A., have taken
into account the requirements of Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 1998
and can certify:

e the appropriateness in relation to the characteristics of the company and
e the effective application

of the administrative and accounting principles for drafting the consolidated annual report and accounts in the course of the
financial year 2015.

e the Consolidated Annual Report and Accounts:

- were prepared in accordance with the international accounting policies recognised in the European Community in
accordance with EC regulation 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19 July 2002 and Article 9 of
Legislative Decree 38/2005;
correspond to the results of the accounting entries and ledgers;
are appropriate to provide a truthful and correct picture of the income statement, balance sheet and cash flow of the
issuer and the companies included in the consolidation;

e theinterimreportincludesa credible analysis of the performance and results of operations and the situation of the issuer
and the companies included in the area of consolidation, along with a description of the key risks and uncertainties to
which they are exposed.

Ospitaletto, 22 March 2016

The Chief Executive Officer The Financial Reporting Officer
Alberto Bartoli Gianluca Beschi

| %“I\ja:t«'f | L. V / |
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{Apinion

in our opinien, The consolidsied finmneial strtements give & e and fiic view of the finasctal posidon
of the Sabaf Group as ot December 31, 2015, and of its finuncial perfomuance and cash flows fure the
year then ended in secondance with Infernational Financinl Reporting Standards as adopead by the
Elntpean Linico amd the requirements &f national repulstions iemied punaser 1o s Y of Hafo
Legisharive Decree 0° JR2005,

KReport oo Cither Legal and Regulatory Reqgairements

Opimioe on the eonsivmey of the report pn opermifvs oo Bf certaln iaformatine inclisdiad i the
repart on corparalt govermance with the consolidaied finamcinl matematy

We have performed ihe procedioes indicated in the Audilng Smadard (54 ltalia) o T20B in wder
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above mre consiatent with the comsolidated financial stiements of the Sabaf Group s 5t December 31,
20035,

DELCATTE & TOUCTHE Sap.A

Nigried by
Prergrulio Bizioli
Fariner

Birescin, lealy
Murch 30, 2016
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Balance sheet and financial position

IN EURO

ASSETS

NOTES 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 1 31,939,736 31,393,333
Real estate investments 2 1,837,259 2,029,304
Intangible assets 3 3,197,864 3,232,240
Investments 4 45,819,480 44,837,629
Non-current financial assets 5 1,837,054 1,659,556
of which from related parties 37 1,837,054 1,659,556
Non-current receivables 9,183 6,800
Deferred tax assets 21 3,284,696 3,611,023
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 87,925,272 86,769,885
Current assets
Inventories 24,674,840 25,077,020
Trade receivables 7 32,870,713 34,695,488
of which from related parties 37 2,008,185 1,142,546
Tax receivables 8 1,749,451 1,526,943
of which from related parties 37 1,113,702 1,083,666
Other current receivables 9 1,197,919 1,283,256
of which from related parties 37 0 521,328
Current financial assets 10 1,069,431 0
of which from related parties 37 1,000,000 0
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,089,671 1,366,374
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 62,652,025 63,949,081
Assets held for sale 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 150,577,297 150,718,966
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 12 11,533,450 11,533,450
Retained earnings, other reserves 79,058,252 76,482,904
Net profit for the year 5,642,123 7,877,868
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 96,233,825 95,894,222
Non-current liabilities
Loans 14 4,631,730 7,339,849
Post-employment benefit and retirement reserves 16 2,527,275 2,640,850
Reserves for risks and contingencies 17 326,140 514,744
Deferred tax 21 150,017 35,394
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,635,162 10,530,837
Current liabilities
Loans 14 21,762,487 18,438,481
Other financial liabilities 15 13,610 0
Trade payables 18 18,202,899 17,572,698
of which to related parties 37 852,935 0
Tax payables 19 787,676 1,724,829
of which to related parties 37 0 1,091,582
Other liabilities 20 5,941,638 6,557,899
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,708,310 44,293,907
Liabilities held for sale 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 150,577,297 150,718,966
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Income statement

IN EURO NOTES 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Operating revenue and income

Revenues 23 113,962,039 115,919,460
of which from related parties 37 7,274,762 4,728,669
Other income 24 2,733,344 2,974,909
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE AND INCOME 116,695,383 118,894,369
Operating costs
Materials 25 (43,860,895) (44,818,617)
Change in inventories (402,180) 1,202,031
Services 26 (28,750,556) (29,795,239)
of which by related parties 37 (4,162,137) (4,000,697)
Payroll costs 27 (27,967,750) (27,937,849)
Other operating costs 28 (821,303) (549,664)
Costs for capitalised in-house work 1,230,058 989,372
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS (100,572,626) (100,909,966)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION, CAPITAL GAINS/ 16.122.757 17.984.403
LOSSES, WRITE-DOWNS/WRITE-BACKS OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS ! ' ' '
Depreciation and amortisation 1,2,3 (8,736,191) (9,042,940)
Capital gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets 157,965 148,465
Write-downs/write-backs of non-current assets 29 1,302,841 617,597
of which by related parties 37 1,302,841 617,597
OPERATING PROFIT 8,847,372 9,707,525
Financial income 73,091 84,467
Financial expenses 30 (500,483) (466,068)
Exchange rate gains and losses 31 (260,920) 236,630
Profits and losses from equity investments 32 0 970,196
of which by related parties 37 0 970,196
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 8,159,060 10,532,750
Income tax 33 (2,516,937) (2,654,882)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,642,123 7,877,868
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Comprehensive income statement

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,642,123 7,877,868

Total profits/losses that will not later be reclassified under profit (loss) for the year:

o Actuarial post-employment benefit reserve evaluation 37,619 (242,646)
* Tax effect (8,114) 66,728
29,505 (175,918)

Total profits/losses that will later be reclassified under profit (loss) for the year:

o Cash flow hedges 0 (26,227)
® Tax effect 0 5,482

0 (20,745)
Total profits/(losses) net of taxes for the year 29,505 (196,663)
TOTAL PROFIT 5,671,628 7,681,205

Share R TOTAL
IN THOUSANDS Share A Legal Treasury post-employment Other Net income 0
B premium 3 shareholders'
OF EURO capital reserve shares benefit reserve reserves | for the year 5
reserve . equity
evaluation
» BER 11,533 10,002 2,307 (5) 21 (359) 77,130 3,730 104,359
0
Ordinary
dividend (883) (3,730) (4,613)
Extraordinary
dividend (11,533) (11,533)
Total profit at
31 December 21) (176) 0 7,878 7,681
2014
D BER 11,533 10,002 2,307 (5) 0 (535) 64,714 7,878 95,894
014

Allocation of 2014 earnings

e dividends
paid out

® toreserve 3,265 (3,265)

Purchase of
treasury shares

(4,613) (4,613)

(718) (718)

Total profit at
31 December 29 0 5,642 5,671
2015

D BER 11,533 10,002 2,307 (723) 0 (506) 67,979 5,642 96,234
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Cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,366 2,345
Net profit for period 5,642 7,878
Adjustments for:

e Depreciation and amortisation 8,736 9,043
¢ Realised gains (158) (148)
e Write-downs of non-current assets (1,303) (618)
¢ Net financial income and expenses 427 382

e Differences in exchange on non-monetary activities 281 -

® Income tax 2,517 2,655
Change in post-employment benefit reserve (149) 110
Change in risk provisions (189) 96
Change in trade receivables 1,825 (3,095)
Change in inventories 402 (1,202)
Change in trade payables 630 663
Change in net working capital 2,857 (3,634)
Change in other receivables and payables, deferred tax 75 409
Payment of taxes (3,814) (1,702)
Payment of financial expenses (465) (431)
Collection of financial income 73 84
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS 14,531 14,124
Investments in non-current assets

® intangible (646) (687)
¢ tangible (9,601) (7,952)
e financial (1,394) (1,150)
Disposal of non-current assets 2,606 760
CASH FLOW ABSORBED BY INVESTMENTS (9,035) (9,030)
Repayment of loans (7,834) (4,503)
Raising of loans 8,463 14,784
Change in financial assets (1,069 (208)
Sale of treasury shares (719) 0
Payment of dividends (4,613) (16,146)
CASH FLOW ABSORBED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5,772) (6,073)
TOTAL FINANCIAL FLOWS (276) (979)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 11) 1,090 1,366
Current financial debt 21,776 18,438
Non-current financial debt 4,632 7,340
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (NOTE 22) 25,318 24,412
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Explanatory notes

Accounting Standards

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Sabaf S.p.A. individual year-end accounts for the financial year 2015 have been
prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by
the European Union. Reference to the IFRS also includes all current International
Accounting Standards (IAS).

The separate financial statements are drawn up in euro, which is the currency in the
economy in which the Company operates. The income statement, the comprehensive
income statement and the statement of financial position schedules are prepared in
euro, while the comprehensive income statement, the cash flow, and the changes in
shareholders’ equity schedules and the values reported in the explanatory notes are in
thousands of euro.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for some
revaluations of property, plant and equipment undertaken in previous years, and are
considered a going concern. The Company found that, despite the difficult economic
and business climate, there were no significant uncertainties (as defined by paragraphs
25 and 26 of 1AS 1) regarding the continuity of the Company, also due to the strong
competitive position, high profitability and solidity of the financial structure.

Sabaf S.p.A., as the Parent Company, also prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Sabaf Group at 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has adopted the following formats:

e current and non-current assets and current and non-current liabilities are stated
separately in the statement of the financial position;

 anincome statement that expresses costs using a classification based on the nature
of each item;

e acomprehensive income statement that expresses revenue and expense items not
recognised in profit for the year as required or permitted by IFRS;

e a cash flow statement that presents financial flows originating from operating
activity, using the indirect method.

Use of these formats permits the most meaningful representation of the Company's
capital, business and financial status.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting standards and policies applied for the preparation of the separate
financial statements as at 31 December 2015, unchanged versus the previous year, are
shown below:

Property, plant and equipment

These are recorded at purchase or manufacturing cost. The cost includes directly
chargeable ancillary costs. These costs also include revaluations undertaken in the past
based on monetary revaluation rules or pursuant to company mergers.

Depreciation is calculated according to rates deemed appropriate to spread the carrying
value of tangible assets over their useful working life. Estimated useful working life, in
years, is as follows:

Buildings 3
Light constructions 10
General plant 10
Specific plant and machinery 6-10
Equipment 4
Furniture 8
Electronic equipment 5
Vehicles and other transport means 5

Ordinary maintenance costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred; costs
that increase the asset value or useful working life are capitalised and depreciated
according to the residual possibility of utilization of the assets to which they refer.

Land is not depreciated.

Investment properties

Investment property is valued at cost, including revaluations undertaken in the past
based on monetary revaluation rules or pursuant to company mergers.

The depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful life, considered to be
33 years. If the recoverable amount of investment property - determined based on
the market value of the real estate - is estimated to be lower than its carrying value,
the asset's carrying value is reduced to the lower recoverable amount, recognising
impairment of value in the income statement.

When there is no longer any reason for a write-down to be maintained, the carrying
value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the new value stemming from the estimate of
its recoverable amount - but not beyond the net carrying value that the asset would have
had if it had not been written down for impairment of value. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income in the income statement.
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Intangible assets

As established by IAS 38, intangible assets acquired or internally produced are
recognised as assets when it is probable that use of the asset will generate future
economic benefits and when asset cost can be measured reliably. If it is considered that
these future economic benefits will not be generated, the development costs are written
down in the year in which this is ascertained.

Such assets are measured at purchase or production cost and - if the assets concerned
have a finite useful life - are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful life. The useful life of projects for which development costs are capitalised is
estimated to be 10 years. The SAP management system is amortised over five years.

Equity investments and non-current receivables

Equity investments not classified as held for sale are booked at cost, reduced for
impairment. Non-current receivables are stated at their presumed realisable value.

Impairment of value

At each balance sheet date, Sabaf S.p.A. reviews the carrying value of its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and equity investments to determined whether there
are signs of impairment of the value of these assets. If there is any such indication,
the recoverable amount of said assets is estimated so as to determine the total of the
write-down. If it is not possible to estimate recoverable value individually, the Company
estimates the recoverable value of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs. In particular, the recoverable value of the cash generating units (which
generally coincide with the legal entity to which the capitalised assets refer) is verified
by determining the value of use. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling
price and value of use. In measuring the value of use, future cash flows net of taxes,
estimated based on past experience, are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
rate that reflects fair market valuations of the present cost of money and specific asset risk.
The main assumptions used for calculating the value of use concern the discount rate,
growth rate, expected changes in selling prices and cost trends during the period used
for the calculation. The growth rates adopted are based on future market expectations
in the relevant sector. Changes in the sales prices are based on past experience and on
the expected future changes in the market. The Company prepares operating cash flow
forecasts based on the most recent budgets approved by the Boards of Directors of the
subsidiaries, draws up four-year forecasts and determines the terminal value (current
value of perpetual income), which expresses the medium and long term operating
flows in the specific sector.

Furthermore, the Company checks the recoverable value of its subsidiaries at least once
a year when the separate financial statements are prepared.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be lower than its carrying
value, the asset's carrying value is reduced to the lower recoverable amount, recognising
impairment of value in the income statement.

When there is no longer any reason for a write-down to be maintained, the carrying
value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the new value stemming from the estimate of
its recoverable amount - but not beyond the net carrying value that the asset would have
had if it had not been written down for impairment of value. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of purchase or production cost - determined
using the weighted average cost method - and the corresponding fair value represented

by the replacement cost for purchased materials and by the presumed realisable
value for finished and semi-processed products - calculated taking into account any
manufacturing costs and direct selling costs yet to be incurred. Inventory cost includes
accessory costs and the portion of direct and indirect manufacturing costs that can
reasonably be assigned to inventory items. Inventories subject to obsolescence and low
turnover are written down in relation to their possibility of use or realisation. Inventory
write-downs are eliminated in subsequent years if the reasons for such write-downs
cease to exist.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised at their presumed realisable value. Their face value is
adjusted to a lower realisable value via specific provisioning directly reducing the item
based on in-depth analysis of individual positions. Trade receivables assigned on a
no-recourse basis, despite being transferred legally, continue to be stated with "Trade
receivables” until they are collected. Advance payments obtained with regard to the sale
of trade receivables are recognised under current loans.

Current and non-current financial assets

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, allocating profit and loss
effects to finance income or expense.

Reserves for risks and contingencies

Reserves for risks and contingencies are provisioned to cover losses and debts, the
existence of which is certain or probable, but whose amount or date of occurrence
cannot be determined at the end of the year. Provisions are stated in the statement of
financial position only when a legal or implicit obligation exists that determines the use
of resources with an impact on profit and loss to meet that obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. If the effect is significant, the provisions are calculated by
updating future financial flows estimated at a rate including taxes such as to reflect
current market valuations of the current value of the cash and specific risks associated
with the liability.

Post-employment benefit reserve

The reserve for Italian post-employment benefit obligations is provisioned to cover the
entire liability accruing vis-a-vis employees in compliance with current legislation and
with national and supplementary company collective labour contracts. This liability is
subject to revaluation via application of indices fixed by current regulations. Up to 31
December 2006, post-employment benefits were considered defined-benefit plans and
accounted for in compliance with IAS 19, using the projected unit-credit method. In the
light of these changes, and, in particular, for companies with at least 50 employees,
post-employment benefits must now be considered a defined-benefit plan only for the
portions accruing before 1 January 2007 (and not yet paid as at the balance sheet date).
Conversely, portions accruing after that date are treated as defined-contribution plans.

Actuarial gains or losses are recorded immediately under "Other total profits/(losses)".

Payables

Payables are recognised at face value; the portion of interest included in their face value
and not yet payable at period-end is deferred to future periods.
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Loans

Loans are initially recognised at cost, net of related costs of acquisition. This value is
subsequently adjusted to allow for any difference between initial cost and repayment
value over the loan's duration using the effective interest rate method.

Loans are classified among current liabilities unless the Company has the unconditional
right to defer discharge of a liability by at least 12 months after the reference date.

Policy for conversion of foreign currency items

Receivables and payables originally expressed in foreign currencies are converted into
euro at the exchange rates in force on the date of the transactions originating them.
Forex differences realised upon collection of receivables and payment of payables in
foreign currency are posted in the income statement. Income and costs relating to
foreign-currency transactions are converted at the rate in force on the transaction date.
At year-end, assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are posted at the
spot exchange rate in force at year-end and related foreign exchange gains and losses
are posted in the income statement. If conversion generates a net gain, this value
constitutes a non-distributable reserve until it is effectively realised.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Company's business is exposed to financial risks relating to changes in exchange
rates, commodity prices and interest rates. The Company may decide to use derivative
financial instruments to hedge these risks.

The Company does not use derivatives for trading purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at cost and are then adjusted to fair value on
subsequent closing dates.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and recognised as effective for
hedging future cash flows relating to the Company's contractual commitments
and planned transactions are recognised directly in shareholders' equity, while the
ineffective portion is immediately posted in the income statement. If the contractual
commitments or planned transactions materialise in the recognition of assets or
liabilities, when such assets or liabilities are recognised, the gains or losses on the
derivative that were directly recognised in equity are factored back into the initial
valuation of the cost of acquisition or carrying value of the asset or liability. For cash flow
hedges that do not lead to recognition of assets or liabilities, the amounts that were
directly recognised in equity are included in the income statement in the same period
when the contractual commitment or planned transaction hedged impacts profit and
loss - for example, when a planned sale actually takes place.

For effective hedges of exposure to changes in fair value, the item hedged is adjusted
for the changes in fair value attributable to the risk hedged and recognised in the
income statement. Gains and losses stemming from the derivative's valuation are also
posted in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are
recognised in the income statement in the period when they occur.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold or is
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies as a hedge. At this time, the cumulative gains
or losses of the hedging instrument recognised in equity are kept in the latter until the
planned transaction actually takes place. If the transaction hedged is not expected to
take place, cumulative gains or losses recognised directly in equity are transferred to
the year's income statement.

Embedded derivatives included in other financial instruments or contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not strictly related to
those of their host contracts and the latter are not measured at fair value with posting of
related gains and losses in the income statement.

Revenue reporting

Revenue is reported net of retum sales, discounts, allowances and bonuses, as well as of
the taxes directly associated with sale of goods and rendering of services.

Sales revenue is reported when the company has transferred the significant risks and
rewards associated with ownership of the goods and the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured.

Revenues of a financial nature are recorded on an accrual basis.

Financial income

Finance income includes interest receivable on funds invested and income from
financial instruments, when not offset as part of hedging transactions. Interest income
is recorded in the income statement at the time of vesting, taking effective output into
consideration.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses include interest payable on financial debt calculated using the
effective interest method and bank expenses.

Income taxes for the year

Income taxes include all taxes calculated on the Company's taxable income. Income
taxes are directly recognised in the income statement, with the exception of those
concerning items directly debited or credited to shareholders’ equity, in which case
the tax effect is recognised directly in shareholders equity. Other taxes not relating to
income, such as property taxes, are included among operating expenses. Deferred taxes
are provisioned in accordance with the global liability provisioning method. They are
calculated on all temporary differences that emerge from the taxable base of an asset
or liability and its book value. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when income taxes are levied by the same tax authority and when there is a legal right
to settle on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax
rates that are expected to be applicable in the years when temporary differences will
be realised or settled.

Dividends

Dividends are posted on an accrual basis when the right to receive them materialises,
i.e. when shareholders approve dividend distribution.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are booked in a specific reserve as a reduction of shareholders’ equity.
The carrying value of treasury shares and revenues from any subsequent sales are
recognised in the form of changes in shareholders’ equity.
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Use of estimates

Preparation of the separate financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the disclosures on contingent assets and liabilities as of the
balance sheet date. Actual results might differ from these estimates. Estimates are used
to measure tangible and intangible assets and investments subject to impairment
testing, as described earlier, as well as to measure the ability to recover prepaid tax
assets, credit risks, inventory obsolescence, depreciation and amortisation, asset write-
downs, employee benefits, taxes, other provisions and reserves. Specifically:

Recoverability of value of tangible and intangible assets and investments
The procedure for determining impairment of value of tangible and intangible assets
described in “Impairment of value" implies - in estimating the value of use - the use
of the Business Plans of subsidiaries, which are based on a series of assumptions and
hypotheses relating to future events and actions of the subsidiaries’ management
bodies, which may not necessarily come about. In estimating market value, however,
assumptions are made on the expected trend in trading between third parties based on
historical trends, which may not actually be repeated.

Provisions for credit risks

Credit is adjusted by the related provision for doubtful accounts to take into account
its recoverable value. To determine the size of the write-downs, management must
make subjective assessments based on the documentation and information available
regarding, among other things, the customer’s solvency, as well as experience and
historical payment trends.

Provisions for inventory obsolescence

Warehouse inventories subject to obsolescence and slow turnover are systematically
valued, and written down if their recoverable value is less than their carrying value.
Write-downs are calculated based on management assumptions and estimates,
resulting from experience and historical results.

Employee benefits

The current value of liabilities for employee benefits depends on a series of factors
determined using actuarial techniques based on certain assumptions. Assumptions
concern the discount rate, estimates of future salary increases, and mortality and
resignation rates. Any change in the above-mentioned assumptions might have an
effect on liabilities for pension benefits.

Income tax

Determining liabilities for Company taxes requires the use of management valuations
in relation to transactions whose tax implications are not certain on the balance sheet
date. Furthermore, the valuation of deferred taxes is based on income expectations for
future years; the valuation of expected income depends on factors that might change
over time and have a significant effect on the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Other provisions and reserves

When estimating the risk of potential liabilities from disputes, management relies
on communications regarding the status of recovery procedures and disputes from
the lawyers who represent the Company in litigation. These estimates are determined
taking into account the gradual development of the disputes, considering existing
exemptions. Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed and the effects of each
change immediately reflected in the income statement.

New accounting standards

Accounting standards and amendments applicable from 1 January 2015
The following IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations were
applied for the first time by the Company from 1 January 2015:

On 20 May 2013, the interpretation IFRIC 21 - Levies was published, which clearly
provides at the time of recognition of a liability related to taxes (other than income
taxes) imposed by a government agency. The standard is concerned with both the
liabilities for taxes within the scope of application of 1AS 37 - Provisions, potential
assets and liabilities, and those for taxes whose timing and amount are certain. The
interpretation is applied retrospectively for the years starting from 17 June 2014 at the
latest or a later date. The adoption of this new interpretation did not have any effect on
the Company's separate financial statements.

On 12 December 2013, the IASB published the document “Annual Improvements
to IFRSs: 2011-2013 Cycle”, which includes the changes to some principles within
the scope of the annual improvement process of same. The main changes involve:
IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Scope exception for joint ventures; IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement - Scope of portfolio exception (par. 52); IAS 40 Investment
Properties - Interrelationship between IFRS 3 and IAS 40.The changes apply starting
from the financial years which began on 1 January 2015 or a later date. The adoption
of these amendments did not have any effect on the Company's separate financial
statements.

IFRS and IFRIC accounting standard, amendments approved by the
European Union, not yet universally applicable and not adopted early by
the Company at 31 December 2015

0On 21 November 2013 the amendment to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions” was published, which proposes to present the contributions (related
only to the service provided by the employee in the year) carried out by the employees
or third parties in the defined-benefit plans for reduction of the service cost of the year
in which this contribution is paid. The need for this proposal arose with the introduction
of the new IAS 19 (2011), where it is considered that these contributions are to be
interpreted as part of a postemployment benefit, rather than a benefit for a brief
period, and, therefore, that this contribution must be spread over the employee’s
years of service. The changes apply starting from the financial years which began on
1 February 2015 or a later date. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the
Company's separate financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 12 December 2013, the document “Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012
Cycle” was published, which includes the changes to some principles within the scope
of the annual improvement process of same. The main changes involve: IFRS 2 Share
Based Payments - Definition of vesting condition; IFRS 3 Business Combination -
Accounting for contingent consideration, IFRS 8 Operating segments - Aggregation
of operating segments/Reconciliation of total of the reportable segments’ assets
to the entity’s assets, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Short-term receivables
and payables, IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment and 1AS 38 Intangible Assets
- Revaluation method: proportionate restatement of accumulated depreciation/
amortisation, IAS 24 Related Parties Disclosures - Key management personnel.The
changes apply starting from the financial years which began on 1 February 2015 or a
later date. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Company's separate
financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 6 May 2014 the IASB issued some amendments to the standard IFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements - Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations” related
to the accounting of the acquisition of equity interests in a joint operation whose activity
consists of a business within the meaning of IFRS 3. The modifications require that
the standards set forth in IFRS 3 related to the recognition of the effects of a business
combination are applied for these cases. The changes apply from 1 January 2016, but
early application is permitted. At the present time, these cases are not applicable for the
Company, since there are no joint operations.

On 12 May 2014, the IASB issued some amendments to IAS 16 “Property, plant and
Equipment”and to IAS 38 Intangible Assets - “Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation”. The changes to IAS 16 establish that the determining
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depreciation and amortisation criteria based on the revenues are not appropriate, since,
according to the amendment, the revenues generated by an activity that includes the
activity subject to depreciation and amortisation generally reflect factors other than
only consumption of the economic benefits of the activity itself. The changes to IAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption, according to which a depreciation and amortisation
criterion based on revenues is considered to be an inappropriate regulation for the
same reasons established by the modifications introduced to IAS 16. In the case of the
intangible assets this presumption can however be overcome, but only in limited and
specific circumstances. The changes apply from 1 January 2016, but early application
is permitted. The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Company's separate
financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 25 September 2014, the IASB published the document “Annual Improvements
to IFRSs: 2012-2014 Cycle”. The changes introduced by the document apply starting
from the financial years which begin on 1 January 2016 or a later date. The document
introduces changes to the following standards:

IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

IFRS 7 - Financial instruments: Disclosure.

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting.

The directors do not expect a significant effect on the Company's separate financial
statements through the adoption of these changes.

0n 18 December 2014, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative.
The objective of the changes is to provide clarification with regard to elements of infor-
mation which could be perceived asimpediments to a clear and intelligible preparation
of the financial statements. The following changes were made:

e Materiality and aggregation: it was clarified that a company should not obscure
information by adding to it or subtracting from it and that considerations relating to
materiality apply to financial statements, notes to financial statements and specific
IFRS information requirements. The disclosures specifically required by the IFRS
should only be provided if the information is material;

Statement of financial position and comprehensive income statement: it was clarified
that the list of items specified by IAS 1 can be disaggregated or aggregated as the
case may be. A guideline on the use of sub-totals within the tables is also provided;
Presentation of elements of Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI"): it is clarified that
the share of OCI of associate companies and joint ventures consolidated using the
net equity method should be presented in aggregate in a single item, in turn divided
between components susceptible or not susceptible to future income statement
reclassifications;

Notes to the financial statements: it is clarified that the entities enjoy flexibility in
defining the structure of the notes to the financial statements and guidelines are
provided on how to systematically order these notes.

The changes introduced by the document apply starting from the financial years which
begin on 1 January 2016 or a later date. The directors do not expect a significant effect
on the Company's separate financial statements through the adoption of these changes.

On 12 August 2014, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements. The document introduces the option of using the
shareholders’ equity method for valuing investments in subsidiaries, companies under
joint control and associate companies in the separate financial statements of an entity.
As a result, following the introduction of the amendment, an entity can record these
investments in its separate financial statements, alternatively: at cost; or in accordance
with the provisions of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39); or using the net equity method.

The changes apply from 1 January 2016, but early application is permitted. The directors
have not yet assessed whether to use this option in the Company's separate financial
statements from 1 January 2016.

IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations not yet
approved by the European Union
On the reference date of these separate financial statements the competent bodies

of the European Union have not yet concluded the approval process necessary for the
adoption of the amendments and principles described below.

On 30 January 2014, the IASB published the standard IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral
Accounts, which consents the recognition of the amounts related to the activities
subject to regulated rates ("Rate Regulation Activities”) according to the preceding
accounting standards adopted only to those that adopt the IFRS for the first time. Since
the Company was not a first-time adopter, this standard is not applicable.

On 28 May 2014, the IASB published the standard IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts

with Customers, which will replace IAS 18 - Revenue and 1AS 11 - Construction

Contracts, as well as interpretations IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC

15 - Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets

from Customers and SIC 31 - Revenues-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising

Services. The new revenue recognition model will apply to all contracts signed with

customers except for those which come under the scope of application of other 1AS/

IFRS principles such as leasing, insurance contracts and financial instruments. The

fundamental passages for the recognition of revenues according to the new model are:

o the identification of the contract with the customer;

e the identification of the contract performance obligations;

e the determining of the price;

o the allocation of the price to the contract performance obligations;

e the criteria of entry of the revenue when the entity satisfies each performance
obligation.

The principle applies from 1 January 2018, but early application is permitted. Although

the systematic analysis of the case and in particular a detailed analysis of the contracts

with the customers have not yet been completed, the directors do not expect that the

application of IFRS 15 can have a significant impact on the amounts recorded for the

revenues and on the related disclosures in the Company's separate financial statements.

0On 24 July 2014, the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 - Financial instruments.
The document includes the results of the phases relating to the classification and
valuation, impairment and hedge accounting of the IASB project designed to replace
IAS 39.The new standard, which replaces the previous versions of IFRS 9, should be
applied by financial statements from 1 January 2018 onwards.

On 13 January 2016, the IASB published the standard IFRS 16 - Leases which will
replace the standard IAS 17 - Leases, as well as interpretations IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease.

The new standard provides a new definition of lease and introduces a criterion based on
the control (right of use) of an asset in order to distinguish the leasing contracts from the
service contracts, identifying the discriminatory ones: the identification of the asset, the
right of replacement of the same, the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits deriving from the use of the asset and the right to direct the use of the asset
underlying the contract.

The standard applies from 1 January 2019, but early application is permitted, only for
the companies that have applied IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
at an early date. The directors do not expect that the application of IFRS 16 can have
a significant impact on the accounting of the leasing contracts and on the related di-
sclosures in the Company's separate financial statements. However, it is not possible to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect as long as the Group has not completed a
detailed analysis of the related contract.

On 11 September 2014, the IASB published the amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
- Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture.The document was published for the purpose of resolving the current conflict
between IAS 28 and IFRS 10. At the present time, this case is not applicable for the
Company.
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Comments on significant
balance sheet items

1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PLANT AND ASSETS UNDER
PROPERTY EQUIPMENT OTHER ASSETS CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

COST

A » BER 20 6,163 146,296 27,741 1,635 181,835

Increases 39 3,315 1,894 2,704 7,952

Disposals - (2,282) (65) (145) (2,492)

Reclassification 6 456 9 (485) (14)
6,208 147,785 29,579 3,709 187,281

Increases 67 7,802 1,038 749 9,656

Disposals - (2,891) (106) - (2,997)

Reclassification - 2,668 63 (2,786) (55)

A » BER 20 6,275 155,364 30,574 1,672 193,885

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation for the year 173 6,096 1,891 - 8,160
Eliminations for disposals - (1,690) (60) (145) (1,895)
A » BER 2014 2,535 127,774 25,579 0 155,888
Depreciation for the year 176 5,847 1,841 - 7,864
Eliminations for disposals - (1,701) (106) - (1,807)
A D BER 20 2,711 131,920 27,314 0 161,945
NET CARRYING VALUE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 3,564 23,444 3,260 1,672 31,940

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 3,673 20,011 4,000 3,709 31,393

The breakdown of the net carrying value of Property was as follows:

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Land 1,291 1,291 -

Industrial buildings 2,273 2,382 (109)

TOTAL 3,564 3,673 (109)
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The main investments in the year aimed at increasing production capacity and the
further automation of production of light alloy valves. Investments were also made to
improve production processes - including the purchase of new alcohol washing facilities
- and investments were made in maintenance and replacement, designed to keep the
capital equipment constantly updated.

The decreases are mainly related to the disposal of machinery to the Group's foreign

companies. Assets under construction include machinery under construction and
advance payments to suppliers of capital equipment.

At 31 December 2015, the Company found no endogenous or exogenous indicators of
impairment of its property, plantand equipment. As a result, the value of property, plant
and equipment was not submitted to impairment testing.

2. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COST

Increases -
Disposals -
Increases -
Disposals -
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 4,453
Depreciation for the year 193
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 4,646
Depreciation for the year 192
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 4,838
NET CARRYING VALUE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 1,837
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 2,029

This item includes non-operating buildings owned by the Group. During the year this
item did not undergo any changes except for depreciation and amortisation for the year.
At 31 December 2015, the Company found no endogenous or exogenous indicators

of impairment of its investment property. As a result, the value of property, plant and
equipment was not submitted to impairment testing.
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

KNOWHOWAND | DEVELOPMENT | OTHERINTANGIBLE romaL
SOFTWARE
COST
5,753 3,834 1,676 11,263
Increases 102 474 110 686
Reclassifications - - - -
Decreases - - - R
5,855 4,308 1,786 11,949
Increases 192 414 21 627
Reclassifications 66 (46) - 20
Decreases - - - R
DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND WRITE-DOWNS
A » BER 20 5,216 1,668 1,143 8,027
Amortisation 2014 200 343 147 690
Decreases - - - -
5,416 2,011 1,290 8,717
Amortisation 2015 203 336 142 681
Decreases - - B N
A D BER 20 5,619 2,347 1,432 9,398
NET CARRYING VALUE
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 494 2,329 375 3,198
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 439 2,297 496 3,232

Intangible assets have a finite useful life and, as a result, are amortised throughout
their life. The main investments in the year relate to the development of new products,
including various versions of special bumers for several clients and a new model of
light-alloy kitchen valves (research and development activities conducted over the year
are set outin the Report on Operations). Software investments include the extension of
the application area and the companies covered by the Group's management system

(SAP) and the realisation of the new website. Other intangible assets refer, in the main,
to improvements to third-party leased assets.

At 31 December 2015, the Company found no endogenous or exogenous indicators
of impairment of its intangible assets. As a result, the value of property, plant and
equipment was not submitted to impairment testing.
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4. INVESTMENTS
~

In subsidiaries 45,760 44,798 962
Other shareholdings 59 40 19
TOTAL 45,819 44,838 981

The change in investments in subsidiaries is broken down in the table below:

Sabaf | o pafAcC.

ety Tt | it | et | sarvs | | Srsang | e
HISTORICAL COST
A D BER 20 13,475 10,329 8,469 548 139 2,250 200 13,351 48,761
I(:\fccr:;?;si/reductlons . . . . B 1150 . . 1150
13,475 10,329 8,469 548 139 3,400 200 13,351 49,911
';fcr:;f;sl/ reductions - - - - - 1,000 - (1,346) (346)
Liquidation investment - - - (548) - - - - (548)
A » BER 20 13,475 10,329 8,469 0 139 4,400 200 12,005 49,017
PROVISION FOR WRITE-DOWNS
0 3,653 0 0 0 2,077 0 0 5,730
Write-downs (write-backs) - (1,771 - 548 - 606 - - (617)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 0 1,882 0 548 0 2,683 0 0 5,113
mgttzgg)‘” ns (write-backs) . (1,882) . - . 574 - - (1,308)
Liquidation investment - - - (548) - - - - (548)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 0 0 0 0 0 3,257 0 0 3,257
NET CARRYING VALUE
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 13,475 10,329 8,469 0 139 1,143 200 12,005 45,760
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 13,475 8,447 8,469 0 139 717 200 13,351 44,798
NET EQUITY (CALCULATED IN CONFORMITY WITH IAS/IFRS)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 28,679 4,922 7,145 0 (32) 1,302 293 14,085 56,394
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 27,309 4,549 8,333 28 (36) 717 255 14,163 55,318
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN NET EQUITY AND CARRYING VALUE
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 15,204 (5,407) (1,324) 0 (171) 159 93 2,080 10,634

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 13,834 (3,898) (136) 28 (175) 0 55 812 10,520
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The changes in the recorded values of the subsidiaries are commented on below:

Faringosi Hinges s.r.I.

In the course of 2015 Faringosi Hinges achieved better net results compared with
the previous year, in terms of both the development of sales and profitability, which
turned out to be largely positive and greater than the 2015 budget. The company has
benefited from the initiatives undertaken aimed at increasing operative efficiency, from
the commencement of the sales of special products and from the strengthening of the
dollar, into which around 30% of revenues is divided.

The forward plan 2016-2020, drafted at the end of 2015 and approved by the Board
of Directors of the subsidiary, plans a further gradual improvement of sales and
profitability, to be considered as sustainably purchased also going forward. At 31
December 2015, Sabaf S.p.A. tested the carrying value of the investment in Faringosi
Hinges for impairment, determining its recoverable value, considered to be equivalent
to its usable value plus available liquidity, by discounting expected future cash flow in

Sensitivity analysis

the forward plan drafted by the management. Cash flows for the period 2016-2020
were augmented by the so-called terminal value, which expresses the operating
flows that the subsidiary is expected to generate from the sixth year to infinity and
determined based on the perpetual income. The value of use was calculated based on a
discount rate (WACC) of 8.45% (8.76% in the impairment test conducted while drafting
the separate financial statements at 31 December 2014) and a growth rate (g) of 1.50%,
which is in line with historical data.

The recoverable value calculated on the basis of the above-mentioned valuation
assumptions and techniques was €11,061 million. The value of the investment, which in
previous years was reduced for adjustment to the presumed recoverable value, reporting
in these separate financial statements write-backs of € 1,882 million (Note 29).

The performance of sales, profitability and orders in the first months of 2016 confirms
the positive trend on which the development of the plan was based.

The table below shows the changes in recoverable value depending on changes in the WACC discount rate and growth factor g:

GROWTH RATE

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO

DISCOUNT RATE 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00%
7.45% 12,206 12,622 13,074 13,564 14,100
7.95% 11,260 11,611 11,989 12,397 12,840
8.45% 10,441 10,740 11,061 11,405 11,776
8.95% 9,726 9,983 10,258 10,551 10,866
9.45% 9,096 9,319 9,556 9,809 10,079

Sabaf do Brasil Sabaf U.S.

In 2015 Sabaf do Brasil continued to obtain positive results, which improved compared
with 2014.The reduction in shareholders’ equity (converted into euros as the end-of-year
exchange rate) is to be ascribed entirely to the strong devaluation of the Brazilian real.

Sabaf Mexico S.A. de c.v.

During 2015 the process of voluntary liquidation of the Mexican subsidiary, no longer
considered to be functional to the Group's strategic objectives. The value of the investment
was written off entirely during 2014 and at the outcome of the liquidation no additional
charges for the Company have emerged.

The subsidiary Sabaf U.S. operates as a commercial base for North America.

The difference between the carrying value and the net equity of the investment is
attributable to the non-durable losses taking into consideration expected development
on the North American market.

Sabaf Appliance Components

In 2015, Sabaf Appliance Components (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. launched the production
of special burners for the Chinese market. Furthermore, from 2015 the company
has performed the function as distributor on the Chinese market of Sabaf products
manufactured in Italy and Turkey. To sustain the necessary investments at the production
launch, Sabaf S.p.A. paid in €1 million for the share capital increase during the financial
year.On 31 December 2015 the value of the investment was reduced in order to reflect
the loss of the financial year of € 542,000, considered to be durable.
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Sabaf Appliance Components Trading

Sabaf Appliance Components Trading (Kunshan) Co., Ltd., was founded during 2012 in
order to perform the function as distributor. During 2015, this activity was centralised at
Sabaf Appliance Components; however, the company went into liquidation.

Sabaf Beyaz Esya Parcalari Sanayi Ve Ticaret Limited
Sirteki (Sabaf Turkey)

In 2015 Sabaf Turkey achieved very satisfactory results and strong growth following
the gradual expansion of production capacity. During the financial year Sabaf Turkey
proceeded to make a partial reimbursement of capital to the parent company, for a
higher amount than that of the current equity requirements.

5. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial receivables from subsidiaries 1,837

CHANGE

1,660 177

TOTAL 1,837

At 31 December 2015 and at 31 December 2014, an interest-bearing loan of USD
2 million was recorded under this item, maturing in March 2017, granted to the

1,660 ‘ 177

subsidiary Sabaf do Brasil with the aim of optimising the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange rate risk.

6. INVENTORIES

31.12.2014 CHANGE

Commodities 8,758 8,851 (93)
Semi-processed goods 9,326 9,166 160
Finished products 8,461 9,060 (599)
Provision for inventory write-downs (1,870) (2,000) 130
TOTAL 24,675 25,077 (402)

The value of final inventories at 31 December 2015 remained substantially unchanged
compared with the end of the previous year. The obsolescence provision, which refers
€390,000 to commodities, €570,000 to semi-processed goods and €910,000 to finished

products, reflects the improved estimate of the risk of obsolescence, based on specific
analyses conducted at the end of the year on slow-moving and non-moving articles.

7.TRADE RECEIVABLES

The geographical breakdown of trade receivables was as follows:

31.12.2014 CHANGE

Italy 15,317 14,967 350
Western Europe 1,489 2,855 (1,366)
Eastern Europe and Turkey 6,054 6,024 30
Asia and Oceania (excluding Middle East) 1,979 2,986 (1,007)
South America 3,043 2,363 680
Middle East and Africa 4,333 4,671 (338)
North America and Mexico 1,606 1,429 177
GROSS TOTAL 33,821 35,295 (1,474)
Provision for doubtful accounts (950) (600) (350)
NET TOTAL 32,871 34,695 (1,824)
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At 31 December 2015 the value of trade receivables was down against the previous
year, following a moderate decrease in sales in the last quarter. At 31 December 2015,
trade receivables included balances totalling USD 2,489,000, booked at the EUR/
USD exchange rate in effect on 31 December 2015, i.e. 1.0877. The amount of trade
receivables recognised in accounts includes €2.3 million of receivables assigned on a
no-recourse basis (€6.3 million at 31 December 2014) and approximately €13.9 million
in insured credits (€ 10.7 million at 31 December 2014). The provision for doubtful
accounts was increased during the financial year (by €350,000), mainly following the
deterioration of the situation of an Italian customer.

9. OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

31.12:2015 | 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Advances to suppliers 33 544 (511)
Due from INAIL 32 62 (30)
Other 276 371 (95)
TOTAL 1,198 1,283 (85)

m 31.12.2014 P CHANGE
)

Current receivables

(not past due) 28,280 29,991 (1,711
Outstanding up to 30 days 2,233 1,939 294
Outstanding

from 31 to 60 days 415 827 (412)
Outstanding

from 31 to 90 days 730 487 243
Outstanding

for more than 90 days 2,163 2,051 112
TOTAL 33,821 35,295 (1,474)

At 31 December 2015 Credits to be received from suppliers included €411,000 related
to the relief due to the parent company as an energy-intensive business (so-called
"energy-intensive bonuses”) for the years 2014 and 2015.

At 31 December 2014, advance payments to suppliers included €521,000 to Sabaf
Immobiliare s.r.l., paid on account for the 2015 rent of the properties owned by the
subsidiary.

10. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

8. TAX RECEIVABLES

m 31.12.2014 CHANGE
31

1,114 1,083

From Giuseppe Saleri
SapA for IRES

From inland revenue

0 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Financial r.egel_vables 1,000 ) 1,000
from subsidiaries

Derivatives on currency 69 - 69
TOTAL 1,069 0 1,069

for IRAP 605 B 605
From inland revenue

U 30 444 (414)
TOTAL 1,749 1,527 222

Sabaf S.p.A. has been part of the national tax consolidation scheme pursuant to Articles
1171129 of the Unified Income Tax Law. This option was renewed in 2013 for three years.
In this scheme, the parent company Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A. acts as the consolidating
company. At 31 December 2015 the receivable from Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A. includes,
at€1,083,000, the receivable from the full deductibility of IRAP from IRES relating to the
expenses incurred for employees for the period 2006-2011 (Legislative Decree 201/2011),
forwhich the consolidating company has presented an application for a refund and which
will revert to Sabaf S.p.A. for the share pertaining to it as soon as it is refunded.

The tax receivable for IRAP is generated by the higher tax payments on account paid in
during the year compared with the tax due.

During the financial year, an interest-bearing loan of € 1 million was paid to Sabaf
Appliance Components Co., Ltd. to support the Chinese subsidiary's working capital.
The loan has a term of 12 months.

At 31 December 2015, there were forward sale contracts of USD 4.384 million, maturing
on 31 December 2016, whose fair value at the end of the year was positive at €69,000.
Exchange gains for the same amount were recognised in the income statement.

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The item Cash and cash equivalents, equal to €1,090,000 at 31 December 2015
(€1,366,000 at 31 December 2014) refers almost exclusively to bank current account
balances.

12. SHARE CAPITAL

At31 December 2015 the parent company's share capital consists of 11,533,450 shares
with a par value of €1.00 each. The share capital paid in and subscribed did not change
during the year.
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13. TREASURY SHARES

During the financial year Sabaf S.p.A. acquired 61,571 treasury shares at an average
unit price of €11.675; there have been no sales.

At 31 December 2015, the parent company Sabaf S.p.A. held 62,078 treasury shares,
equal to 0.538% of share capital (507 treasury shares at 31 December 2014), reported
in the financial statements as an adjustment to shareholders' equity at a unit value of

16. EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE PAY
RESERVE

0 31.12.2014

€11.653 (the market value at year-end was €11.419). LIABILITIES AT 1 JANUARY 2,641 2,496
There were 11,471,372 outstanding shares at 31 December 2015 (11,532,943 at 31
December 2014). Financial expenses 35 52
Amounts paid out (111) (150)
Actuarial gains and losses (38) 243
14. LOANS i
LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2,527 2,641

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
NON NON

Following the revision of 1AS 19 - Employee benefits, from 1 January 2013 all actuarial
gains or losses are recorded immediately in the comprehensive income statement

Unsecured loans 2,707 4,632 2,660 7,340 ("Other comprehensive income”) under the item "Actuarial income and losses".
Short-term bank

loans 13,194 - 9,647 - Post-employment benefits are calculated as follows:

Advgnces on ba_nk 5,825 . 6,091 )

recelpts or Invoices

Interest bl 36 - 40 - . . .

S Financial assumptions

TOTAL 21,762 4,632 18,438 7,340

All outstanding bank loans are denominated in euro, at a floating rate linked to the
Euribor, with the exception of a short-term loan of USD 1.3 million.

The loans are not bound by contractual provisions (covenants).

Note 36 provides information on financial risks, pursuant to IFRS 7.

15. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

31.12.2014 CHANGE

Derivative

instruments on 14 - 14
interest rates

TOTALE 14 ‘ 0 ‘ 14

At 31 December 2015, a negative fair value of the outstanding derivative financial
instruments hedging rate risks was recorded under this item (Note 36). Financial
charges in the same amount were recognised in the 2015 income statement.

31.12.2014

Discount rate 1.60% ‘ 1.40%

Inflation 2.00% ‘ 2.00%

Demographic theory

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

ISTAT 2010 M/F ISTAT 2010 M/F

Mortality rate

Disability rate INPS 1998 M/F INPS 1998 M/F

Staff turnover 6% per year of all ages 6% per year of all ages

Advance payouts 5% per year 5% per year

pursuant to legislation in | pursuant to legislation in
force on 31 December force on 31 December
2015 2014

Retirement age
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According to article 83 of IAS 19, which relates to the definition of actuarial assumptions
and specifically the discount rate, these should be determined with reference to the
yields on high-quality corporate bonds, i.e. those with low credit risk. With reference to
the definition of "Investment Grade" securities, for which a security is defined as such if
it has a rating equal to or higher than BBB from S&P or Baa2 from Moody's, only bonds
issued from corporate issuers rated "AA" were considered, on the assumption that this
category identifies a high rating level within all investment grade securities, and thereby

excludes the riskiest securities. Given that IAS 19 does not make explicit reference to
a specific sector of industry, it was decided to adopt a "composite” market curve that
summarised the market conditions existing on the date of valuation of securities issued
by companies operating in different sectors, including the utilities, telephone, financial,
banking and industrial sectors. For the geographical area, the calculation was made with
reference to the euro zone.

17. RESERVES FOR RISKS AND CONTINGENCIES

Reserve for

agents’ indemnities 25

RELEASE OF EXCESS
31.12.2014 PROVISIONS UTILIZATION PORTION 31.12.2015
31 - (50)

266

Product guarantee fund 160 8 (108) - 60
Reserve for legal risks 70 - - (70) -
TOTAL 515 39 (108) (120) 326

The reserve for agents’ indemnities covers amounts payable to agents if the Company
terminates the agency relationship.

The product warranty reserve covers the risk of returns or charges by customers for
products already sold.

The reserve for legal risks, set aside for moderate disputes in previous financial years,

was zeroed out since the disputes have had a favourable outcome.

The provisions booked to the reserve for risks and contingencies, which represent the
estimate of future payments made based on historical experience, have not been time-
discounted because the effect is considered negligible.

18. TRADE PAYABLES

The geographical breakdown of trade payables was as follows:

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

Italy 14,536 14,064 472
Western Europe 2,895 2,870 25
Ejrsl;c:)r/n Europe and 307 0 205
Asia and Oceania 420 495 (75)
South America 14 25 11
)Z/I]:I?Cda\e East and 10 ) 10
'l\\l/lc;;tiP;OAmerica and ] a7 86)
TOTAL 18,203 17,573 630

The amount of trade payables in currencies other than the euro is not significant. At
31 December 2015, there were no overdue payables of a significant amount, and the
Company had not received any injunctions for overdue payables.

19. TAX PAYABLES

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

To Gius';;.:;}‘:‘)‘e Saleri

SapA for IRES - 1,092 (1,092)
From inland

revenue for IRAP ) 16 (16)
To inland revenue

for IRPEF 788 617 171
withholding

TOTAL 788 1,725 (937)

Atthe end of the financial year, the Company does not have payables for IRES and IRAP since
the payments on account made during the financial year are greater than the taxes due.
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20. OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES
At the beginning of 2016, payables due to employees and social security institutions
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o _ were paid in accordance with the scheduled expiry dates.

Due to employees 3,658 3,815 (157)
To social security 1,861 2,148 (287)
institutions

Prepayments from 88 246 (158)
customers

Due to agents 281 295 (14)
Other current 54 54 )
payables

TOTAL 5,942 6,558 (616)

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Deferred tax assets 3,285 3,611
Deferred tax liabilities (150) (35)
NET POSITION BMISE 3,576

The table below analyses the nature of the temporary differences that determine the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets and their movements during the year and the
previous year.

- Provisions | Fair value of el Other
Amortisation - post-employment
" and value derivative . temporary
and leasing : : benefit reserve :
adjustments | instruments : differences
evaluation
A » BER 20 245 1,098 5 1,993 136 155 3,632
Income statement 108 (165) - - - 61 (118)
Shareholders’ equity - - (5) - 67 - 62
A D BER 2014 353 933 0 1,993 203 94 3,576
Income statement - (140) (19) (222) (25) (27) (433)
Shareholders’ equity - - - - (8) - 8)
A » BER 20 353 793 (19) 1,771 170 67 3,135

Tax assets relating to goodwill refer to the redemption of the value of the investment in Faringosi Hinges ... made in 2011. The future tax benefit can be made in ten annual portions
starting in 2018.

At 31 December 2015 the Group's Italian companies accounted for the adjustment of the deferred taxation (reduction of the IRES rate from 27.5% to 24% from 2017 provided by the
Stability Law [Legge di Stabilita] 2016), recognising overall a negative effect in the income statement of € 390,000 (Note 33).
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22. NET FINANCIAL POSITION

As required by the CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, we disclose that the Company's net financial position is as follows:

A. Cash (Note 11) 6 8 2)
B. Positive balances of unrestricted bank accounts (Note 11) 1,084 1,358 (274)
C. | Other cash equivalents 0 0 0
D. | LIQUIDITY (A+B+C) 1,090 1,366 (276)
E. Current bank payables (Note 14) 19,055 15,778 3.277
F. Current portion of non-current debt (Note 14) 2,707 2,660 47
G. | Other non-current financial payables (Note 15) 14 0 14
H. | CURRENT FINANCIAL DEBT (E+F+G) 21,776 18,438 3,338
1. NET CURRENT FINANCIAL POSITION (H-D) 20,686 17,072 3,614
J. Non-current bank payables (Note 14) 4,632 7,340 (2,708)
K. | Other non-current financial liabilities 0 0 0

L, NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL DEBT (J+K) 4,632 7,340 (2,708)
M. | NET FINANCIAL DEBT (I+L) 25,318 24,412 906

The cash flow statement shows changes in cash and cash equivalents (letter D of this schedule).
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Comments on key income

statement items

23. REVENUES

In 2015, sales revenue totalled €113,962,000, down by €1,957,000 (-1.7%) compared with 2014.

Revenues by geographical area

Italy 38,081 33.4% 39,770 34.3% -4.2%
Western Europe 6,481 5.7% 7,880 6.8% -17.8%
Eastern Europe and Turkey 28,322 24.8% 30,287 26.1% -6.5%
(Aeiijljgis,f;ggfe - 6,347 5.6% 6,528 5.6% 2.8%
Central and South America 11,991 10.5% 10,582 9.2% +13.3%
Middle East and Africa 16,479 14.5% 16,561 14.3% -0.5%
North America and Mexico 6,261 5.5% 4,311 3.7% +45.2%
TOTAL 113,962 100% 115,919 100% -1.7%

Revenue by product family

Brass valves 12,673 11.1% 13,738 11.9% -7.8%
Light alloy valves 33,663 29.6% 33,758 29.1% -0.3%
Thermostats 10,513 9.2% 12,268 10.6% -14.3%
e N e omAL 56,849 49.9% 59,764 51.6% -4.9%
Standard burners 22,983 20.2% 23,261 20.1% -1.2%
Special burners 20,773 18.2% 19,975 17.2% +4.0%
BURNERS TOTAL 43,756 38.4% 43,236 37.3% +1.2%
f;\f::;:;"es and other 13,357 11.7% 12,919 11.1% +3.4%
TOTAL 113,962 100% 115,919 100% -1.7%

During 2015 there was a decrease in sales on the European markets, more marked
in Western Europe also due to a further shift in production of household appliances
towards countries with lower labour costs. Better results were obtained on the non-
European markets, with a sizable increase in sales on the American continent, also
favoured by the strong dollar.

The analysis per product family shows a rather marked decrease for valves and

thermostats (more significant for brass products), a substantial stability of sales of
standard burners and a good increase of sales of special burners, also thanks to the
introduction of new high energy efficiency models.

Average sales prices in 2015 were around 0.9% lower compared with 2014.

Refer to the Report on Operations for more detailed comments on the trends that
marked the Group's market over the year.
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24. OTHER INCOME

31.12.2015 31.12.2014 CHANGE

26. COSTS FOR SERVICES

Sale of trimmings 1,403 1,782 379) Outsourced 9,202 10,156 (954)
processing
Services to L
S 280 211 69 Electricity and
subsidiaries natural gas 3,874 4,350 (476)
Contingent income 260 201 59 Property rental 4,032 4,000 32
Rental income 116 132 (16) Maintenance 2,661 3,163 (502)
Use of provisions
for risks and 158 26 132 Transport and 1,392 1,545 (153)
contingencies export expenses
Services_to parent 10 10 0 Advisory services 1,488 1,210 278
companies
Di !
Other 506 613 (107) e 1,049 816 233
TOTAL 2,733 2,975 (242) Commissions 574 778 (204)
Travel expenses 474 502 82
and allowances
The fall in the sale of trimmings is related to the reduction in volumes of die cast parts. Waste disposal 364 400 (36)
Services to subsidiaries and parent companies refer to administrative, commercial and
. . L Canteen 315 317 2)
technical services within the scope of the Group.
Insurance 443 315 128
12:: cc;/rivrgrke rs 145 173 (28)
25. PURCHASES OF MATERIALS
Factoring fees 15 116 (101)
Other costs 2,523 1,864 659
m 31.12.2014 CHANGE
..... — TOTAL 28,751 29,795 (1,044)
Commoditie
and outsourced 40,279 41,323 (1,044)
components
Consumables 3,582 3,496 86 The fall in outsourced processing costs was due to the partial insourcing of certain
phases of burner production. The reduction in energy costs results from the reduction
TOTAL 43,861 44,819 (958) . . ) .
in the price of electrical energy and gas (on average -6.8% compared with 2014) and

The effective purchase prices of the principal raw materials (brass, aluminium and steel
alloys) increased on average by around 5.5% versus 2014. Consumption (purchases
plus change in inventory) as a percentage of sales was 38.8% in 2015, compared with
37.6%in 2014.

from reduced consumption. The increase in maintenance costs is linked to the normal
cyclicality of maintenance operations; the maintenance policies, aimed at guaranteeing
constantefficiency of all the production plants, did not register any changes. The increase
in insurance costs is attributable to the introduction of a commercial insurance cover
policy (simultaneously no-recourse factoring commissions, previously the prevalent
form of credit guarantee, were reduced).

Other costs included charges by customers, expenses for the registration of patents,
leasing third-party assets, cleaning costs and other minor charges.
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27. PAYROLL COSTS

Salaries and wages 18,767 18,757 10

Social security costs 6,131 6,156 (25)
Temporary agency 1182 1365 (183)
workers

Post-employment

benefit reserve and 1,888 1,660 228
other payroll costs

TOTAL 27,968 27,938 30

Average Company headcount in 2015 totalled 552 employees (428 blue-collars,
115 white-collars and supervisors, 9 managers), compared with 558 in 2014 (441
blue-collars, 109 white-collars and supervisors, 8 managers). The average number of
temporary staff, with supply contract, was 32 in 2015 (41 in 2014).

During the year the Company made sporadic use of the temporary unemployment
fund in periods characterized by low production requirements: this allowed savings in
personnel costs of €333,000 (€124,000 in 2014).

28. OTHER OPERATING COSTS

29. WRITE-DOWNS/WRITE-BACKS
OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

0 2014 CHANGE

1,882 1,771 1

Write-back of
Faringosi Hinges
Write-down of
Sabaf Appliance
Components
Write-down of
Sabaf Mexico
Write-downs of
other investments

(574) (606) 32

- (547) 547

TOTAL 1,303 618 685

The write-downs and write-backs in investments are commented upon in Note 4, to
which reference is made.

30. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

0 2014 CHANGE

Interest paid to banks 248 211 37

Bank charges 210 214 @)

Losses and write-downs Other financial

of trade receivables 360 a4 316 expenses 42 41 !

Dutigs and other 179 173 6 TOTAL 500 466 34
non-income taxes

Contingent liabilities 159 87 72

Reserves for risks 8 102 (94)

Other provisions 31 22 9 31 ° EXCHANGE RATE GAINS

Other administrative 84 122 39) AN D LOSS ES

expenses

TOTAL 821 550 271 In2015, the Company reported net foreign exchange losses of €261,000, versus net gains

Non-income taxes mainly include IMU, TASI and the tax for the disposal of urban solid
waste. Provisions for risks and other provisions relate to sums set aside for the risks
described in Note 17.

of €237,000in 2014.As described at Note 4, during the financial year the subsidiary Sabaf
Turkey partially reimbursed the share capital in the amount of 4 million Turkish lira.

This operation determined the recognition in the consolidated income statement of an
exchange rate loss of €458,000, from the difference between the average exchange
rate at which the capital was paid in and the exchange rate on the reimbursement date.

32. EARNINGS FROM INVESTMENTS

2014 CHANGE

Sabaf do Brasil dividends - ‘ 970 ‘ (970)

TOTAL ‘ 0 ‘ 970 ‘ (970)
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33.INCOME TAX

Current tax 2,126 2,800 (674)
Deferred tax assets

and liabilities 433 e 315
Previous years' tax (42) (263) 221
TOTAL 2,517 2,655 (138)

Current taxes include IRES of €1,734,000 and IRAP of €392,000 (€1,797,000 and
€1,003,000 respectively in 2014). The significant reduction in IRAP is a consequence of
the deductibility of the labour costs arising from the taxable base as from 2015.

Reconciliation between the tax burden booked in year-end financial statements and the

theoretical tax burden calculated according to the statutory tax rates currently in force in
Italy is shown in the following table:

0 2014

Theoretical income tax 2,244 2,897
Permanent tax differences (496) (712)
Effect of dividends from subsidiaries not

; ) - (267)
subject to taxation
Previous years' tax (37) (256)
Adjustment of the deferred taxation for a 390 )
change in the IRES rate (Note 21)
Other differences 16 -
IRES (current and deferred) 2,117 1,662
IRAP (current and deferred) 400 993
TOTAL 2,517 2,655

Theoretical taxes were calculated applying the current corporate income tax (IRES) rate,
i.e. 27.50%, to the pre-tax result. The permanent differences mainly include benefits
pertaining to the company resulting from membership of the national tax consolidation
scheme (Note 8) for €194,000 and the tax effect of adjustments in value of investments
in subsidiaries of €360,000.

IRAP is not taken into account for the purpose of reconciliation because, as it is a tax
with a different assessment basis from pre-tax profit, it would generate distortive effects.

Tax position

No significant tax disputes were pending at 31 December 2015.

34.DIVIDENDS

0On 27 May 2015, shareholders were paid an ordinary dividend of €0.40 per share (total
dividends of €4,613,000).

The Directors have recommended payment of a dividend of €0.48 per share this
year. This dividend is subject to approval of shareholders in the annual Shareholders'
Meeting and was not included under liabilities in these financial statements.

The dividend proposed is scheduled for payment on 25 May 2016 (ex-date 23 May and
record date 24 May).

35. SEGMENT REPORTING

Within the Sabaf Group, the Company operates exclusively in the gas parts segment.
The information in the consolidated financial statements is divided between the various
segments in which the Group operates.

36. INFORMATION ON
FINANCIAL RISK

Categories of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS 7, a breakdown of the financial instruments is shown below,

among the categories set forth in 1AS 39.
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Comprehensive income statement fair value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

® Derivative cash flow hedges (on 6 0
currency)

AMORTISED COST

® Cash and cash equivalents 1,090 1,366

. Tradg receivables and other 34,069 35,979
receivables

® Non-current loans 1,837 1,660

® Current loans 1,000 0

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Comprehensive income statement fair value

® Derivative cash flow hedges (on 14 0
interest rates)

AMORTISED COST

® |oans 26,394 25,778

® Trade payables 18,203 17,573
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The Company is exposed to financial risks related to its operations, mainly:

o credit risk, with special reference to normal trade relations with customers;

o market risk, relating to the volatility of prices of commodities, foreign exchange and
interest rates;

e liquidity risk, which can be expressed by the inability to find financial resources
necessary to ensure Company operations.

Itis part of Sabaf's policies to hedge exposure to changes in prices and in fluctuations in
exchange and interest rates via derivative financial instruments. Hedging is done using
forward contracts, options or combinations of these instruments. Generally speaking,
the maximum duration covered by such hedging does not exceed 18 months. The
Company does not enter into speculative transactions. When the derivatives used for
hedging purposes meet the necessary requisites, hedge accounting rules are followed.

Credit risk management

Trade receivables involve producers of domestic appliances, multinational groups
and smaller manufacturers in a few or single markets. The Company assesses the
creditworthiness of all its customers at the start of supply and systemically on at least an
annual basis. After this assessment, each client is assigned a credit limit.

A credit insurance policy is in place, which guarantees cover for approximately 60% of
trade receivables.

Credit risk relating to customers operating in emerging economies is generally
attenuated by the expectation of revenue through letters of credit.

Forex risk management

The main exchange rate to which the Company is exposed is the euro/USD in relation
to sales made in dollars (mainly in North America) and, to a lesser extent, to some
purchases (mainly from Asian manufacturers). Sales in US dollars represented 7.7% of
total revenue in 2015, while purchases in dollars represented 3.7% of total revenue.
The operations in dollars were partially hedged through forward sales contracts. At 31
December 2015 there were forward sales of dollars, maturing on 31 December 2016,
for a total of USD 4.384 million.

Sensitivity analysis

With reference to financial assets and liabilities in US dollars at 31 December 2015, a
hypothetical and immediate revaluation of 10% of the euro against the dollar would
have led to a loss of €301,000, without considering the pending forward sale contracts.

Interest rate risk management

The Company borrows money ata floating rate; to reach an optimum mix of floating and
fixed rates in the structure of the loans, the Company assesses whether to use derivative
financial instruments. During the financial year, the Group concluded an interest rate
swap (IRS) contract for amounts and maturities coinciding with an unsecured loan
in the course of being amortised, whose residual value at 31 December 2015 is €
3.977 million. The contract was not designated as a cash flow hedge and is therefore
recognised using the “fair value in the income statement” method.

Sensitivity analysis

With reference to financial assets and liabilities at variable rate at 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014, a hypothetical increase (decrease) in the interest rate of 100
base points versus the interest rates in effect at the same date - all other variables being
equal - would lead to the following effects:

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

CASH FLOW
HEDGE
RESERVE

FINANCIAL
EXPENSES

FINANCIAL
EXPENSES

Increase of 100
base points

Decrease of
100 base points

Commodity price risk management

Assignificant portion of the Company's acquisitions is represented by brass, steel and
aluminium alloys. Sales prices of products are generally renegotiated annually; as a
result, the Company is unable to immediately pass on to clients any changes in the
prices of commodities during the year. The Company protects itself from the risk
of changes in the price of brass and aluminium with supply contracts signed with
suppliers for delivery up to twelve months in advance or, alternatively, with derivative
financial instruments. In 2015 and 2014, the Company did not use financial derivatives
on commodities. To stabilise the rising costs of commodities, Sabaf preferred to execute
transactions on the physical market, fixing prices with suppliers for immediate and
deferred delivery.

Liquidity risk management

The Group operates with a low debt ratio (net financial debt / shareholders' equity at 31
December 2015 of 26.3%, net financial debt / EBITDA of 1.57) and has unused short-
term lines of credit. To minimise the risk of liquidity, the Administration and Finance
Department:

® maintains a correct balance of net financial debt, financing investments with capital
and with medium to long-term debt;

o verifies systematically that the short-term accrued cash flows (amounts received
from customers and other income) are expected to accommodate the deferred cash
flows (short-term financial debt, payments to suppliers and other outgoings);

o regularly assesses expected financial needs in order to promptly take any corrective
measures.
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Below is an analysis by expiration date of financial payables at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014:

A D BER 20
ONTRA RO
ARR RO O OR A
A A O O
A O AR AR

O AR
Unsecured loans 7,339 7,506 700 2,099 4,707 -
Short-term bank loans 19,055 19,055 17,055 2,000 - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL PAYABLES 26,394 26,561 17,755 4,099 4,707 0
Trade payables 18,203 18,203 17,232 971 - -
TOTAL 44,597 44,764 34,987 5,070 4,707 0
A » BER 2014

O RA RO
ARR RO O OR A
A A O O
A O AR AR

O AR
Unsecured loans 10,000 10,336 702 2,105 7,529 -
Short-term bank loans 15,778 15,778 15,778 - - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL PAYABLES 25,778 26,114 16,480 2,105 7,529 0
Trade payables 17,573 17,573 16,217 1,356 - -
TOTAL 43,351 43,687 32,697 3,461 7,529 0

The various due dates are based on the period between the balance sheet date and
the contractual expiration date of the commitments; the values indicated in the chart
correspond to non-discounted cash flows. Cash flows include the shares of principal and

interest; for floating rate liabilities, the shares of interest are determined based on the
value of the reference parameter at the financial year-end and increased by the spread
set forth in each contract.

Hierarchical levels of the fair value assessment

The revised IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments reported in the statement of

financial position at fair value be classified based on a hierarchy that reflects the

significance of the input used in determining the fair value. IFRS 7 makes a distinction

between the following levels:

e Level 1-quotations found on an active market for assets or liabilities subject to
assessment;

e Level 2-input other than prices listed in the previous point, which can be observed
(prices) or indirectly (derivatives from prices) on the market;

® Level 3-input based on observable market data

The following table shows the assets and liabilities valued at fair value at 31 December
2015, by hierarchical level of fair value assessment.

LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 LEVEL 4

Current financial assets (derivatives on currency) - 69 - 69
TOTAL ASSETS 0 69 0 69
Other financial liabilities (derivatives on ) 14 ) 12
nterest rates)

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 14 0 14
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37. RELATIONS BETWEEN GROUP COMPANIES AND WITH RELATED PARTIES

The table below illustrates the impact of all transactions between Sabaf S.p.A. and other related parties on the balance sheetand income statement and related parties on the statement
of financial position and income statement, with the exception of the compensation of directors, auditors and key management personnel which is stated in the Remuneration Report.

Impact of related-party transactions or positions on statement of financial position items

roraLzots | sussiiaries | PARENT | elren | ecarep | ™MPACTON
PARTIES PARTIES
Non-current financial assets 1,837 1,837 - - 1,837 100.00%
Trade receivables 32,871 2,008 - - 2,008 6.11%
Tax receivables 1,749 - 1114 - 1,114 63.69%
Current financial assets 1,069 1,000 - - 1,000 93.55%
Trade payables 18,203 853 - - 853 4.69%
oraLaota | sussoaries | PARENT | 2laes | pecaren | IMPACTON
PARTIES PARTIES
Non-current financial assets 1,660 1,660 - - 1,660 100.00%
Trade receivables 34,695 1,143 - - 1,143 3.29%
Tax receivables 1,527 - 1,084 - 1,084 70.99%
Other current receivables 1,283 521 - - 521 40.61%
Trade payables 17,573 41 - - 41 0.23%
Tax payables 1,725 - 1,092 - 1,092 63.30%

Impact of related-party transactions on income statement accounts

OTHER TOTAL

TOTAL 2015 SUBSIDIARIES CPOAl\lzlEEI-\II-Y RELATED RELATED IM'PEA%.&’:
PARTIES PARTIES
Revenues 113,962 7,275 - - 7,276 6.38%
Other income 2,733 400 10 - 410 15.00%
Materials 43,861 727 - - 727 1.66%
Services 28,751 4,162 - 34 4,196 14.59%
Capital gains on non-current assets 158 100 - - 100 63.29%
Write-downs of non-current assets 1,303 1,303 - - 1,303 100.00%
Financial income 73 73 - - 73 100.00%
oraLzota | sussoiares | PARENT |2l | pecarep | IMPACTON
PARTIES PARTIES
Revenues 115,919 4,729 - - 4,729 4.08%
Other income 2,975 298 10 - 308 10.35%
Materials 44,819 231 - - 231 0.52%
Services 29,795 4,001 - - 4,001 13.43%
Capital gains on non-current assets 148 82 - - 82 55.41%
Write-downs of non-current assets 618 618 - - 618 100.00%
Financial income 84 66 - - 66 78.57%
irfef:frjgftl"sses from equity 970 970 : . 970 100.00%
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Relations with subsidiaries mainly consist of:

e trade relations, relating to the purchase and sale of semi-processed goods or
finished products with Sabaf do Brasil, Faringosi Hinges, Sabaf Turkey and Sabaf
Kunshan Trading;

e sales of machinery to Sabaf Brasile, Sabaf Turkey and Sabaf Kunshan Trading, which
generated the capital gains highlighted;

e rental of property from Sabaf Immobiliare;

e intra-group loans;

e group VAT settlement.

Relations with the parent company Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A., which does not exercise

management or coordination activities pursuant to Article 2497 of the Italian Civil Code,

consist of:

e provision of administrative services;

e transactions as part of the domestic tax consolidation scheme, which generated the
payables and receivables shown in the tables.

Related-party transactions are regulated by specific contracts regulated at arm's length
conditions.

38. SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING
EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, the Company declares that it did
not execute any significant non-recurring transactions during 2015.

39. ATYPICALAND/OR UNUSUAL
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to CONSOB memorandum of 28 July 2006, the Company declares that no
atypical and/or unusual transactions as defined by the CONSOB memorandum were
executed during 2015.

40. COMMITMENTS

Guarantees issued

Sabaf S.p.A. issued sureties to guarantee bank loans raised by subsidiaries, with the residual
debtat 31 December 2015 equal to €934,000 (€1,859,000 at 31 December 2014).

Sabaf S.p.A. also issued sureties to guarantee mortgage loans granted by banks to
employees for a total of €6,010,000 (€6,249,000 at 31 December 2014).

41. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS,
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND
EXECUTIVES WITH STRATEGIC
RESPONSIBILITIES

Remuneration to directors, statutory auditors and executives with strategic
responsibilities is described in the Remuneration Report which will be presented to the
shareholders’ meeting called to approve these separate financial statements.

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2015, there were no equity-based incentive plans for the Company's
directors and employees.
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List of investments with add itional information required by consob

(Communication dem76064293 of 28 July 2006)

IN SUBSIDIARIES ?

SHARE s NET EQUITY AT
COMPANY NAME REOG'E_'S:-IIEEED CAPITALAT 31 SHAREHOLDERS INVE/OSTOIV':ENT 31 DECEMBER zll?lLSONMEI;r
DECEMBER 2015 2015

Faringosi Hinges S.r.l. Ospitaletto (BS) EUR 90,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% EUR 4,921,666 EUR 367,242
Sabaf Immobiliare S.r.l. Ospitaletto (BS) EUR 25,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% EUR 21,891,849 EUR 1,494,202
Sabaf do Brasil Ltda Jundiai (Brazil) BRL 24,000,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% BRL 30,808,676 BRL 3,972,038
Sabaf US Corp. Plainfield (USA) USD 100,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% USD -34,951 UsD 9,014
Sabaf Appliance
Components (Kunshan) Kunshan (China) EUR 4,400,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% CNY 9,351,338 CNY -26,059,573
Co., Ltd.
Sabaf Beyaz Esya
Parcalari Sanayi Ve Manisa (Turkey) TRY 28,000,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% TRY 46,872,970 TRY 8,659,268
Ticaret Limited Sirteki
Sabaf Appliance
Components Trading Kunshan (China) EUR 200,000 SABAF S.p.A. 100% CNY 2,070,067 CNY 146,212
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. in
liquidation

Other significant equity investments: None

Origin, possibility of utilization and availability of reserves

AMOUNT SUBJECT TO TAXATION

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT PS‘?ISI.IIBZ[kJFTéﬁF AVS'T_:'I&?_\,?ELE FOR COMPANY IN THE CASE
OF DISTRIBUTION

CAPITAL RESERVE:

Share premium reserve 10,002 A, B, C 10,002 0
Revaluation reserve, Law 413/91 42 A B, C 42 42
Revaluation reserve, Law 342/91 1,592 A B, C 1,592 1,592
SURPLUS RESERVES:

Legal reserve 2,307 B. 0 0

Other surplus reserves: 65,621 A B, C 65,170 0
VALUATION RESERVE:

Post-employment benefit actuarial reserve (505) 0 0

TOTAL 79,059 76,806 1,634
KEY

A: for share capital increase
B: to hedge losses
C: for distribution to shareholders

1 Values taken from the separate financial statements of subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with locally applicable accounting standards.
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Revaluations of equity assets at 31 december 2015

o0 R CUMULATIVE NET CARRYING
AMORTISATION AMOUNT

Law 72/1983 137 (137) 0
1989 merger 516 416) 100
Real estate investments Law 413/1991 47 (40) 7
1994 merger 1,483 (956) 527
Law 342/2000 2,870 (2,196) 674
5,053 (3,745) 1,308
Law 576/75 205 (205) 0
Law 72/1983 2,299 (2,299) 0
Plants and machinery
1989 merger 6,249 (6,249) 0
1994 merger 7,080 (7,080) 0
15,833 (15,833) 0
Industrial and commercial equipment Law 72/1983 161 (161) 0
Other assets Law 72/1983 50 (50) 0
TOTAL 21,097 (19,789) 1,308

GENERAL INFORMATION

A.is a company organised under the legal system of the Republic of Italy. Contacts:
Tel: +39 030 - 6843001
Fax: +39 030 - 6848249
Registered and administrative office: E-mail: info@saba.it
Via dei Carpini, 1 Website: www.sabaf.it

25035 Ospitaletto (Brescia) Tax information:

R.E.A. Brescia: 347512
Tax identification number: 03244470179
VAT number: 1101786911082

APPENDIX

Information as required by Article 149/12 of the CONSOB Issuers’ Regulation

The following table, prepared pursuant to Article 149/12 of the CONSOB Issuers’ Regulation, shows fees relating to 2015 for the independent auditor and for services other than
independent auditing provided by the same auditing firm. No services were provided by entities belonging to the network.

IN THOUSANDS OF EURO PARTY PROVID R PAYMENTS PERTAINING TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015

Audit Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 52
Certification services Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 21
Other services Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 142
TOTAL 68

1 Signing of Unified Tax Return, IRAP and 770 forms.
2 Auditing procedures agreement relating to interim management reports, auditing of statements and training activities.
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SABAF

CERTIFICATION OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to article 154 bis of legislative decree 58/98

Alberto Bartoli, the Chief Executive Officer, and Gianluca Beschi, the Financial Reporting Officer of Sabaf S.p.A., have taken into
account the requirements of Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 1998 and can certify

e the appropriateness in relation to the characteristics of the company and
e the effective application

of the administrative and accounting principles for drafting the separate annual report and accounts in the course of the
financial year 2015.

They also certify that:

e the separate financial statements:

- were prepared in accordance with the international accounting policies recognised in the European Community in
accordance with EC regulation 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19 July 2002 and Article 9 of
Legislative Decree 38/2005;
correspond to the results of the accounting entries and ledgers;
are appropriate to provide a true and correct representation of the issuer's operating results, financial position and
cash flows;

e theinterim reportincludes a credible analysis of the performance and results of operations and the situation at the issuer,
along with a description of the key risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed.

Ospitaletto, 22 March 2016

The Chief Executive Officer The Financial Reporting Officer

Alberto Bartoli Gianluca Beschi

| f\f\jwtﬁ ' "L |
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INDEPFENDENT ALTNTORS' REFORT
FURSUANT TO ART. 14 AND 16 0F
LEGISLATIVE DECREE No. 39 0O0F JANUARY 27, 2010

To ihe Shurehobders ol
SABAF S.pA.

Repart on the Separate Financial Stadements

We have uudfed the sccompanying sepanste Gnancial stapements of Sabal 5 p A which comprise the
balance dheet and Bnancial position sx @ December 31, 2005, and the Iscome statement.
comprebensive moome statement, statement of changes ia shareboldess” eqully apd the cash ows
statement for the year then ended, mnd the ekl explamiony notes.

Manugement s Respamnitiling for the. Separare Financial Statomens

The Company's Lhréctors are resporsible for the preparstion of these separate namcial staements that
pave o trie dnd falr view i accondance with Intemntional Financial Reporting Sandards as adopted by
the Exropean Lnion and the requirements of national regulotions issued pursuant woan. 9 of lialion
Legizlatwe Deores o 3872005,

Auglisiar 5 Rexpensiblig

Chur respomsibility 5 40 express an opanon oo these separme fnancinl statesnents brsed an our audil.
We comtfucted our andit in scoordance with Imernobional Standsrds on Asditiog (154 Malia) issuel
parsusnt taan. 11, 9° 3, of talian Legislative Decree 39710, Those standands require that we comply
with ethical respuirements and plan und perfonm the audit 1o abtakn asonabie assurance about whicthicy
ilve sepamte fimancial statements are free frm matennl misstatament,

An andit involves performing proceifiures o obtun sodi evidence aboat ihe nmounts aml shschesmres
iy ik separnie financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditer’s judgment,
mcludimg 1be assesament of e risks of nmterial misstatement of the separaie fmancial statemenis,
whether due 1o fraid or eror. In miking those nsk wssessmonts, the midsor consdders intomal conerol
relevant ta the entity"s preparation that give o mue and fir view of separae financial sSatemints o
arder bo design sudit procedures hat are appropriate m the circumstances. bul not for the parpose of
gapressing an opnion on the cffectivensss of the entity's otermal control. An audit also ieclude
evilusting the approprisiencss of accounting policies msed and (he reasamableness of accoumting
estimates made by the Directors, as weldl is evaluating the overall presemiation of the sepusate: fmancis|
watemmens.

We believe that the aodiz evidence we hiave oblnined i sufficient and appropnase (o provide a basa for
o it opinkon.

s e S ooy bees. Ol Trees Ceemy bharr sl P
b B byl B TEEE SR
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b o explinkon, the sepamte fnancial sawements give a trus and fair view of the financial pontion of
Sahal SpA: asaf December 31, 2005, mod of its fmancial performance and cash flows for the vear
ihien ended in sccordance with Intemationnl Finsmoial Heporting Stndards s sdopied by fee
European Union and the requirements of nofional regulntions issusd pursiont to am. 9 of Malmn
Legisbsnive Decree n® 387005,

Report on Oiber Legal and Regulatory Requircments

Clpintan on the couxistency of Hie ropors on dperaions and of certain information clded e
FEpeT o corporgie grveranree Wit the veparate fimamoial stotemmnts

Wi e performeed ihe precedares indicntisd i the Auditing Standard (5A linlia) n* 7208 in order 1o
express, A8 required by Law, #n opinion on the consistency of the report o0 operations und of centain
information ncluded i the fepon on corpomis prvemance requined by art. 1238, 0* 4, of Ialin
Legalative Decree n* SR08, which are the responsibility of the Directors of Gabaf §p.A,, with the
weparate (imaneizl datements of Sihel Sp0A as st December 31, 2015 In our opinion the repart oo
sperations and the fuformation inchuded in the repon on comporste govemonee refermed 10 abave ore
comsstent with (e sepamte fnancial stsiements of Sabal Sp A as ot December 31, 2003,

DELOMTTE & TOUCHE S.p.A.

igned by
Mergmlio Braok
Partner

Bresci, Maly
Murch 30, 2018

This peporr buss by mranthased vt the English fongunge
aliely for fhe comannieree of (rermationl readers
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SABAF S.PA.

BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SABAF S.P.A. SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

pursuant to article 2429, paragraph 2, of the Civil Code and article 153 of Legislative Decree 58/1998

Shareholders,

We hereby report to you on the supervisory activities carried out during 2015.

This report is prepared pursuant to article 2429, paragraph 2, of the Civil Code and article 153 of
Legislative Decree 58/1998, taking into account Consob recommendations, the codes of conduct
for boards of statutory auditors issued by the Italian Association of Chartered Accountants and the
guidelines contained in the Corporate Governance Code of Borsa Italiana S.p.A., to which your
Company adheres. We recall that the current Board of Statutory Auditors was nominated at the
Shareholders’ Meeting held on 5 May 2015 and that, therefore, it began its supervisory activities as
of that date. The activities performed are reported below.

1. Supervision of compliance with the law and Articles
of Incorporation and adherence to principles of proper
management

Since its nomination on 31 December 2015, the Board of Statutory Auditors has met four times, with
all members attending on each occasion. The Board has also attended six meetings of the Board
of Directors, three meetings of the Control and Risks Committee and one meeting between the
Company's Control Bodies (Board of Statutory Auditors, Control and Risks Committee, Supervisory
Body, Financial Reporting Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, Independent Auditor),

In turn, during the period between 1 January 2015 and 5 May 2015, the preceding Board of
Statutory Auditors attended two meetings of the Board of Directors, one meeting of the Control
and Risks Committee, one meeting between the Company's Control Bodies, and the Shareholders’
Meeting held on 5 May 2015.

During the meetings of the Board of Directors, the Board of Statutory Auditors received information
on general performance, the business outlook, and the most significant business, financial and
equity transactions performed by the Company and its subsidiaries.

In this regard we note that in 2015:

o we did not identify or receive information of atypical and/or unusual transactions with third
parties, related parties or within the group. This was also confirmed by the Directors in their
Report on Operations;

* o significant transactions have been carried out that would require mention in this report;

o intragroup and other related-party transactions were ordinary in nature and of minorimportance
compared with Group activity as a whole, as described in note 37 of the Separate Financial
Statements and the corresponding note in the Consolidated Financial Statements, to which the
reader is referred. The Board of Statutory Auditors believes that the conditions under which these
transactions were carried out are legitimate and aligned with the Company's interests.

The Board of Statutory Auditors has expressed its favourable opinion, in the following cases:

o division among the Directors of the fees decided by the Shareholders’ Meeting;

o allocation of special fees to certain Executive Directors;

o appointment of the Financial Reporting Officer;

o appointment of the Internal Audit Manager, allocation of adequate resources to perform his/
her duties and determination of remuneration in accordance with company policies;

© work plan prepared by the Internal Audit Manager,

In conclusion, on the basis of the activity performed, no violations of the law and/or Articles of
Incorporation were found, or any manifestly imprudent or risky transactions, or transactions with
potential conflicts of interest or such that could compromise the company’s assets.

2. Supervisory activities on the adequacy of the
organisational structure and internal control system

The Board of Statutory Auditors ensured the existence of an adequate organisational structure in

relation to the size of the business.

In this regard we recall that the Company has for a long time adopted an Organisational Model in

accordance with the provisions of Legislative Decree 231/2001. In the event of organisational and/

or regulatory changes, this model is periodically updated. The model is currently being adapted to
recent regulatory changes introduced by lawmakers.

During the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors has maintained a constant exchange of information

with the Supervisory Body.

The information obtained does not show any critical issues with regard to the properimplementation

of the organisational model that would require mention in this report.

The Board of Statutory Auditors considers the internal control system to be adequate and

acknowledges that it has no observations to make to the Shareholders' Meeting.

The information sources on which the Board of Statutory Auditors has based its assessment are:

o periodic meetings with the Company appointed to perform the Internal Audit function and with
the representative of said function. During these meetings, the Board of Statutory Auditors has
been able to assess the activities undertaken and their results. In this regard, we note that the
said Company also performs the Internal Audit function for key subsidiaries;

o periodic meetings with the Independent Auditor;

o thereport of the Internal Audit Manager on the control system, which was examined during the
meeting of the Control and Risks Committee held on 2 February 2016;

e attendance at the meetings of the Control and Risks Committee;

o the Control and Risks Committee’s report to the Board of Directors on the adequacy and
effective functioning of the organisation of the internal control and risk management system;

o meetings with the Financial Reporting Officer;

e examination of corporate procedures, including those under the scope of the Organisational
Model adopted by Sabaf (and by the subsidiary Faringosi Hinges S.r..) under Legislative
Decree 231/2001 and those established by the Financial Reporting Officer, pursuant to Law
262/2005.

3. Supervisory activities on the suitability of the
administrative and accounting system and the audit process

The Board of Statutory Auditors has monitored the suitability of the administrative and accounting

system and its ability to give a true and fair view of the business, by:

® obtaining information from the Financial Reporting Officer.

e examining administrative procedures;

o holding periodic meetings with the Company appointed to perform the Internal Audit function
and with the representative of said function;

o holding meetings with the Independent Auditor and examining its reports.

On the basis of the information collected, no significant issues were detected.

We also note that the Board of Directors, with the approval of the Board of Statutory Auditors,

appointed the Financial Reporting Officer subject to checks that he/she meets the professional

requirements.

The Chief Executive Officer and Financial Reporting Officer have attested to the following in a

specific report annexed to the 2015 Financial Statements:

o the suitability and effective application of the administrative and accounting procedures for
drafting the financial statements;

e its compliance with international accounting standards and true reflection of accounting
ledgers and records, and its suitability to provide a true and correct representation of the
Company's operating results, financial position and cash flows.

An equivalent declaration was also made in reference to the consolidated financial statements.
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As regards statutory auditing, we note that this task was assigned by decision of the shareholders’
meeting of 28 April 2009 to Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. for the period 2009/2017.

During the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors held periodic meetings with the Independent
Auditor, in which no significant information was received that needs to be reported herein.

The audit procedures adopted in relation to the work plan submitted by the Independent Auditor
were examined.

We have also received the required technical information in relation to the accounting standards
applied, as well as the criteria used for the representation in the accounts of the transactions with
the biggest impact on income, equity and financial position.

We also note that, on 30 March 2016, the Independent Auditor submitted the report referred to
in article 19, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree 39/2010. The report does not show any significant
issues found during the audit process, or any significant shortcomings in the internal control system
in relation to the financial reporting process.

Pursuant to article 17, paragraph 9, of Legislative Decree 39/2010, the Independent Auditor has
confirmed its independence to the Board of Statutory Auditors and notified the total fees for audit
and other services performed by it and by other parties within its network for the Company and
its subsidiaries, as reported in the annexes to the separate and consolidated financial statements.
The Board of Statutory Auditors confirms that in the year to date no critical issues have been found
in relation to the independence of the Independent Auditor.

Finally, it is noted that the supervisory activities described in this paragraph and the previous
paragraph have enabled the Board of Statutory Auditors to perform its duties as the Committee for
Internal Control and Statutory Auditing pursuant to article 19 of

Legislative Decree 39/2010, in which regard it has no observations to report.

4. Proposals on the separate and consolidated financial
statements, their approval and matters within the remit
of the Board of Statutory Auditors

The Company has prepared the 2015 financial statements in accordance with international
accounting standards (IAS/IFRS). These financial statements have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche SpA, which issued its report on 30 March 2016 without any remarks or requests for specific
disclosures. The financial statement, including the report on operations, was made available to us
by the deadline set by law and we have no particular observations to report.

The Company has also prepared the 2015 consolidated financial statements of the Sabaf SpA
group. These financial statements have also been audited by Deloitte & Touche SpA, which issued
its report on 30 March 2016 without any remarks or requests for specific disclosures.

We also note that, in the reports referenced above, the Independent Auditor expressed a positive
judgement of the consistency of the information contained in the Report On Operations and the
information referred to in article 123-bis, paragraph 1, letters c), d), f), 1), m) and paragraph 2, letter
b) of Legislative Decree 58/98, as included in the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership
Structures, for both the separate and consolidated financial statements.

Within the limits of the Board of Statutory Auditors’ remit, we have checked the general format
of the separate and consolidated financial statements, verifying their conformity with the law and
relevant standards.

In particular, we have assessed the results of the impairment test conducted on the value of the
equity investment in the subsidiary Faringosi Hinges S.r.l., as described in the separate financial
statements, and the amount of goodwill recorded in relation to this equity investment in the
consolidated financial statements.

The test, conducted by external professionals specifically appointed on the basis of plans drawn
up by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary, led to the recognition of a recoverable value of the
investment equal to €11,061 million, which is above its carrying value of €8,447 million.

Based on these measurements, the Board of Directors fully restored the book value of the
investment to its initial historic cost (equal to €10,329 million), posting a writeback of €1,882
million in the income statement of the separate financial statements, corresponding to the residual
amount of the impairment losses recognised in previous years.

The Board of Statutory Auditors has no remarks in this regard.

Finally, we note that some derogations have been made with respect to the accounting standards
adopted.

5.5. Procedures for effective implementation of the
corporate governance rules

Your Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code approved by the Corporate
Governance Committee for Listed Companies.

In the Annual Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structures, prepared in accordance
with article 123-bis of Legislative Decree 58/1998, the Board Of Directors acknowledged the
Company's adherence to the Corporate Governance Code and noted the methods used in practice

to implement the corporate governance rules, in accordance with art. 123-bis, paragraph 2, letter a).

During the year the Board of Statutory Auditors supervised the practical implementation of the

corporate governance rules adopted by the Company, and in this regard, considers that they have

been effectively and properly applied.

To the extent of our remit, we note as follows:

o The Board of Directors has checked that directors categorised as independent upon their
appointment continue to meet the requirements to be considered as such. The Board of
Statutory Auditors has checked the proper implementation of the criteria and assessment
procedures adopted by the Board;

e we have also checked that the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors meet the
independence requirements, as required by the Corporate Governance Code, both initially
(upon appointment) and subsequently (during the meeting held on 22 February 2016), using
the same methods as those used by the directors;

* we have complied with the regulations on the management and handling of confidential and
sensitive company information.

6. Supervision of relations with subsidiaries and parents

The Board of Statutory Auditors has checked the adequacy of the instructions given by the Company
to its subsidiaries, pursuant to article 114, paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree 58/1998.

In this regard we note that the Company - via the CEQ, as well as the Administration, Finance and
Control Director, and the other executives with strategic responsibilities - continuously monitors the
operations of subsidiaries, including by using a shared accounting and management system (SAP)
thatis accessible at all times to management of the parent company.

The periodic meetings between management and the company appointed to perform the internal
audit did not result in any critical issues worthy of mention in this report.

Finally, we note that as of today's date no communications have been received by the Control Bodies
of the subsidiaries and/or parents containing observations that must be mentioned in this report.

7. Supervision of related-party transactions

In reference to article 2391-bis of the Italian Civil Code, we acknowledge that the Board of Directors
has adopted a procedure governing related-party transactions. The main aim of this procedure
is to set out guidelines and rules for identifying related-party transactions and to establish roles,
responsibilities and operational procedures to ensure that these transactions are disclosed with
adequate transparency, appropriate procedures and suitable information.

The said procedure was prepared in accordance with the Consob Regulation on Related Parties (no.
17221 of 12 March 2010, as amended) and has recently been updated.

The Board of Statutory Auditors has overseen the effective application of these rules by the Company
and has no remarks to report.

8. Conclusions

During the supervisory activities conducted during the year, we did not find any omissions, facts
worthy of censure, irregularities or situations that would need to be reported to the Supervisory
Authority or mentioned in this report.

We also note that the Board of Statutory Auditors has not received any whistleblowing reports
pursuant to article 2408 of the Italian Civil Code, and has not been aware of any facts and/or
remarks that should be included in this report.

As regards the annual financial statements, the Board of Statutory Auditors has no objections to
the resolution proposals presented by the Board of Directors with reference to the approval of the
financial statements or the allocation of profit for the year, and in particular as regards the proposal
on the distribution of dividends.

Ospitaletto, 31 March 2016

Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors
Mr Antonio Passantino

Statutory Auditor
Mr. Enrico Broli

Statutory Auditor
Ms. Luisa Anselmi
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Report on remuneration

SECTION | - REMUNERATION POLICY

Sabaf S.p.A's General Remuneration Policy (hereinafter also “remuneration policy”),

approved by the Board of Directors on 22 December 2011 and updated on 20 March

2013 and 4 August 2015, defines the criteria and guidelines for the remuneration

of members of the Board of Directors, executives with strategic responsibilities and

members of the Board of Statutory Auditors.

The remuneration policy was prepared:

e pursuant to Article 6 of the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies,
approved in March 2010 and subsequent amendments and supplements;

e in line with Recommendations 2004/913/EC and 2009/385, which were
incorporated into law with Article 123-ter of the Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF).

This Policy, applied from the date of approval by the Board of Directors, was fully
implemented as of 2012 following the appointment of the corporate bodies.

With the introduction of the Policy, the remuneration system was extended to include a
long-term incentive component, which was previously not provided for.

Corporate bodies and persons involved in preparing,
approving and implementing the remuneration policy

The General Remuneration Policy was approved by the Board of Directors on 22
December 2011 and updated on 20 March 2013 and 4 August 2015, at the proposal of
the Remuneration Committee, as explained in the paragraphs below.
No independent experts or advisors contributed to the preparation of the policy, nor
were the remuneration policies of other companies used for reference purposes.
Specifically, it is the responsibility:
e of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee:
to make proposals to the Board of Directors, in the absence of the persons
directly concerned, for remuneration of the CEQ and directors holding specific
positions
to make suggestions concerning the setting of targets to which the annual
variable component and long-term incentives should be linked, in order to
ensure alignment with shareholders' long-term interests and the company's
strategy
to evaluate the criteria for the remuneration of executives with strategic
responsibilities and make appropriate recommendations to the Board
- to monitor the application of decisions adopted by the Board;
e of the Board of Directors, to properly implement the remuneration policy;
e of the Human Resources Department, to actually enact what is decided upon by
the Board.
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee currently in office comprises three
non-executive and independent members (Fausto Gardoni, Giuseppe Cavalli and
Renato Camodeca), with the knowledge and experience in accounting, finance and
remuneration policies that is deemed adequate by the Board of Directors.

Purpose of the remuneration policy

The Company's intention is that the General Remuneration Policy:
e attracts, motivates and increases the loyalty of persons with appropriate professional
expertise;

e brings the interests of the management into line with those of the shareholders;

o favours the creation of sustainable value for shareholders in the medium to long
term, and maintains an appropriate level of competitiveness for the company in the
sector in which it operates.

The remuneration policy was reviewed in 2015, involving the introduction:

e of a Non-Competition Agreement (NCA) with the CEO;

e of company cars as one of the non-monetary benefits assigned to executives;

e beginning in 2016, a maximum limit of 25% of the variable component with
respect to the fixed annual gross salary and the remuneration from subsidiaries.

No changes were made in the fixed component. This amendment was approved by the
Board of Directors on 4 August 2015 on the recommendation of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.

Fixed annual component

Directors

At the proposal of the Board of Directors, having obtained the opinion of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the shareholders determine a maximum
total for the remuneration of all members of the Board, including a fixed amount and
attendance fees.

In accordance with this maximum total, at the proposal of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and subject to the opinion of the Board of Statutory Auditors,
the Board of Directors determines additional remuneration for directors vested with
special powers.

The fixed component is such that it is able to attract and motivate individuals with
appropriate expertise for the roles entrusted to them within the Board, and is set with
reference to the remuneration awarded for the same positions by other listed Italian
industrial groups of a similar size.

Itis the practice of Sabaf S.p.A. to appoint members of the Saleri family to the posts of
Chairman and Vice Chairmen. The family is the controlling shareholder of the company
through Giuseppe Saleri S.a.p.A. Although they are executive directors, they do not
receive variable remuneration, but only additional remuneration to that of the directors
for the specific offices held.

Directors who sit on committees formed within the Board (Internal Control and Risk
Committee, Remuneration and Nomination Committee) are granted remuneration
that includes a fixed salary and attendance fees intended to reward the commitment
required of them.

Other executives with strategic responsibilities

Employment relationships with other executives with strategic responsibilities are
governed by the Collective National Contract for Industrial Managers. In this regard,
fixed remuneration is determined so that it is sufficient in itself to guarantee an
appropriate basic salary level, even in the event that the variable components are not
paid owing to a failure to reach objectives.




SABAF - ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REPORT ON REMUNERATION

197

Board of Statutory Auditors
The amount of remuneration for Auditors is set by the Shareholders' Meeting, which
establishes a fixed amount for the Chairman and the other Statutory Auditors.

Annual variable component

The Chief Executive Officer, other executives with strategic responsibilities and other
managers identified by the CEO from amongst managers who report directly to
him or who report to the above-mentioned managers, are granted annual variable
remuneration related to an MBO plan.

This plan sets a common objective (Group EBIT, which is considered to be the Group's
main indicator of financial performance) and quantifiable and measurable individual
objectives, both economic-financial and technical-productive in nature. All objectives
are set by the Board of Directors, at the proposal of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, in accordance with the budget.

The variable component may not exceed 25% of the fixed annual gross salary; it may be
only partially granted in the event that the objectives are not completely met.

75% of the variable component is paid out in the April of the following year, and 25% in
the January of the second subsequent year.

Non-executive directors are not granted any variable remuneration.

Long-term incentives

A long-term financial incentive dependent on measurable and predetermined
performance targets relating to the creation of value for shareholders over the long
term has been established.

The incentive extends over three years (2015-2017) and is exclusively aimed at the
Chief Executive Officer and executives with strategic responsibilities.

The performance targets, set in accordance with the three-year business plan, are
proposed by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee to the Board of Directors,
as the body responsible for approving the long-term financial incentive.

The targets that set the parameters for the long-term incentive (consolidated Group
EBITDA, share value and consolidated Group free cash flow) were defined by the Board
of Directors on 4 August 2015, on the recommendation of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.

The total long-term variable component for three years may not exceed 50% of the fixed
annual gross salary; it may be only partially granted in the event that the objectives
are not completely met. In the event that the objectives assigned are exceeded by
more than 10%, an increase of 5% of the fixed annual gross salary and remuneration is
granted, weighted based on the weight of the objective.

The variable component is paid in full following the approval of the financial statements
of the third year to which the incentive relates (2017).

Incentives based on financial instruments

The remuneration policy in force does not provide for the use of incentives based on
financial instruments (stock options, stock grants, phantom stocks or others).

Remuneration for offices in subsidiaries

Directors and other executives with strategic responsibilities may be granted
remuneration - exclusively as a fixed amount - for offices held in subsidiaries. As well
as the approval of the subsidiaries’ corporate bodies, this remuneration is subject to the
favourable opinion of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

Non-monetary benefits

The Company has taken out a third-party civil liability insurance policy in favour of
directors, statutory auditors and executives for unlawful acts committed in the exercise
of their respective duties, in violation of obligations established by law and the Bylaws,
with the sole exclusion of deliberate intent. The stipulation of this policy was approved
by the Shareholders' Meeting.

The Company also provides a life insurance policy and cover for medical expenses
(FASI) for executives, as established by the Collective National Contract for Industrial
Managers; moreover, it has stipulated an additional policy to cover medical expenses
not covered by FASI reimbursements.

Lastly, at the proposal of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, and having
consulted with the CEQ, the Board of Directors also assigns company cars to executives.

Indemnity against the early termination of employment

There are no agreements for directors or other executives with strategic responsibilities
governing ex ante financial settlements following the early termination of the
employment relationship.

For the end of the relationship for reasons other than just cause or justified reasons
provided by the employer, it is the Company's policy to pursue consensual agreements
to end the employment relationship, in accordance with legal and contractual
obligations.

The Company does not provide directors with benefits subsequent to the end of their
mandate.

The Company has entered into a non-competition agreement with the CEO and with
certain executives who report to him, the terms of which were approved by the Board of
Directors, after obtaining the opinion of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

Claw Back clauses

The Company has decided not to establish mechanisms for the ex-post adjustment of the
variable remuneration component or claw back clauses to demand the return of all or
part of the variable components of remuneration paid out (or to withhold deferred sums),
which were determined on the basis of data subsequently found to be clearly incorrect.
This decision was made as the variable incentive plans are based on pre-established,
quantifiable and measurable performance data, both economic-financial and technical-
productive in nature, the achievement of which is verified in advance.

The company reserves the unilateral right to include claw back clauses in future annual
and/or long-term variable incentive plans.
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SECTION Il - REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS AND
OTHER EXECUTIVES WITH STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITIES IN 2015

This section, which details remuneration paid to directors and statutory auditors:

o adequately describes each of the items that make up the remuneration, showing their
consistency with the Company's remuneration policy approved the previous year;

e analytically illustrates the remuneration paid in the financial year under review
(2015), for any reason and in any form, by the Company or by subsidiaries or
affiliates, identifying any components of this remuneration that relate to activities
undertaken in previous years to the year under review.

The components of the remuneration paid
to directors for 2015

The remuneration granted to directors for 2015, in accordance with the Policy described

in Section |, consisted of the following components:

o fixed remuneration, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 5 May 2015,
totalling €225,000, of which €15,000 is to be allocated indiscriminately to every
director, and €10,000 to every non-executive member of the Internal Control and
Risk Committee and/or the Remuneration and Nomination Committee;

e additional remuneration, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 5 May 2015,
totalling €775,000 divided among directors vested with special powers (Chairman,
Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer) as detailed in the table below;

e anattendance fee of €1,000, due to non-executive directors only, for every occasion
on which they attend Board of Directors’ meetings and the meetings of committees
formed within the Board.

With regard to the variable incentive plan established for 2014, the remuneration that
accrued and paid out during the year with regard to the CEQ, Alberto Bartoli, was €18,900.

With reference to the 2015 MBO plan, remuneration of €54,000 was accrued over the
year for the partial achievement of the objectives set.

As far as the long-term incentive plan is concerned, at the end of the three-year
period 2012-2014, the targets set by the Board of Directors after consulting with
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee were not reached; therefore, no
remuneration accrued and none was paid out.

There are no incentive plans based on financial instruments, or compensation for
termination of employment.

The Company has entered into a non-competition agreement with the CEO and with
certain executives who report to him, the terms of which were approved by the Board of
Directors, after obtaining the opinion of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for 2015

The remuneration granted to the Statutory Auditors for 2015 consists of a fixed payment
determined by the Shareholders' Meeting of 5 May 2015.

Remuneration of executives with strategic
responsibilities for 2015

The executive with strategic responsibilities receives a fixed remuneration component
for employment totalling €127,250 and a variable component totalling €15,641,
disbursed in 2015 in relation to the 2014 variable incentive plan (MBO).

Other remuneration totalling €48,500 was also disbursed by subsidiaries.

In2015, variable remuneration of €18,877 was accrued for the achievement of some of
the objectives of the 2015 MBO plan. Its payment is deferred and dependent upon the
continuation of the employment relationship.

There are no incentive plans based on financial instruments outstanding.

For the breakdown of the remuneration paid in 2015, refer to the tables below (Table
1 and Table 2), which contain remuneration paid to directors and statutory auditors,
listed by name, and, at aggregate level, other executives with strategic responsibilities
currently in office, taking into account any roles held for less than the entire year.
Remuneration received from subsidiaries and/or affiliates, with the exception of that
waived or paid back to the Company, is also indicated separately.

With particular reference to Table 1, the column:

e “Fixed remuneration” shows, for the portion relating to 2015, the fixed remuneration
approved by the Board of Directors on 5 May 2015; meeting attendance fees as
approved by the Board of Directors on 8 May 2012 for terms until May 2015 and on
5 May 2015 for terms under way; employee compensation due for the year gross
of social security contributions and income taxes owed by the employee. Fixed
remuneration due (prorated) from the previous term is excluded, as it was disbursed
in full in December 2014, as well as any lump-sum expense reimbursements.

e "Remuneration for attendance at Committee meetings’, shows, for the portion
relating to 2015, the remuneration due to directors who attended the meetings
of the Committees set up within the Board and the related attendance fees as
approved by the Board of Directors on 8 May 2012 for terms until May 2015 and on
5 May 2015 for those under way.

e "Bonusand other incentives” includes the remuneration paid in 2015 to executives
with strategic responsibilities for objectives met in the year, set outin the 2014 MBO
plan. This value corresponds to the sum of the amounts provided in Table 2 in the
"Bonus for the year - payable/paid’, "Bonus of previous years - payable/paid” and
"Other bonuses” columns.

e “Non-monetary benefits” shows, according to accrual and tax liability criteria, the
value of outstanding insurance policies and the company cars assigned.

e "Other remuneration” shows, for the portion attributable to 2015, any other
remuneration resulting from other services provided.

e “Indemnity for end of office or termination of employment relationship” records
the portions for the year relating to payments accrued under the scope of the
Non-Competition Agreement signed by the CEO and Executives with strategic
responsibilities.

e "Total" shows the sum of the amounts provided under the previous items.

For a breakdown of other items, see attachment 3A, statement 7-bis and 7-ter of
CONSOB Regulation 11971 of 14 May 1999.
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Finally, pursuant to Article 84-quater, paragraph four of the CONSOB lIssuers’
Regulations, Table 3 shows shareholdings in Sabaf S.p.A. held by directors and
executives with strategic responsibilities, as well as their non-separated spouses and
dependent children, directly or through subsidiaries, trust companies or third parties,

as shown in the shareholder register, communications received and other information
acquired from the same parties. This includes all persons who held office during the
year, even for only part of the year. The number of shares held is shown by individual
director and in aggregate form for executives with strategic responsibilities.

TABLE 1 - Remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors and Board of Statutory
Auditors and other executives with strategic responsibilities in 2015

FIGURES IN EURO

Indemnity for

: : ' Variable Non- FairValue | end of office or
RESES b Expiry R remuneration monetal it of equit: termination of
surname of office of office remuneration : | remuneration quity
(non equity) benefits remuneration| employment
relationship
B°:;f:r"d Profit
incentives shafing

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Approval
Giuseppe . 5 May - of 2017
Saleri Ciefite: 31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
(I) Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 120,000 @ 0 0 0 120,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 8,000 0 0 0 8,000 0 0
(ll) TOTAL 128,000 0 0 0 128,000 0 0
(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €105,000 as chairman.
Approval
Ettore Vice 5 May - of 2017
Saleri Chairman |31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 140,000 @ 0 0 0 140,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 8,000 0 0 0 8,000 0 0
(ll) TOTAL 148,000 0 0 0 148,000 0 0
(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €125,000 as vice chairman.
Approval
Cinzia Vice 5 May - of 2017
Saleri Chairman |31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 140,000 (@ 0 0 0 140,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(lll) TOTAL 140,000 0 0 0 140,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €125,000 as vice chairman.
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: Indemnity for
: : : B Variable Non- FairValue | end of office or
Name and Period Expiry Fixed for attendance remuneration moneta Other of equi termination of
surname of office of office remuneration | at Committee : benefi "Y' |remuneration q ty I
meetings (non equity) enefits remuneration| emp| Pyme.r\t
relationship
s o
incentives Clig
Approval
Roberta Vice 5 May - of 2017
Forzanini | Chairman |31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 140,000 (@ 0 0 0 0 0 140,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
() TOTAL 140,000 0 0 0 [} 0 140,000 0 0
(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €125,000 as vice chairman.
. Approval
Alberto | SMef |5 May. | of2017
Bartoli 31 Dec 2015| financial
Officer
statements
(I) Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 290,000 (@ 0 18,900 0 0 0 308,200 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 11,000 0 0 0 0 0 11,000 0 0
() TOTAL 301,000 0 18,900 0 0 [} 319,900 0 0
(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €275,000 as Chief Executive Officer.
Approval
Gianluca Director 5 May - of 2017
Beschi ! 31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
(I) Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 156,265 (a) 0 8,270 0 14,371 0 178,906 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 37,000 0 0 0 0 0 37,000 0 0
(1) TOTAL 193,265 0 8,270 0 14,371 0 215,906 0 0
(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €141,265 as Administration, Finance and Control Director.
Approval
Renato Director 5 May - of 2017
Camodeca ! 31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 22,000 @ | 28,000 ®) 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1) TOTAL 22,000 28,000 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €7,000 in board meeting attendance fees.
(b) Of which €20,000 as a member of the Internal Control and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee (i.e., €10,000 each) and €8,000 in Committee meeting attendance fees.

) Approval
Clene | irector |3 TN el oo
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 22,000 @ | 28,000 ®) 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0
(Il Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1) TOTAL 22,000 28,000 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €7,000 in board meeting attendance fees.
(b) Of which €20,000 as a member of the Internal Control and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee (i.e., €10,000 each) and €8,000 in Committee meeting attendance fees
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Indemnity for

Remuneration

Name and Period Expiry Fixed for attendance rerx:::?alteion m:lnl:e':;ry Other E;i re:fll:; :::imoifn:g::: :fr
surname of office of office remuneration | at Committee : benefi remuneration g I
meetings (non equity) enefits remuneration| empl .oyme.nt
relationship
Bonusand[ gy
incentives il
Approval
Fausto Direct 5 May - of 2017
Gardoni IFECYOr 131 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 22,000 @ | 17,000 ® 0 0 0 0 39,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Il TOTAL 22,000 17,000 0 0 0 0 39,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €5,000 in board meeting attendance fees.
(b) Of which €10,000 as a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and €7,000 in Committee meeting attendance fees.

Approval
Nicla Direct 5 May - of 2017
Picchi IFector 131 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 21,000 @ | 12,000 ® 0 0 0 15,000 48,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 0 0
(Il TOTAL 21,000 12,000 0 0 0 25,000 ) | 53,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €6,000 in board meeting attendance fees.
(b) Of which €10,000 as a member of the Internal Control and Risk Committee and €2,000 in Committee meeting attendance fees.
(c) Of which €15,000 as member of the Sabaf S.p.A. Supervisory Body and €5,000 as member of the Supervisory Bodly of the subsidiary Faringosi Hinges S.r.l..

Approval
Anna Direct 5 May - of 2017
Pendoli IFECOr 131 Dec 2015 financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 21,000 @ 0 0 0 0 0 21,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
() TOTAL 21,000 0 [} 0 0 0 21,000 0 0

(a) Of which €15,000 as director and €6,000 in board meeting attendance fees.

Approval
Salvatore Director 1 Jan - of 2014
Bragantini 5 May 2015 | financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 2,000 @ | 1,000 ® 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Il) TOTAL 2,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0

(a) As board meeting attendance fees.
(b) As attendance fees for participation in Internal Control and Risk Committee meetings.
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Indemnity for

Remuneration

Name and Period Expiry Fixed for attendance Varlable. o Other Faera[ue it qf Of!'(e e
. . : : remuneration monetary : of equity | termination of
surname of office of office remuneration | at Committee : benefi remuneration g I
meetings (non equity) enefits remuneration| - employment
relationship
Bonusandf g
incentives Clig
Approval
Leonardo Director 1 Jan - of 2014
Cossu €€tOr | 5 May 2015 | financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 2,000 @ | 2,000 ® 0 0 0 0 4,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
() TOTAL 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 4,000 0 0

(a) As board meeting attendance fees.
(b) Of which €1,000 in attendance fees for participation in Internal Control and Risk Committee meetings, and €1,000 in attendance fees for participation in the Remuneration and Nomination
Committeee Nomine.

Approval
Maria Chiara Direct 1 Jan - of 2014
Franceschetti — <" |5 May 2015 | financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 2,000 @ 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1) TOTAL 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0
(a) As board meeting attendance fees.
Approval
Riccardo Direct 1Jan - of 2014
Rizza irector | 5 May 2015 | financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 2,000 @ 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
() TOTAL 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0

(a) As board meeting attendance fees.
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Indemnity for

Remuneration

Name and Period Expiry Fixed for attendance Varlable. Lt Other Faera[ue et qf of‘!lce o
: : : : remuneration monetary : of equity | termination of
surname of office of office remuneration | at Committee : 5 remuneration g
: (non equity) benefits remuneration| employment
meetings o p
relationship
Bonus and .
| o
incentives | *"2""9

BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Approval
Antonio Chairman 5 May - of 2017
Passantino 31 Dec 2015| financial
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 24,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Il1) TOTAL 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 24,000 0 0
. Approval
lufim :::,:‘u‘:':f May- | of2017
Anselmi "*OrY 131 Dec 2015| financial
Auditor
statements
() Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 16,000 0 0 0 0 0 16,000 0 0
(I) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Ill) TOTAL 16,000 0 0 0 0 0 16,000 0 0
. Approval
Enrico :tt::ut:rg 5 May - of 2017
Broli oY 131 Dec 2015| financial
Auditor
statements
(I) Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 16,000 0 0 0 0 0 16,000 0 0
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Il) TOTAL 16,000 0 0 0 0 0 16,000 0 0

Indemnity for
Variable Non- FairValue | end of office or

Remuneration

Name and Period Expiry Fixed for attendance b Other . S
: : : : remuneration monetary : of equity | termination of
surname of office of office remuneration | at Committee : 5 remuneration g
: (non equity) benefits remuneration| employment
meetings DR
relationship
Bonus and .
g s
incentives | ° 9

OTHER EXECUTIVES WITH STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITIES

Oth.er executiyes 1 Jan -

esv;::s?ltazlai:ieeiliﬂ 9l Peedvile e
(I) Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. 127,250 0 15,641 0 16,312 0 159,203 0 15,226
(Il) Remuneration from subsidiaries and affiliates 48,500 0 0 0 0 0 48,500 0 0
(1l TOTAL 175,750 0 15,641 0 16,312 0 207,703 0 15,226
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TABLE 2 - Monetary incentive plans for members of the administration body and other
executives with strategic responsibilities

FIGURES IN EURO

R Office Payable / Paid| Deferred Defer.ment No longer Payable / Paid o S
surname period payable deferred bonuses
Bonus for the year Bonus of previous years

Alberto Chief Executive
Bartoli Officer
2014 MBO
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 18,900 0 - 0 0 0 0
(March 2014)
2015 MBO 75% 2016 March
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 0 54,000 25% 2016 0 0 0 0
(March 2015) December
TOTAL 18,900 54,000 - 0 0 0 0
Gianluca Executive
Beschi Director
2014 MBO
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 8,270 0 - 0 0 0 0
(March 2014)
2015 MBO 75% 2016 March
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 0 25,993 25% 2016 0 0 0 0
(March 2015) December
TOTAL 8,270 25,993 - 0 0 0 0
Other executives with
strategic responsibilities (1)
2014 MBO
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 15,641 0 - 0 0 0 0
(March 2014)
2015 MBO 75% 2016 March
Remuneration at Sabaf S.p.A. Plan 0 18,877 25% 2016 0 0 0 0
(March 2015) December
TOTAL 15,641 18,877 - 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 3 - Shareholdings of members of the administration and control bodies and other
executives with strategic responsibilities

Surname and Type of Investee No. shares held No. shares No. shares sold No. shares held
name ownership company at 31 Dec 2014 acquired : at 31 Dec 2015

Indirect through

the subsidi
Saleri Giuseppe Chairman 3 csubeiciary 3 Sabaf S.p.A. 5,850,003 - 5,850,003
Giuseppe Saleri e
S.ap.A.
Roberta Forzanini Vice Chairman Direct Sabaf S.p.A. 4,051 - _
. . Direct 7,500 7,500
Bartoli Alberto ChlefOEf?ce;LJtlve Indiracy throoy Sabaf S.p.A. S N
ectthroug 1,000 1,000
spouse
g Independent Indirect through
Cavalli Giuseppe Director spouse Sabaf S.p.A. 2,680 2,320 5,000
Anna Pendoli Director Direct Sabaf S.p.A. 450,000 - 450,000
Executives
with strategic p
- Direct Sabaf S.p. 3,300 - 3,300

responsibilities

(1
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